Sandra Whitehead 1Y Paul Baca
Mayor Pro-Tem QL Commissioner
ANIA NI T
Kathy Clark George Szigeti
Commissioner Commissioner
Rolf Hechler Morris Madrid
Commissioner City Manager

505 Sims St.
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
P: 575-894-6673 ¢ F: 575-894-0363
www.torcnm. org

REGULAR MEETING

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TRUTH OR
CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO, IS TO BE HELD IN THE COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RDP
ST., ON WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2019; TO START AT 9:00 A.M.

A. CALL TO ORDER
OPENING CEREMONIES

ADMINISTRATION OF THE OATH OF OFFICE BY THE HONORABLE MUNICIPAL JUDGE
BEATRICE SANDERS
PositionV  City Commissioner — George Szigeti

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL
Hon. Steve Green, Mayor
Hon. Sandra Whitehead, Mayor Pro-Tem
Hon. Rolf Hechler, Commissioner
Hon. Kathy Clark, Commissioner
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner

SILENT MEDITATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

REORGANIZATION: SELECTION OF A MAYOR & MAYOR PRO-TEM

arwWN

C. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 Minute Rule Applies)
D. RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS

E. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. City Commission Special Meeting Minutes, October 22, 2018
2. City Commission Regular Minutes, November 14, 2018
3. City Commision Regular Minutes, December 12, 2018
4. Accounts Payable, December 2018



F. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Public Hearing: Request for a Plat Amendment at 1700 E Riverside Drive,
applicants John & Gayle Jones. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator
2. Public Hearing: Request for a Variance at 1700 E Riverside Drive to allow
subdivided lot to meet the road standard for the area. Applicant is John and
Gayle Jones. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator

G. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING

1. Discussion/Action: Request for a Plat Amendment at 1700 E Riverside Drive,
applicants John & Gayle Jones. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator

2. Discussion/Action: Request for a Variance at 1700 E Riverside Drive to allow
subdivided lot to meet the road standard for the area. Applicant is John and
Gayle Jones. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator

3. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 22 2018/2019 authorizing and approving
submission of a completed application for financial assistance and project
approval to the New Mexico Finance Authority Public Project Revolving Funds
for Law Enforcement Equipment. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator

H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Special Use Permit for mounting Verizon antennas on the
painted water tank at the end of West 2nd Street. Applicant is Amy McKenzie,
Black and Veatch. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator
2. Discussion/Action: Special Use Permit for mounting antennas on the painted
water tank at the end of West 2nd Street. Applicant is AT&T Mobility with Sean
Milks of Gravity Pad being the agent. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects Coordinator

I. NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Review: Review the Impact Fee Study and approve staff to proceed
forward with final adoption procedures. Traci Burnette, Grant/Projects
Coordinator

J. REPORTS

1. City Manager

2. City Attorney

3. City Commission
K. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. Purchase, Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property (450 W. Riverside) Pursuant
to 10-15-1.H(8)

L. ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED DURING EXECUTIVE SESSION, if any.

M. ADJOURNMENT

NEXT CITY COMMISSION MEETING JANUARY 23, 2019



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM: Reorganization: Selection of a Mayor & Mayor Pro-Tem

BACKGROUND:

According to the State Statute Listed below, At the first meeting of the new
commission after each election, or as soon thereafter as practical, the commissioners
shall select one of their Members as Mayor to act for two years, or until a successor is
selected and qualified, unless sooner removed by death, resignation or removal from
office.

Related to appointing the Mayor Pro-Tem it further states; During the Mayors absence
or disability, his duties shall be performed by another member of the commission,
appointed by a majority of the commission and designated as Mayor Pro Tem.

3-14-10. Commission-manager; selection of mayor; duties.

Al the first meeting of the new commission after each election, or as soon thereafter
as practical, the commissioners shall select one of their number as mayor to act for two
years, or until a successor is selected and qualified, unless sooner removed by death,
resignation or removal from office. The mayor shall preside at all meetings of the
commission and perform other duties, consistent with his office, as imposed by the
commission. The mayor has all powers and duties of a commissioner, including the right
1o vote upon all questions considered by the commission. He is the official head of the
municipality for all ceremonial purposes, for the purpose of civil process and for military
purposes. During his absence or disability, his duties shall be performed by another
member of the commission, appointed by a majority of the commission and designated as
mayor pro tem.

History: 1953 Comp., § 14-13-10, enacted by Laws 1965, ch. 300.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

1) Make nomination(s) for a member to serve as Mayor. Call for a vote in the order
they were nominated,

2) Make nomination{s) for a member to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem. Call for a vote in
the order they were nominated.

Name of Drafter: Renee Cantin, City Clerk Meeting date: 01/09/2019







£

o — |.|‘
Adin S,

\ o’
ANy

CITY OF TRUTH O CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Approve the minutes of the City Commission Special Executive Session for October
22, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the minutes.

SUPPORT INFORMATION:
October 22, 2018 Minutes.

Submitted by: Renee Cantin Department: City Clerk-Treasurer Meseting date: 1/9/2019




CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RP St.
MONDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2018

A. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Steve Green at 9:00 a.m., who presided and
Angela A. Torres, Acting City Clerk, acted as Secretary of the meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL

Upon calling the roll, the following Commissioners were reported present.

Hon. Steve Green

Hon. Sandra Whitehead

Hon. Kathy Clark, Commissioner

Hon. Rolf Hechler, Commissioner

Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner - Absent

Also Present: Renee L. Cantin, Interim City Manager
Angela A. Torres, Acting City Clerk-Treasurer

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager) Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2)
Cily Attorney Rubin addressed the email received from Ron Fenn.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve going into executive session at
9:01a.m. to discuss Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager) Pursuant to 10-15-
1(H.2) Commissioner Clark seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken by the
Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Green reconvened the meeting in open session at 12:22 p.m.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead certified that only matters pertaining to Limited
Personnel Matters (City Manager) Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2) was discussed in

Executive Session and no action was taken.

L. ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED DURING EXECUTIVE SESSION, if any.
ADJOURNMENT

No action was taken.



CITY COMMISSION OCTOBER 22, 2018 SPECIAL EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES

M. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Hechler moved to adjourn at 12:28 a.m.
Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

Passed and Approved this day of , 2019.

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

Renee Cantin, CMC, City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



t-A

L LY
oy .
um‘...un'l..-nn“
Ny

"
\\“"’l
”

s

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Approve the minutes of the City Commission Regular Meeting for November 14,
2018.

BACKGROUND:

None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the minutes.

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

November 14, 2018 Minutes.

Submitted by: Renee Cantin Department; City Clerk-Treasurer Meeting date: 1/9/2019




CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 370 St
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2018

A. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Steve Green at 9:00 a.m., who presided and
Angela A. Torres, Acting City Clerk, acted as Secretary of the meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL

Upon calling the roll, the following Commissioners were reported present.
Hon. Steve Green
Hon. Sandra Whitehead
Hon. Kathy Clark, Commissioner
Hon. Rolf Hechler, Commissioner
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner

Also Present: Renee Cantin, Interim City Manager
Angela A. Torres, Acting City Clerk-Treasurer

There being a quorum present, the Commission proceeded with the business at hand.
2. SILENT MEDITATION

Mayor Green called for fifteen seconds of Silent Meditation and asked us to keep our
veterans in our thoughts and prayers.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Green called for Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Green asked that item |11 be moved after the Consent Calendar and make that
H1 and move everything down one item.

Commissioner Hechler moved to approve the agenda with changes mentioned
above.
Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion.

Commissioner Clark asked that 11, H2 and H3 be moved after the Consent Calendar.



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Hechler amended his motion as stated by Commissioner Clark.
Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

C.

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 Minute Rule Applies)

Mayor Green called for Public Comment, noting those wishing to comment would get

three

minutes, may only approach the podium once, and any material for the

Commission was to be left in the black box by the podium.

Randy Ashbaugh addressed the Commission related to:

1)

2)

He is speaking for quite a few residents in T or C and they are recommending
Paut Tooley as City Manager. They think that he has done great things with the
Fire Department. His Organization has been one of the best Fire Departments in
the whole nation. There are very few Volunteer Fire Departments that have the
qualifications that our Fire Department has. He is a very sharp individual, he
catches on quick, and he’ll be fast on catching up on what needs to be done. Not
only do you have to hire a City Manager, but you need a good assistant City
Manager, someone who knows how to go for grants and work with the City
Manager and the other employees because the City Manager has his hands
totally full with the way things are. He was a little bit dismayed on... he thinks the
money is short, $125,000 probably isn't enough money for a City Manager. That
is quite a bit for Paul Tooley, and the biggest factor of all is that he was born and
raised here, and he cares. That is extremely important. We don't need somebody
that doesn't care. Paul loves the City and he will do a heck of a job.

Virgin Galactic is fixing to have flights probably this next year and the visitor
center on his property is still available, it's designed, it can go to bid tomorrow
morning. The visitor center down town is not attracting any people. Are we going
to lose it to Hatch, Upham, or Las Cruces? There is going to be a visitor center
and it is going to be in one of four places, T or C, Upham, Hatch or Las Cruces.
We can keep didleing around and freeze ourselves out, or we can get on the
stick and the Commission can get behind getting the visitor center here which
can also be used for a lot of other tours like cave tours and Tumer's tours, all
kinds of tours. He said before, this little city has more potential than any other
little city he has ever seen and he has gone all over this Country. The City
Commission needs to get behind the Spaceport visitor Center and forget about
him selling the property and making some money. That is nice for him but the
center needs to be very visible to people who go down 1-25 every day. So let's
get with the program, let's get us a good City Manager, and let's get us some
tourism back in.

Ron Fenn addressed the Commission related to:

1)

Speaking of the Spaceport Visitors Center, 11 months, and we have had 346
visitors, not Mr. Green's 20,000 visitors, not Spaceport America's 200,000
visitors, 346 visitors in 11 months which has eamed the Spaceport $1,010.92.
Then the Spaceport has taken public money and given it to the city, to the tune of
$3,300.00 supposedly for utilities which the city fraudulently records as rent of

Page 2 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

public facilities. Fraudulently, the contract says there is $0 rent and only $300.00
contribution towards utilities. What happens is that money does not go into the
utility fund to help pay our utilities. It goes directly into the General Fund for
whatever nonsense the city spends it on. In the meantime, the citizens have lost
weeks, well actually probably months of recreation due to the city's renting out at
$0 rent, the Civic Center. What is wrong with this picture? The Poorest
community in New Mexico is giving itself away for free because we have no self-
respect. This community is a joke. You people are supposedly in charge and yet
you treat this city as though... we'li give anybody anything, just come here and
spend your money because we get $.02 for every $1.00 that you spend. The
money that we have given away on our Senior Recreation Center, $20,000, will
require $1,000,000 in taxable spending by the people who come here for Space
Port America. That amounts to almost $3,000 per person for that $346 people.
Do you honestly believe that we are getting any kind of return for this ludicrous
Space Port business? It's not there. Wake up before we are dead broke and out
of business.

Les Dufor addressed the Commission related to:

1) Unfortunately he had another member on the Golf Course Board who had to
resign due to medical reasons. He has an application from Kay Thompson who
owns When Pigs Fly, and he is very excited. Hopefully the Commissioners will
approve her to the board. She has a business background that we haven’t had in
quite a while. And he thinks it's time that they get a little more business
orientated with the Golf Course. So he is hoping that her addition will help them
provide some valuable information to the Commission.

D. RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS

Interim City Manager Cantin addressed Mr. Dufor's Comments regarding the vacancy
on the Golf Course Board and informed Mr. Dufor that we will advertise for the position
on the Golf Course Board and bring it back to the Commission.

Mayor Green addressed Mr. Ashbaugh’'s comment about Fire Chief Tooley “cares”
because he was ‘bormn” here. He's quite sure Mr. Tooley cares, but he rejects the fact
that you have to be born and raised here to care. He thinks it's a slap in the face for all
those people who have chosen not been forced to, but chose to move to our
community. They chose to move to Truth or Consequences, they chose to stay in truth
or Consequences. Because you were bomn here does not make your personage any
more valuable, or less valuable than those who made a decision on our own. It wasn't
our parent’s decision, and you have bragging rights because you were bom here. You
had nothing to do with that decision. 1t was your mom and dad's decision. So he doesn't
think that you have to be born here to be able to fall in love with this community and
give it your all, and try and make it better.

Page 3 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

E. PRESENTATIONS:

1. Presentation of a Proclamation for Small Business Saturday on
Saturday November 24, 2018.

Steve Green, Mayor. Mayor Green presented the Saturday November 24, 2018 Small
Business Saturday Proclamation.

2. Presentation: POMS and Associates Presentation on Services for
City:

Carlos Trujillo, POMS and Associates president, reviewed the various trainings POMS
and Associates offer and noted that a big portion of what they do is Risk Management.
There is no cost to the Municipality for POMS and Associates to work with the City.
They have started a Supervisory Training Program and this started back in 2016 when
he met with the City of Roswell. The trainings that are offered by the NMSIF does not
always fit each employee. Right now there are many employees who receive training
that doesn’t pertain to them, just so they can get the training that is required by the
NMSIF. It is very important to them that they provide targeted training for the job
description of the employees that are out there working every day.

Commissioner Hechler stated, as a former state employee he is very familiar with the
program, as well as the concept of having an aggressive safety officer that goes actually
goes out and does things and that can really make a difference in the type of premiums
that we pay and we have to have our employee buy in. So he looks forward to seeing
how this shapes up and he will be interested in the process.

Interim City Manager Cantin asked that they explain how the program is paid.

Carlos Trujillo, POMS and Associates president explained that the broker fee is already
built into the premiums that you are currently paying.

Finance Director Torres stated in 2016 or 2017 our staff attended a Municipality where
POMS and Associates were invited and at that time, they discovered that they as a
municipality were paying this broker fee which is about $25,000 and they have been
paying it for years. So when they looked into it they found out the Grindeli & Romero
were our brokers, and when we gave them a call, they didn’t even know who we were.
As a Municipality, one of the things that brightened our eyes in administration is... here
we have an additional resource for Risk Management, and Human Resources so that is
an awesome thing for us in administration. They do have the New Mexico Self Insures
and the safety program however, they are so stretched out at times that they can't
customize certain things. POMS and Associates have sat down with us several times
and asked us what are needs are as well as our liabilities. So with POMS we will be
able to customize these trainings just for our Municipality to be able to be proactive and
try to get ahead of this stuff.

Page 4 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Hechler stated that our City Manager has the authority to make these
classes mandatory for our staff, and she should convey that authority to our safety
officer so that our safety officer has the authority to call these people to these classes
and make sure it's a mandatory meeting.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

City Commission Regular Minutes, August 22, 2018

City Commission Regular Minutes, September 12, 2018

City Commission Regular Minutes, September 26, 2018

Accounts Payable, October 2018

1st Quarter Reports for Lodger's Tax Grant recipients

1st Quarter Reports for Subrecipient Grants

Appointment of Lori Montgomery to the Sierra Vista Hospital Governing
Board

R R O

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve the Consent Calendar as noted.
Commissioner Hechler seconded the motion.

Commissioner Clark thanked Interim City Manager Cantin to step up to serve on the
SVHGB.

Mayor Green thanked Ms. Montgomery for applying to serve on the SVHGB. As shown
by her application she is highly qualified.

Motion carried unanimously.

1. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 20 18/19 for the Second Amendment
and Restatement of the Joint Powers Agreement between Sierra County,
T or C, Williamsburg and Elephant Butte (JPA No. 97-059) related to the
Sierra Vista Hospital. Renee Cantin, Interim City Manager:

Interim City Manager Cantin reviewed Resolution No. 20 18/19 for the Second
Amendment and Restatement of the Joint Powers Agreement between Sierra County, T
or C, Williamsburg and Elephant Butte (JPA No. 97-059) related to the Sierra Vista
Hospital with the Commission.

Commissioner Clark moved to approve Resolution No. 20 18/19 for the Second
Amendment and Restatement of the Joint Powers Agreement between Sierra
County, T or C, Williamsburg and Elephant Butte (JPA No. 97-059) related to the
Sierra Vista Hospital.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken by the
Clerk.

Page 5 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Motion carried unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Tri-State/Sierra Electric Cooperative New Rate
Schedule. Renee Cantin, Interim City Manager & Bo Easley, Electric
Division Director:

Commissioner Ciark explained that if it weren’t for Denise Barrera from Sierra Electric
Coop. fighting for us to get something different, we would be looking at a 21% increase.
What we were able to be given was a set figure of numbers through 2027. The numbers
go up a little bit, but not much. They start at 7999% and go up to 8.3% 10 years from
now. Tristate wanted to extend this agreement with us for 5 extra years past that point
and it was open ended. Fortunately, Ms. Barrera was able to make an agreement with
Tristate for those extra 5 years if we extend this contract. In order to get these good
rates, she would extend in her contract with us and we would be at a Grade A electric
rate, which is basically the rate plus an add on of .003% that Sierra Electric Cooperative
passes on to us. Her understanding that Steve House (who is the consultant to the
Electric Department) looked at the original contract with Sierra Electric Coop., and we
are basically bound by this. We looked at different WAPA Power, and other options on
the table between the several of us, but we feel that this is the best agreement because
21% is not a good idea for us because then we would have to be passing an awful lot of
that onto our people. There is a little bit of an increase in the electric cost we have
budgeted into the line item and there is a possibility that we can absorb a part of that
because it is already in our budget. We haven't yet sat down to actually pencil it
through. One other thing is that we have not raised our utility rates to our customers for
over a decade, so that is something that may come up, but that would be a small
increment if we had to make that consideration.

Commissioner Clark moved to approve Resolution #20 18/19 for the Tri-
State/Sierra Electric Cooperative New Rate Schedule. Commissioner Hechler
seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken by the Clerk.

Motion carried unanimously.

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Public Hearing: Request for a Plat Amendment at 2205 N Date Street
to amend the property line to separate the property between Denny’s
and Comfort Inn for SRC Property LLC. Traci Burnette,
Grants/Projects Coordinator:

Grant/Projects Coordinator Burnette stated that the applicants are wanting to split this
property. All required documents have been submitted as required. Their fees have
been paid and splitting the lot will not significantly alter any of the impacts on utilities,
drainage or traffic. A Public Hearing Notice was posted on October 319, certified
mailings were sent out to the adjacent property owners. The provisions for the summary

Page 6 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

plot amendment from our municipal code has been provided. Both lots have
unobstructed legal access to existing city water and waste water lines. Both Comfort Inn
and Denny's have their own water meters, electric meters and their own wastewater
drainage.

Commissioner Clark stated that Mr. Easley mentioned that there is one transformer that
is feeding both of those buildings and that they would have to be split and there would
have to be another transformer put in?

Grant/Projects Coordinator Bumette stated that she reached out to him last week and
he said that everything was good.

Mayor Green closed the public hearing.

2. Public Hearing: Request for a Special Use Permit for mounting
Verizon antennas on the painted water tank at the end of West 2nd
Street. Applicant is Amy McKenzie, Black and Veatch:

Grant/Projects Coordinator Burnette stated before you is the Special Use Permit for
mounting the Verizon antennas on the painted water tank. Ms. McKenzie was here at
our last meeting and did a presentation so this is the Public Hearing portion of it. They
have been presenting to us at previous Commission Meetings and she thinks that
everyone here is very familiar since we did the big presentation at the last meeting.

Acting City Clerk Torres swore in Amy McKenzie and Paul Tooley.
Proponent:

Amy McKenzie noted, since their last meeting, nothing has changed with their proposal.
They are still planning on mounting onto the water tank and having our ground space at
the bottom. This will provide the coverage and capacity in the City of Truth or
Consequences that is currently lacking. Right now the only coverage that we have in
Truth or Consequences is off of the highway and that is the middle green symbol. They
are here to provide that coverage and capacity. They submitted their application and
gave a presentation last month at the request of the City Commission they went back to
Gravity Pad who also gave a presentation and as you recall, they were pitching for At&t
to also co-locate on the water tank. We did a communication with them and we've been
speaking with them for a couple of weeks now. She does have a commitment letter from
them that essentially agrees to everything that we had agreed to with the city as far as
placement with of Verizon’s antennas, placement of equipment, and all of the
technology that Verizon would need, and they are including in their special use permit,
They would honor that assuming that the City of Truth or Consequences decided to go
into a management agreement with Tor C. Assuming that their SUP is approved, and
they do go into leasing for the water tank, they are prepared to do that with the city or
with a management company, should the city decide to entertain that with Gravity Pad.

Page 7 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

City Attorney Rubin asked Ms. McKenzie if she is willing to adopt the comments that
were made in last month's presentation for here sworn testimony today.

Amy McKenzie responded, absolutely.
Opponent:

Fire Chief Tooley stated he is not a total opponent of this. He just has some concerns
as Fire Chief and as the Emergency Service Administrator for the County, as well as
sitting on the SCRDA Board. He has some issues because everything that is up there
right now is all public safety. So what he would like to see is a modulation study done by
these companies so that they can be approved by our companies on the communication
side and make sure they don't interfere with what we are currently doing up there. He
wants to make sure that they have that in writing that they will not interfere with what we
currently do up there. One way to look at this is to imagine going into a concert and you
have the stage down there, and there is nobody in the building. It is easy for me to talk
to somebody on the stage but when that room gets filled up with people it's harder for
him to get to the stage to talk. That is kind of how you can think of how the noise level
would be added to up there on tank hill. Those are just some concerns he has to make
sure they do not interfere with our public safety. Everything we have from Fire, Police,
8.0., and State Police is on top of there. He does know that there are two temporary
antennas on there and one of them receives transmits for the Police Department and
the other one is on the County tower after theirs blew over. So there are some issues
that they are not running at 100% right now as well because of that big wind storm we
had and they lost that tower. His concern is that a modulation study is done and our
people from SCRDA are both on the same page and know what's going on and they
know that adding this up there is not going to interfere with what we currently do.

Fire Chief Tooley asked Ms. McKenzie if those studies have been done.

Amy McKenzie stated that they have not done a modulation study for those specific
things, but she does not have a problem going back to Verizon and asking if they would
perform that. Verizon works on different frequencies than the emergency management
communications. In their lease in all of their dealings, including special use permits, it is
Verizon's requirement that they remedy any kind of interference. Interfering with
emergency management is not a typical problem that Verizon would have, but if that is
a concern she can go to Verizon to see if they can do a modulation study. The only
thing they would require is that information of what is on the water tank as far as EMS
services goes.

Mayor Green asked if it is the will of the Commission could that study possibly be done
as soon as possible because he believes this is due to come back for final approval the
first meeting in January.

Amy McKenzie replied possibly. She doesn't know how long that type of study would
take. It would certainly be helpful. The soconer she has the information of what she is

Page 8 0of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

studying as far of what kind of communications equipment is on there that would be
most helpful. She will endeavor for that, but she just does not know because of holiday
schedules and that sort of thing, but that will be her goal to meet before the January
meeting.

Mayor Green closed the Public Hearing.

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTION, & ZONING:
1. Discussion/Action: Request for a Plat Amendment at 2205 N Date
Street to amend the property line to separate the property between
Denny’s and Comfort Inn for SRC Property LLC. Traci Burnette,
Grants/Projects Coordinator:

Commissioner Clark asked if there is enough distance between the buildings to allow
the separation.

Grant/Projects Coordinator Burnette replied yes.

Commissioner Hechler moved to approve the request for a Plat Amendment at
2205 N. Date Street to amend the property line to separate the property between
Denny’s and Comfort Inn for SRC Property LLC as presented by Grant/Projects
Coordinator Burnette. Commissioner Baca seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 19 18/19 Budget Adjustment.
Melissa Torres, Finance Director

Finance Director Torres presented the following budget adjustments:

Vet Wall Perp Care- Transfer

Out $16,000 Transfer Qut — From Ending Cash Balance -
Fund 293 Additional Costs to Finish Vet Wall Project -
293-5103-49930 Change order Smithco Addition, Replacement

Panel, Metal for Top of Panels

PD GRT- Expense

Fund 296 $32,800 | Increase Expense - From Ending Cash Balance —
296-2403-80845 Purchase Vehicles Additional Costs
Vet Wall- Expense
Fund 303 $16,000 | Increase Expense — Additional Costs to Finish Vet
303-4703-60840 Wall Project — Change order Smithco Addition,

Replacement Panel, Metal for Top of Panels

Vet Wall — Transfer In
Fund 303 $16,000 Increase Transfer In — Additional Costs to Finish
303-4703-39935 Vet Wall Project — Change order Smithco Addition,
Replacement Panel, Metal for Top of Panels

Electric — Expense
Fund 503 $24,750 Increase Expense- Ending Cash Balance —
503-3702-48598 YESCO for Electric Meter Infrastructure Project

Page 9 of 12




CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Water — Expense
Fund 504 $24,750 Increase Expense- Ending Cash Balance —
504-3803-48598 YESCO for Water Meter Infrastructure Project

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve Resolution No. 19 18/19 Budget
Adjustment presented by Melissa Torres, Finance Director. Commissioner Baca
seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken by the Clerk.

Motion carried unanimously.

J. REPORTS
CITY MANAGER:

Interim City Manager Cantin:

¢ Mr. Carrasco and John Appel were standing by for the Hospital agreement. She
told them that we approved it but she would be contacting them by email to get
further information so they will be ready for the hospital resolution item.

e She thanked Tracy Johnson and Traci Burnette, David Johnson and Facilities,
Lisa Gabaldon, as well as all of those who were involved for in the Veteran Wall
ceremony.

e There was a 19% increase in the ridership for the shuttle this summer. A majority
of the riders were from the lake and bringing them down to the city which was a
great benefit for us. The DWI Program will be assisting in providing door to door
service for New Year's Eve.

» The pool dome started going up yesterday. She thanked our Parks Supervisor
OJ Hechler for jumping in while several of our public works employees were on
vacation and out sick. She also thanked County Manager Swingle for sending
over some county employees to assist us when we didn't have enough muscle.

» She thanked the Commission for including her in the Sierra Electric Coop.
conference call.

CITY ATTORNEY:

City Attorney Rubin:

o They have successfully resolved the litigation that they were involved in
concerning the property located on the corner of 8" and Kopra which is where
they have the children's memorial park.

* He touched briefly on the Commission’s concern regarding legal fees stating that
he believes in the next couple months his fees will be back to normal. The
several litigations he has had in the past few months are what raised his fees.

Mayor Green responded that it has come to light that they are having a lot of budget
adjustments that they have to make, because we are either under budgeting for
important line items or we are budgeting what we think is sufficient and we are going
over. He doesnt know what the new regime is coming in, in January with a new

Page 10 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Govemnor or whether they are going to re-institute the small city assistance program that
we lost a half a million dollars from the last 2 years. So he just wanted to bring to the
table that these are not good times for us financially. It was nothing against the work
you do for the city.

CITY COMMISSION:

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead:
e Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead had no reports.

Commissioner Hechler:
o Commissioner Hechler had no reports.

Commissioner Clark:

* Noted that she feels partially responsible for some of the legal fees because
there has been several times she has called legal for advice that has to do with
city business. Without their help she does not believe she would have been able
to help this Commission and help this city.

Commissioner Baca:
» Commissioner Baca had no reports.

Mayor Green:

¢ Yesterday he was up at the Collection Center doing some recycling, and he
dumped some metal on the collection floor (an item they don’t charge for). The
car in front of him had just left, and a new gentleman who is replacing Ryan on
the floor was picking through the garbage and taking out all of these cookie metal
cans that you get for Christmas as well as other pieces of metal and aluminum
and he was throwing them off to the side. | told him thank you for doing that, and
he said that he doesn’t understand why citizens don't understand that this is
money that they are throwing away. Money that the city gets for selling metal. To
him, when Commissioners are working very hard to make Tor C the best it can
be, and to have people just not respect their own community and not want to do
what's best. We are going into Christmas right now and he can guarantee that
we will be throwing away tons and tons of cardboard that come in Christmas gifts
because people will not take the time to recycle.

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
1. Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager Recruitment) Pursuant to 10-
15-1(H.2):

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve going into executive session at
10:46 a.m. to discuss Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager Recruitment)
Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2).

Page 11 of 12



CITY COMMISSION NOVEMBER 14, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Clark seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken by the Clerk.
Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Green reconvened the meeting in open session at 12:22 p.m.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead certified that only matters pertaining to Limited
Personnel Matters (City Manager Recruitment) Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2) was
discussed in Executive Session and no action was taken.

L. ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED DURING EXECUTIVE SESSION, if any.
ADJOURNMENT

No action was taken.

M. ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to adjourn at 12:25 p.m.
Commissioner Hechler seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

Passed and Approved this day of , 2019.

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

Renee Cantin, CMC, City Clerk

Page 12 of 12



£2

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Approve the minutes of the City Commission Regular Meeting for December 12,
2018.

BACKGROUND:

None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the minutes.

SUPPORT INFORMATION:
December 12, 2018 Minutes.

Submitted by: Renee Cantin Department: City Clerk-Treasurer Meeting date: 1/9/2019




CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3R2 G,
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018

A. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Steve Green at 9:00 a.m., who presided and
Angela A. Torres, Acting City Clerk, acted as Secretary of the meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL

Upon calling the roll, the following Commissioners were reported present.
Hon. Steve Green
Hon. Sandra Whitehead
Hon. Kathy Clark, Commissioner
Hon. Rolf Hechler, Commissioner
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner

Also Present: Renee Cantin, City Manager
Angela A. Torres, Acting City Clerk-Treasurer
There being a quorum present, the Commission proceeded with the business at hand.

2. SILENT MEDITATION

Mayor Green called for fifteen seconds of Silent Meditation and asked us to keep our
veterans in our thoughts and prayers.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Green led the Pledge of Allegiance.
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Commissioner Hechler moved to approve the agenda as presented.
Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

C. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 Minute Rule Applies)



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Mayor Green called for Public Comment, noting those wishing to comment would get
three minutes, may only approach the podium once, and any material for the
Commission was to be left in the black box by the podium.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead read a letter from Harv Klienstiver related to:

1) He was at the City Commission Tree lighting ceremony and would like to express
how nice it was. A very large crowd of citizens showed up. When the lighting was
turned on they were amazed at how great they looked. A lot of hard work was
done by the City Parks personnel, Electric and Facilities. They not only did the
street lighting but all of the other lighting which in all, makes our city show the
Christmas spirit. A big thank you to the City Parks, Electric and Facilities
Personnel as well as all of the city staff.

George Szigeti addressed the Commission related to:

1) He is speaking as the Chairman of the Public Utility Advisory Board. He wanted
re-iterate personally to the Commission their findings and opinions after
discussion of the AMI and AMR system. It is their combined opinion that we
really need to go with the AMI System as opposed to an AMR. All the AMR
System essentially does is replace the need for a meter reader to collect the
data, but that just gives us data for one point in time during the month. An Ami
system actually continues to feed data back to the Electric Department 24 hours
a day, 7 days a week and allows them to actively manage the electric system. It
reports power outages almost immediately to the Electric Department. They
know which meters and where are not receiving electricity. Without the
customers having to call in to report the outages. There are many advantages
such as that to the AMI System. When we first discussed it we wanted to make
sure if they decided to go with an AMR System because of the reduced cost then
that system could be upgraded to an AMI in the future. In fact, the systems
discussed can be upgraded. However, the resulting system is not compatible
with the AM| System that is available for the water meters. So if we go to AMR
and upgrade it to AMI, and then decide to do the water meters, we would have to
have a totally different AMI System for the water which results in duplication. So
we want to go directly with an AMI System that is compatible with that available
for water meters so that we can bring our entire system together under one
program.

Ron Fenn addressed the Commission related to:

1) All of this wonderful data that is going to be produced by these AMI Systems
according to Mr. Szigeti, to his knowledge there is no one in this city who has
ever paid any attention to data. This is not a technological city. This is a small city
and we don't have the kind of people who react to data. He is looking at the city’s
budget and the city’s budget tells him that 10.5 million dollars comes out of the
Joint Utility Fund. That's have of the revenue of the city and yet this city is
concentrating on asking for more tourism. Tourists don't pay utilities, people pay
utilities, residents pay utilities and in the meantime that's all we're concentrating
on. This vague amount of money that is supposedly coming in from tourism and

Page 2 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

yet she has never seen a budget figure or a budget estimate that is based on
tourism because we don't collect data on tourism. But tourism produces $.02 per
$1.00 to the city. Whereas the ultilities it's a $1.00 for $1.00. Where are we
going? You tell me.

Klaus Wittern addressed the Commission related to:

1)

He wants you to know that he 75% agrees with George on the electric side. He
doesn't agree that the system he is talking about that can be compatible, won't
be compatible. The AMI water system that is available is not compatible with the
electric side. But you can combine the two outputs from both systems, and
integrate them at the highest level of the utility billing side. You can combine
them there and you should. | am recommending to you that you commit yourself
to AMI on both sides today if that is what you want to do. Go out for bid, because
the revenues are in the system we know how much revenue can be saved on the
AMR/AMI on the water side. He will give you a figure right now. Both sides can
be purchased for approximately 2.2 to 2.4 million dollars, and you can pay off the
electric side in 7 years and you will probably have to pay off the water side in 10
years. That gives you 10 years at a minimum of use of the meters on the water
side because they will be accurate. It has been proven. It will cost you
somewhere between $300,000 and $345,000 a vear.

Linda DeMarino addressed the Commission related to:

1)

2)

3)

D.

She thanked everyone at the city who helped out with Old Fashioned Christmas.
They couldn’t have done it without all of the people who helped get the parks
ready and the Police Department who helped with Street closures and everybody
else who did everything. She wants to thank you so much for that.

We got the Great Blocks on Main Street Grant and pretty soon we will be starting
some public input sessions to talk about that little stretch of Foch Street that goes
between Main and Broadway and that will be open to the public. So if anyone
who is hearing this is interested then you may want to take a little walk down
there and figure out what some of your ideas might be because we will be
gathering ideas for that section.

Mainstreet T or C will be having a fundraiser on New Year's Eve at the Brewery.
It is a New Year's Eve Party with 24/7 playing and it is sure to be a good time.

RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Interim City Manager Cantin addressed Linda De Marino’s comment and stated that
Sierra County DUI Program will be running the shuttle on New Year's Eve as well and
they are offering door to door service. The fliers will be going out and they will be posted
on the County website, Mainstreet, and we'll link it on our city page.

Mayor Green addressed Mr. Fenn's remarks regarding “tourists don't pay utilities” Mr.
Fenn was taking about all of the utilities that generate and yes we are appreciative of
that but if you didn’t have tourists then you wouldn't have lights on in motels, and spas.
If those rooms were not rented, there would be no garbage that would be generated. If

Page 3 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

there were no rooms rented, there would be no water use and no toilets would be
flushed. So certainly do the citizens of T or C generate a lion share of the revenue that
is generated from our utilities yes, but to make a statement that tourists don’t help
contribute to the economic vitality of our community, | believe is making up facts that
don't exist.

PRESENTATIONS:

E. CONSENT CALENDAR

City Commission Regular Minutes, October 10, 2018

City Commission Regular Minutes, October 24, 2018

City Commission Special Executive Session Minutes, November 15, 2018
City Commission Special Executive Session Minutes, November 28, 2018
Public Utility Advisory Board Regular Minutes, August 20, 2018

November 2018 Accounts Payable

Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the Village of Williamsburg and
the City of Truth or Consequences related to Police Services

Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the Sierra County Commission,
Sierra County Detention, and the City related to the renewal of detainee
housing term.

9. FY 19 NM Fire Protection Grant Awards.

N~

=

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve the Consent Calendar as noted.
Commissioner Baca seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Public Hearing: Request for a Special Use Permit for mounting
Verizon antennas on the painted water tank at the end of West 2nd
Street. Applicant is Sean Milks, Gravity Pad:

Acting City Clerk Torres swore in Sean Milks and George Szigeti.

Proponents:

Sean Milks presented the Request for a Special Use Permit for mounting Verizon
antennas on the painted water tank at the end of West 2nd Street by noting that they
are a local New Mexico company that builds and manages several sites all over the
state. The proposal is to manage the water tank. They have come to a business
agreement with Verizon who also wants to come on the tank. They have also come to
an agreement with AT&T mobility to co-locate on the tank as well. They have a lease
before the board that they won't necessarily go into at this time but they will work over
the next several weeks to go through the legalities of it as well as the business terms of
that lease. Essentially, the goal is to bring a lump sum of revenue to the city
immediately and then as moving forward, a percentage of each carrier including
Verizon, At&t and he would be marketing it to the other carriers, T-Mobile and Sprint as

Page 4 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

well. To generate revenue for the city on a monthly basis as well as providing
desperately needed coverage in the downtown area. They will be managing the water
tank in the downtown area. They will be managing the water tank so the antennas will
not be affecting the existing tower that the city owns. They are going to have a 3™ party
modulation study to prove that the antennas that are proposed will not affect in any way
shape or form, the existing or future antennas that the city will be placing on the cell
support tower that's in front of it. Managing the site to insure that all the pemits,
environmental, FAA and FCC documentation is clear and up to date as well as correct.
They will also make sure that the future tenants paint to match the antennas so they
blend in with the water tank as best as possible.

Mayor Green asked if his agreement with Verizon and AT&T is verbal or contractual.

Sean Milks responded that they have a verbal agreement with Verizon. Once Gravity
Pad and they city hopefully come to an agreement and sign the document then legally
they will enter into a contractual agreement with Verizon as well as AT&T.

Commissioner Hechler asked that Mr. Milks get Fire Chief Tooley’s approval for and
signature to sign it off. Once they get a go ahead from him...that will help them make
their decision here as well. Once or if you get the approval, how long is it before
everything gets installed?

Sean Milks stated, typically if they get approval from the goveming body, the leases will
be signed which should take roughly 4-6 weeks. Concurrently, they will be filing building
permits with the City and the State CID for the electrical permits. The hope is that once
they get an approval from the governing body, materials will start to be ordered and they
will be looking into ordering power and things like that. Depending on that, typically it
takes about 3 months.

George Szigeti stated he is here as a representative of many business owners down
town. Every one of them have said that we desperately need cell service downtown. He
thinks this is a good way to do it and hopefully this will contribute to preservation of our
scenic water tank as well. That is a good use for some of the funds being generated by
this lease. We are a tourist destination and the biggest short coming that this town
currently has is the lack of cell service downtown and if we can remedy that it is going to
help all of our businesses and make things much better. It will help him personally
because he doesn't get a signal downtown either. So with that being said he really
hopes we go with this and fix this one short coming in our beautiful town.

Mayor Green closed the Public Hearing.

G. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTION, & ZONING:

1. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 21 18/19 Budget Adjustment. Melissa
Torres, Finance Director:

Page Sof 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Interim City Manager Cantin reviewed the budget adjustments as follows:

Description Amount Recommendation
General Fund- Revenue
Fund 101 $15,200 Increase Revenue — Miscellaneous Revenue

101-1099-37380

General Fund- Expense

Fund 101 $8,500 Increase Expense - From Miscellaneous Revenue
101-1001-44607 Increase — Special Election
Electric— Expense
Fund 503 $38,600 Increase Expense — From Ending Cash Balance — For
503-3702-80810 Electric Replacement Poles
Electric — Expense
Fund 503 $3,400 Increase Expense ~ From Ending Cash Balance — For
503-3702-80845 Enclosure of Electric Car Port

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve Resolution No. 21 18/19 Budget
Adjustment presented by Interim City Manager Cantin. Commissioner Baca
seconded the motion. Roll call vote was taken by the Clerk. Motion carried
unanimously.

H. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Discussion/Action: Approval of contract for new City Manager. Renee
Cantin, Acting City Manager:

Commissioner Hechler noted that the Commission has made a tentative selection for
their new City Manager. They have not negotiated to its completion a contract. There
are a couple of things up in the air, but it is a very good contract on behalf of the city. He
doesn'’t know how much they can disclose at this time without actually offering that
negotiation to the selected candidate.

Commissioner Clark she personally does not believe that it is discussable until it's
actually gone through the process.

City Attorney agreed since there is no signed agreement in place and we are basically
still under negotiation.

PRESENTATION:

Captain Mike Apodaca presented ACO Dee Brown with an award of retirement as well
as a certificate of appreciation.

NEW BUSINESS continued...

Page 6 of 12




CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

2. Discussion/Action: Final approval of the WAPA Contract. Bo Easley,
Electric Division Director:

Electric Department Director Easley presented the WAPA Contract. They did a
comparison from the old contract to the new contract. It shows the minor changes that
were made. The new contract was cleaned up and the definitions were explained more
clearly. The power sale raise will remain the same at 0.029 per kilowatt. City Attorney
Rubin and Appel both have looked at this contract and approved the changes.

Commissioner Clark moved to approve the Final approval of the WAPA Contract
as presented by Electric Department Director Easley.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

3. Discussion/Action: Approval to move forward with the AMR or AMI project.
Bo Easley, Electric Division Director:

Electric Department Director Easley reviewed the AMR/AMI Project Presentation by
explaining that meter readers average 200 meters read a day to stay ahead of the
billing cycle. Holiday seasons require more meters read a day to stay on schedule. It's
extra work if a meter reader is on vacation or is sick. Meter readers average 6 walking
miles a day and 108 miles a month walked by each meter reader. Meter readers are
exposed to injuries while reading meters. The benefits of an automatic meter reading
system is the ability to read meters in a shorter time period and they are not exposed to
as many hazards. There will also be less walking for meter readers and allows meter
readers to the assist line crew on projects. Accurate readings is also another benefit
and there will no longer be a need to go into customer’s yards or homes to read the
meters. It gives the customers more privacy also. The meter reading system is an
efficient system if they go with AMI or AMR inside the office and in the field. They'll only
have one meter reader technician who reads water and electric meters and will handle
work orders along with other duties. They will be able to read all meters in the city within
a reasonable time. A drive-by system can read electric meters while the technician is
reading water meters. He has required some AMI estimates. Recourse Wise has given
them an estimate and he has also received an estimate from EITEN. They also received
an AMI estimate from L & G which is not too much from an AMR estimate but it does
not include installing the meters. You've heard everyone talk about the AMI and how
much better the AMI is. Raton just did an RFP to go with the AMI and Sierra Electric
Cooperative is in the process of writing up there RFP to with AMI as well. He has heard
rumors that the AMR is an old system. Its 12-15 years old and everyone is getting rid of
it, but he also heard stories that it is still a good program. He is wanting the direction of
the Commission to see which system they feel is best.

Commissioner Clark stated that she understands that the AMR is something that came

out in the 80’s and the AMI is more of the 2000’s so it's like 20 years more up to date
then the AMR system. She doesn’t see any reason to go back to the 80’s necessarily

Page 7 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

because we are not in that decade any longer. So the AMR is the $657,000 and they
install and we install the AMI system. So this is going to take a little more money than
what we actually have up here that we can see because we are going to be putting our
labor into it. She had another concern that they talked about this with the water meters
and that was this constant pulsing. Is the AMI a constant pulse that goes out every
couple of seconds so you can read it when you go by or is it just something that you're
going to pick up on a monthly basis? That was a concern for a lot of the citizens when
we were talking about the water meters.

Electric Department Director Easley responded that can’t answer that because he is
strictly on the Electric right now.

Commissioner Clark stated that she also had a concern about having an electric meter
go out on one of her buildings that she just re-wired. She had to re-wire for a new meter
because the meter that was on her building, the wiring was not sufficient for the meters
that were available at the time.

Electric Department Director Easley stated that this will take care a lot of those
problems.

Aaron from Resource Wise responded to Commissioner Clark's concern regarding the
continuous pulse by saying on the water side, the water meter does send out a pulse to
the iTron antenna and then from there it would send out to the electric meter and then
from the electric meter to the mobile reader or the collector for AMI. The frequency that
is put out is a very low frequency. There is more radio frequency from you cell phone
than you will ever be exposed to with an AMI or AMR system.

Commissioner Clark asked how long it would take to change out the system in-house.

Electric Department Director Easley responded that it would take about a year to a year
and a half with keeping up with their regular duties and it would take approximately 4-5
months if we put it out for RFP.

Commissioner Hechler moved that they move ahead with Mr. Easley and his
department to get the required quotes for the AMI System to present back to our
Commission and to break out in sufficient detail the cost of the system and the
cost of installation so that we can make some comparisons and bring that back
for our review. And we have a guarantee that the system will be compatible with
all of the buildings in the city. Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.

4, Discussion/Action: Walmart Community Grant Program. Traci Burnette,
Grants Project Coordinator:

Grant/Projects Coordinator Burnette Walmart stated that Walmart has a funding
opportunity through their Walmart Community Grant Program that is offering 100%

Page 8 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

grant funds specifically within their public safety section. The 2018 grant application
deadiine is December 31%!. The awarded grants range from $250 to $5,000. The Police
Department would like to apply for the $5,000 grant for the purchase of raidar detectors
and a couple of computers within their department. If awarded, they would be notified
with any decision via email, sometime after January 4. If they are awarded they will
receive a check in the mail. The only responsibility from the Police Department and the
city would be to contact the local Walmart Facility and schedule some sort of recognition
and a thank you. Part of a requirement for this grant is a letter and we are requesting
that the Commission sign the letter and approve us to submit the application.

Commissioner Clark moved to approve the Walmart Community Grant Program
as presented by Grant/Projects Coordinator Burnette. Commissioner Hechler
seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

5. Discussion/Action: Topographic Survey Request for Foch Street Great
Blocks Project on MainStreet. Mayor Green:

Mayor Green received an email from William Powell who is a contractor to the
MainStreet program under Economic Development of the State of New Mexico. This
was brought to us once before that they wanted city buy in for this project. And we voted
$20,000 for the project and we thought that was kind of the end of it or beginning of it
and this email talks about topographic survey that they are now requesting. We called
Mr. Powell yesterday and asked him if we could use a portion of the $20,000 that we
have already been committed to, to use for the expense and the cost of this survey and
as of this moring Mr. Powell has not gotten back to us. So frankly, he cannot tell you
whether this is an additional request for additional money or if we can take $5,000 to
$10,000 out of the already appropriated $20,000 and ear mark that for the topo survey.

Mayor Green asked that this item be added to the 1t meeting in January so we will
have additional information on this project.

Commissioner Hechler stated that we could make a motion that if the money was
available that they would approve it and if it is not then it needs to come back before the
Commission.

Interim City Manager Cantin stated that she discussed with the Finance Director and
Finance, and they reviewed that the portion of money Kerin was telling her about is
already dedicated for this. So | think it is already in there but we did identify being that it
has to do with the streets and such we identified another pool of money that we can
use.

Linda DeMarino stated that it is her understanding from when applying for this is that
the $20,000 is to be used for things like this. One of the things the letter that was said
was “oh, we thought you had this already” so she's a little confused and she's sent off a
text, but she would think that it is probably going to come out of the $20,000.

Page 9 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Hechler moved to approve Topographic Survey Request for the
Foch Street Great Blocks Project on Main Street as presented, and that they use
the $20,000 funding that was pledged to the MainStreet Project to pay for this
survey if it's available. If it's not available, then he asks that it come back before
the Commission for further discussion and action. Commissioner Clark seconded
the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

6. Discussion: Elected Officials Salaries. Commissioner Clark:

Commissioner Clark asked that this item be added to next week's special meeting.

No action was taken on this item.

REPORTS:

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

interim City Manager Cantin reported the following:

The Airport well test results came out fairly well. They had a question on total
dissolve solids. They are looking into that and they have been directed to test the
well for E.-coli. The quotes are obtained and Traci is assisting us with the PO for
that and Sal will be doing the sample and sending it out for testing. We will need
to come up with a plan for compliance which will also include monthly testing.
That is the main issue for our compliance for over there.

She met with the Chief on his Police Department assessment which is very
impressive and she’ll send her recommendations for the Commission to review
and take a look at prior to the final authorization and we will probably have the
chief make a little report.

Since we have vacancies in both the supervisor and director positions in the
Water/Wastewater Department. She has been meeting with them each moming
to keep the communication open and make sure that very impontant services
continue and they don't feel like they don't have any leadership or direction and
give them what they need to do their jobs. She wants to give a special thanks to
Jeff Dombusch from the PUAB for his assistance in sharing his extensive
experience and knowledge in both water and wastewater. Commissioner
Hechler, herself and Commissioner Clark are searching for a qualified candidate
to bring in.

Business registration renewals went out on December 5",

Special Election voter registration closes next Tuesday. Ballots will be sent out
next Wednesday to all the voters who are registered in the Truth or
Consequences City limits by the Tuesday date. You can return them by maii or in
person to the City Clerk’s Office, not the County Clerk’s Office. There is no Early
voting or Absentee voting since every registered voter will be mailed a ballot and

Page 10 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

they have to be returned to the Clerk’s Office by mail or in person by January 15%
up to 7:00 p.m. and we will wait for the final details.

¢ Impact Fee Study Public Hearing is scheduled for the 2™ meeting in January.

» She thanked the city staff for all their hard work and wished everyone a Merry
Christmas.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS:
City Attorney Rubin had no report.
CITY COMMISSION REPORTS:

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead reported the following:
e Thanked everyone for all of their help. We had a great 2018 and she looks
forward to a great 2019.

Commissioner Hechler reported the following:
» Requested that the Golf Course be placed on the Special Meeting agenda. He
would also like Terry Taylor to attend the meeting.
* He also thanked Jeff Dombusch for helping the city these past few weeks.
» He also thanked Commissioner Clark for her dedication and efforts.

Commissioner Clark reported the following:
¢ She also thanked Commissioner Hechler for his dedication and efforts and she
also thanked Jeff Dornbusch for all of his help.

Commissioner Baca reported the following:
e He wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.

Mayor Green reported the following:

» He wished everyone a happy holiday, and the best in New Years.

» He has been told on more than one occasion by a lot of well-meaning folks,
Commissioners included, that if he writes down his thoughts, rather than
speaking extemporaneously, he could, and would, be a lot quicker in his
messaging. Today he will follow that advice. He has always lived his life
demanding that he give110% of himself to any job or activity he tackles. And
when he can no longer do that, and it would reflect poorly on himself, his wife
Paula, the Commission, the staff, and the citizens of Truth or Consequences,
then it is time to step down and let someone else be part of the relay team and
carry the torch. Therefore, effective 12:01 a.m. on January 1, 2019, he will resign
his appointment of Mayor and his Elected Office of City Commissioner. Just last
week he came across the following in a magazine. Meister Eckhart, a German
Theologian said “If the only prayer you said in your whole life was thank you that
would suffice.” He thanked Paula who has always stood by him, especially these
past 10 years and 10 months of elected life. He knows it was not the retirement
years she had envisioned, but none the less, she was there for him as an

Page 11 of 12



CITY COMMISSION DECEMBER 12, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

advisor, a cheerleader, a voice of reason, and put the welfare of the city and my
contributions as part of a team, foremost. Hopefully he will be granted the years
to show her his appreciation and gratitude.

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
1. Purchase, Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property (450 W. Riverside)
10-15-1H (8):

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead moved to approve going into executive session at
10:51 a.m. to discuss Purchase, Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property (450 W.
Riverside) 10-15-1H (8). Commissioner Hechler seconded the motion. Roll call
vote was taken by the Clerk. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Green reconvened the meeting in open session at 11:21 p.m.

Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead certified that only matters pertaining to Purchase,
Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property (450 W. Riverside) 10-15-1H (8) was
discussed in Executive Session and no action was taken.

L. ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED DURING EXECUTIVE SESSION, if any.
ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Hechler made a motion for staff to do additional research on this
item and bring it back to the Commission. Mayor Pro-Tem Whitehead seconded
the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

The Commission agreed to have the Special Meeting on Wednesday, December
19, 2018 at 3:00 p.m.

M. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Clark moved to adjourn at 11:23 a.m. Commissioner Hechler
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

Passed and Approved this day of , 2019,

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

Renee Cantin, CMC, Acting City Clerk

Page 12 of 12



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - DECEMBER 2018

BACKGROUND:

Click here to enter text.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

Accounts Payable List for December 2018

['Submlned by: Pat A. Wood, CPO Dapartment: Finance

Meeting date: 1/9/2019




Truth or Consequences

| hereby approve the Issuance of these payments.

FINANCE DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE DATE:
Vendor Name Payable Number
Fund: 101 - General

BANK QF AMERICA 056640
BANK OF AMERICA 056640
NMS5U CHILDREN'S LAW INSTIT... 111418
BEATRICE SANDERS 113018
BEATRICE SANDERS 113018

NM DEPT. OF PUBLIC SAFETY T... 113018

NM BOARD OF VETERINARY M... 113018

NM MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 13747/13763
NM MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 13747/13763
NATIONAL SEMINARS TRAINING 2215259
UBIQUS REPORTING, INC 367723/368603
BANK OF AMERICA 6415242
BANK OF AMERICA 702530
LYNN'S LANDSCAPE 7156

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-238248
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-238454
SIEARA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-238454
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST |1D-238454
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-233454
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST ID-238454
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-238454
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST ID-238982
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-239223
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST ID-239435
GARY E. GAYLORD, CPA TORC120118
MANANA 111-18

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, I... 111918

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, I... 111918

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, ... 111918
HERALD PUBLISHING CO., INC,  1166%
HERALD PUBLISHING CO., INC, 11675
HERALD PUBLISHING CO., INC, 11677/11678/11683
JAY RUBIN ATTORNEY AT LAW 120118
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418
RENEE L. CANTIN 120718
MELISSA L. TORRES 120718
MELISSA L. TORRES 120718
TRACI L. BURNETTE 120718

DS 121018

Post Date

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/218
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018

EOM AP Report

By Fund

Payment Dates 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

PAYASLE APPROVAL

Description {Item)

Extra long tablecloth, 100' Roll
Extra long tablecloth, 250' Roli

Registration Fee/Beatrice 5and...

MILEAGE DUE/ALBUQUERQUE
PER DIEM DBUE/ALBUQUERQUE
Background checks

Licensure application

Account Number

101-1014-34607
101-1014-44607
101-1002-42720
101-1002-42305
101-1002-42310
101-1008-43770
101-1008-43770

2018 LGD BUDGET CONFERENC... 101-1004-42720
2018 LGD BUDGET CONFERENC... 101-1004-42720
NEXT STEP - SP1 VOLUME 1 BO... 101-1009-42720
TRANSCRIPTION OF CITY COMM.. 101-1001-48598

Heawy duty shelving 101-1007-44606
Frigidaire portable a/c unit 101-1014-43403
PAINT DUGOUT AT FELT'S FIELD 1D01-1009-48599
Rear view mirror/G-53767 101-1009-47420
BLASTER PENETRATING CAT 101-1009-44607
TOOLS/ZIP TIES 101-1009-44607
CQ HITMP GREASE 14 02 101-1009-44607
27 RATCHET STRAP 101-1005-44607
ELECTRICAL TAPE 3/4 101-1009-44607

XBO TIE DOWN STRAP TWO PA... 101-1009-44607
Backup neutral safety switch/G... 101-1014-47420
Heater core 101-1014-47420
Ignition switch 101-1014-47420
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-CPA F... 101-1004-48596
Landscaping Services - Open PO... 101-1009-48539
GAS BILLS/ANIMAL SHELTER 101-1018-43780
GAS BILLS/NM WORKFORCE C.. 101-1018-43780
GAS BILLS/GENERAL 101-1018-43780
Veterans Wall Dedication Cere... 101-1010-43740
BID NOTICE/AWWTP & LIFT STAT... 101-1004-43740
PUBLICATIONS-OPEN PO FY 18-, 101-1001-43740
LEAGAL SERVICES - OPEN PO FY... 101-1000-43597
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 101-1003-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PQ FY .. 101-1004-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 101-1007-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 101-1008-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 101-1009-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PQ FY ... 101-1010-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 101-1011-43775
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 101-1014-43775
PER DIEM DUE/ALBUQUERQUE 101-1003-42310
MILEAGE DUE/ALBUQUERQUE  101-1004-42305
PER DIEM DUE/ALBUQUERQUE 101-1004-42310
PER DIEM DUE/ALBUQUERQUE  101-1010-42310
INTERNET SERVICE/PD OPEN P... 101-1007-43775

Amount

36.63
65.08
100.00
26.22
19.40
15.00
100.00
150.00
150.00
168.15
2,014.50
699.92
43216
434,00
420
7.84
7.06
38.20
55.40
16.70
19,99
41.21
3422
126.m1
3,678.96
900.00
107.93
65.86
1,057.61
108.50
109.02
242.86
4,608.39
110.62
110.62
464.10
108.73
55.32
11064
55.32
110.64
38.00
26.22
30.00
38.00
161.66

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 1 of 11



EOM AP Report
Vendor Name

ASHLEY LASCH

TALON SEPTIC & POTTY SERVICE
INTERNAL SEAVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
TURTLEBACK PEST CONTROL, ...
STEVEN L. SAGE

CITY UTILITIES

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC,

ALARM CONTROL TECHNOLOGL...
ALARM CONTROL TECHNOLOGI...
NU-WAY LAUNDRY & CLEANERS
ADVANTAGE LASER PRODUCTS, ..
WEX BANK

BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC

BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC

BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC

BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC

BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC

BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC

EWING IRRIGATION
FOXWORTH-GALBRATH
FOXWORTH-GALBRAITH
COPPLER LAW FIRM PC

TOS

GARY E. GAYLORD, CPA

XEROX CORP,

XEROX CORP,

XERQX CORP,

XEROX CORP,

XEROX CORP.

KERIN SALCEDOD

QUEST DIAGNOSTICS LAB, INC.
SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL

NM MURNICIPAL LEAGUE

QLILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

SIERRA VETERINARY SERVICES,L...
B&HOILCO.

B & HOILCO.

B & HOILCO.

B & HOILCO.

B &HOILCO.

B & HOIL CO.

WARM SPRINGS RENT ALL
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN

GARY E, GAYLORD, CPA

Fund: 201 - Corrections

NM JUDICIAL EDUCATION CENT...
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF
SIERRA COUNTY TREASURER

Payable Number

121018
121018
121018
121018
121018
121118
12122018
121318
142246/6
142246/6
182712/183713
183712/183713
31720

549101
577080
5975122
5975122
5975122
5975122
5975122
5975122
5636745
7430650
7431117/7431259

9874/9876/9881/9306

CCTOBER-TDS
TORC120818
095328656
095328657
095328659
095328561
095328677
120718
121918
121918
13554
3272696
3272696
3272696
3272696
3272696
3272696
3272696
45115/45455
46651
486653
46659
46660
46660
46661
48721
572868
572868
TORC121518

120318
120318
12172018

Post Date

12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/21/2018

Description {item)
REFUND/NON STERALIZED DEP...

Clean & Service Portables - Ope..,

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Account Number

101-1008-45555
101-1008-47410

QIL-MAINT-S5AFETY 11/18 101-1009-47420
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 101-1014-43316
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 101-1014-47420

PEST CONTROL SERVICES - OPEN..101-1014-44607
Services/Public Defender - Open..101-1002-48539
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE AEB/OPEN..101-1018-43780
staintess steel bolts 5 Inch X 1/4 ,,101-1014-43403
ADA shower head for pool 101-1014-43403
MONTHLY FIRE ALARM MONIT... 101-1014-47410
MONTHLY FIRE ALARM MORIT... 101-1014-47410

CLEANING OF OTY RUGS
CPE05-BP CHECX STOCK/BOTT...
Unleaded Fuel - Open PO FY 18...
large black trash liners

small trash liner black

center pull paper towels

Bafex Disinfectant

swifter starter kit

swifter re-fills

101-1014-44607
101-1004-44606
101-1003-43316
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607

BSN VARSITY FOUL POLES 20FT ... 101-1009-44607
25 - 3/4 X 79 METAL SLA8 NO P... 101-1009-44607
3/8 X 3 1/2 inch strike ancors b... 101-1014-43403
LEAGAL SERVICES - OPEN PO FY... 101-1000-43597
TO5 FIBER INTERNET OPEN PO ... 101-1018-43780
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-CPA F... 101-1004-4B596
BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE 0...101-1001-44810
BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE FY..101-1004-44810
Base Charge - Meter Usage Ope... 101-1007-44810
BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE O... 101-1002-60840

Base Charge/Meter Usage - Op...
PER DIEM DUE/ALBUQUERQUE
Sreening & MAQ Fee; Library
Collection Fee: Libray

REGISTRATION FEE- RENEE CAN...

MULTI COLOR LASER TONER CA...
DURACELL AA BATTERIES

2019 MONTHLY DESK CALENDAR
15 COUNT CERTIFICATE PAPER
ERASABLE WALL CALENDAR
LASER TONER - BLACK CARTRID...
QUILL COPY PAPER

Open PO for the animal shelter
Unleaded Fuef - Open PO FY 18...
Unleaded fuel - OPEN PO FY 18...
Unleaded Fuel - OPEN PO FY 1B...
Unleaded Fuel - Open PO FY 18...
Diesel Fuel - Open PO FY 18/19
Unleaded fuel - Open PO FY 18...
RENT 3" TRASH PUMP FOR ONE...
Steel Toe Boots/John Watts
Stee! Toe Boots/Dale Sanders
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-CPAF..,

JUDICIAL EDUCATION FEES
DWI LAB FEES/PREVENTION FE...
Prisoner Care Open PO FY 18-19

101-1003-44810
101-1004-42310
101-1016-44615
101-1016-44615
101-1001-42720
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1008-48599
101-1007-43316
101-1012-43316
101-1014-43316
101-1009-43316
101-1009-43317
101-1008-43316
101-1009-44607
101-1014-44515
101-1014-44615
101-1004-48596
Fund 101 - General Total:

201-1903-44805
201-1903-44805
201-1903-48710

Fund 201 - Corrections Total:

Amount

25.00
800.00
5,00
3675
1.10
814.46
2,821.00
2,476.13
1690
4698
2697
2657
155.77
501.44
47.15
214.22
207.00
90,00
B89.77
22.46
22.44
1,278.70
12500
406.20
6.158.43
2,484.01
1,121.90
342,50
22436
21836
249.33
339.93
30.00
108.80
50.00
180.00
236.15
10.90
4.89
27753
70.08
52.79
137.25
71.83
2,608.76
35.85
659.93
215.65
120.80
390.75
75.95
150.00
150.00

2,742.37

46,796.97

81.00
162.00
1,995.00
2,238.00

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 2 of 11



EOM AP Report
Vendor Name

Fund: 209 - Fire

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, I...
NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, I...
MEGAHERTZ COMPUTER CONS...
CITY UTILITIES

TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
XEROX CORP.

Fund: 211 - Law Enforce Prot
RANDALL ARAGON

GALLS INC.

LAW ENFORCEMENT TECHNOL...
LAW ENFORCEMENT TECHNOL...

Fund: 214 - Lodgers Tax
UNDMARK QUTDOOR MEDIA
GERONIMOD TRAIL 5CENIC BYW...
GRIFFIN & ASSOCIATES MARKET...
GRIFFIN & ASSOCIATES MARKET...
JOHN DEERE CREDIT, BNC.

Fund: 216 - Munl Street
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
ROCK BOTTOM SERVICE, LLC
ROCX BOTTOM SERVICE, LLC
ROCK BOTTOM SERVICE, tLC
ROCK BOTTOM SERVICE, LLC
BARTOO SAND & GRAVEL, INC.
BARTOO SAND & GRAVEL, INC.
SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL
QUEST DIAGNOSTICS LAB, INC.
B& K OILCO,

B&HOILCO,

CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
GEO-TEST, INC.

Fund: 217 - Recreatlon
ALBUQUERGUE FENCE CO.
ALBUQUERGUE FENCE CD.

Fund: 294 - State Library
XEROX CORP.
105

Fund: 295 - Muni Pool

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, I...
DESTINY MITCHELL

SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL

QUEST DIAGNOSTICS LAB, INC.

Payable Number

111918
111918
1821
121318
26143
095328665

121218
011379721
121018
121018

10957/10960
120818
13571

13571
2092201

1B-238510
1D-238647
1D-239220
1D-239220
121018
121018
13607
13607
13607
13607
M27794
M27794
121918-3
121918-3

46654/46490/46582
46654/46480/46582

572867
572867
B3865/88906

105758
105759

095328673
121918

111918
4428
121918-2
121918-2

Post Date

12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/1472018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018

12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018

12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

Description (item)

GAS BILLS/FIRE STATION

GAS BILLS/FIRE SOUTH STATION
INTERNET SERVICE - OPEN POF...
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE ASB/OPEN..
FUEL ALL TRUCKS 11/18

BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE FY..

ADVANCED PER DIEM/ALBUQU...
Classic Police Jacket - Chief Ara...
Registration Fee/Instructor Refr...
Registration Fees/Instructor de...

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Account Number

209-1603-43780
209-1603-43780
209-1603-43770
205-1603-43780
205-1603-43316
209-1603-43770

Fund 202 - Fire Total:

211-2003-42535
211-2003-44573
211-2003-42535
211-2003-42535

Fund 211 - Law Enforce Prot Total:

City Advertising- Open PO FY 18...
Geronimo Trall Grant/Funding -...
Advertising/City - Open POFY 1...
Account Management Open PO...
LEASE PAYMENT JO GRMW/FAI...

Brake shoes - G-31161

Lug nut stud - G-31161

Upper ball joint

Lower ball joint
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18

Labor

Freight

Supplies

Replact Injector

Hot mix delivered and placed
Class AA concrete w/AER and fi...
Collection Fee - Streets
Screening & MRO Fee - Streets
tnleaded Fue! - Open PO FY 18...
Diesel fuel - Open PO FY 18/19
Wrangler Shirts/Chris Morehead
Wrangler Jeans/Chris Morehead
Concrete/asphalt testing - OPEN..

MATERIALS FOR FENCE AT FELT"..,
LABOR CHARGES

Meter Usage - Open PO FY 18/19
internet Service/Library Open ...

GAS BILLS/SWIMMING POOL
Lifeguard/CPR/First Ald/AED Tra..
Collection Fees- Pool

Screening & MRO Fees- Peol

214-2503-47597
214-2503-48815
214-2503-47597
214-2503-48599
214-2503-44810

Fund 214 - Lodgers Tax Total:

216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-43316
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-32840
216-4503-32840
216-4503-44615
216-4503-44615
216-4503-93316
216-4503-43317
216-4503-42620
216-4503-42620
216-4503-48598
Fund 216 - Munl Street Total:

217-1703-60840
217-1703-60840
Fund 217 - Recreation Total:

294-5003-48599
294-5003-48830
Fund 294 - State Library Total:

295-4803-43780
295-4803-42720
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615

Fund 295 - Muni Pool Total:

Amount

191.82
129.63
54.25
285.44
7058
304.60
1,036.32

213.60
51.64
60.00

450.00

775.24

844.84
416.66
380.00
29.93
950.73
2,622.16

100.64
19.96
44,12
67.50

221.89

108.98

427.75
25.00

6.00
116.01
17,088.75
10,407.05
25.00
54.40

149.82

857.52

162.00

138.00

1,873.81

31,894.20

17,500.00

10,356.00

28,256.00

15.41
108.45
123.86

1,135.60
175.00
25.00
54.40
1,390.00

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 3 of 11



EOM AP Report
Vendor Name

Fund: 302 - Elec Construction
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..

Fund: 302 - Vet Wall

BANK OF AMERICA

BANK OF AMERICA

AMERICAN LASER MARK, INC
AMERICAN LASER MARK, INC
COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONALS...

Fund: 306 - C1 it Ut
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..
WILLIAM | BUHLER

Fund: 309 - USDA WWTP
SMITH ENGINEERING COMPANY

Fund: 501 - Cemetary
CITY UTILITIES

TiM McCOY
REBECCA TRUJILLD

Fund: 502 - Utll Office - Pool
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
HERALD PUBLISHING €O, INC,
VERIZON WIRELESS
POSTMASTER

PITNEY BOWES INC.

WEX BANK

CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
XEROX CORP.

B&HOILCO.

Fund: 503 - Electric
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G ..
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST

SSA SOLAR OF NM 4, LLC

NEW MEXSCO GAS COMPANY, 1...
VERIZON WIRELESS

SAENZ CONSTRUCTION

SIERRA ELECTRIC CO-OP, INC.
SIERRA ELECTRIC CO-OP, INC.
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Ty UTILITIES

TRIPLE H SOLAR, LLC

TRI-STATE GENERATION & TRA...
ZIA UTIUTY SERVICES, LLC

ZIA UTILITY SERVICES, LLC

ZIA UTILITY SERVICES, LLC

ZIA UTIUTY SERVICES, LLC

ZIA UTILITY SERVICES, LLC

ZIA UTIUTY SERVICES, LLC

Payable Number

120318

249944
553952
093864
033864
24-082001

120318
120318
120318
120218

47931

121318
3804
KROO1306

10-239628
11235
120418
121018
3307621011
518355
572865
572865
572865
095157872
46655

65470
6470
6470
10-239507
10395
111918
120418
120518
120618
120618
121018
121318
158
301841
3693
3654
36594
3654
3694
3654

Post Date

12/04/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
13/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018

12/14/2018

12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
1241472018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Description (item) Account Number

NMFA LOAN PMTS FY 18/19/T... 302-4603-12906

Fund 302 - Elec Construction Total:

Shipping and Insurance Cost for ., 303-4703-60840
Planter Box with Liner for Veter... 303-4703-60840
Vet Wall Panel |D 26W Replace... 303-4703-60840

Crate for shipping Panal 26W
Install Granite Wall of Names

303-4703-60840
303-4703-60840
Fund 303 - Vet Wall Total:

NMFA LOAN PMTS FY 18/19/T... 306-6103-12902
NMFA LOAN PMTS FY 18/19/T... 306-6103-12918
NMFA LOAN PMTS FY 18/19/T... 306-6103-12919
FISH POND WATER RIGHTS FY 1... 306-6103-80840

Fund 306 - C1 Jt Uti Total:

Engineering Services/WWTP Ph... 309-6403-60810

Fund 309 - USDA WWTP Total:

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE ABB/OPEN..501-1803-43780

Fund 501 - Cemetary Total;

REFUND/CEMETERY LOTS 501-1803-34355
REFUND/CEMETERY LOT 501-1803-34355
Battery/G-88439 502-3601-47420

HELP WANTED ADS/UTILTY OFF.. 502-3601-43740
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 502-3601-43775
POSTAGE & MAIL SERVICES 502-3601-43735
MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS - O... 502-3601-47410
UNLEADED FUEL - OPEN PO FY... 502-3601-43316
METER READER JACKET- JULIO ... 502-3601-42620
METER READER JACKET- JOSHU... 502-3601-42620
METER READER JACKET- BRIAN ... 502-2601-42620
Xerox FY 18/1% 502-3601-44810
UNLEADED FUEL OPEN PO FY 1... 502-3601-43316

Fu

labor: Install Wallplates & termi...
B Port POE Switches with vian/...
Wall Plate B CatSe Port Connec...
F56 Bottle- Gas

POWER SERVICE/OPEN PO FY 1...
GAS BILLS/ELECTRIC

CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ...
Ballard Settings

MIMS CITY LIGHTS FY 18/15
POWER SERVICES FY18/19
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE ARB/QPEN..
ENGINEERING SERVICE/QPEN P...
POWER SERVICE FY18/19- WHE...
CLASS 0 GLOVES S1IZE9

New Class 2 Molded Sleeves- Ex...
New Class 2 Molded Sleeves- La...
Glove Testing

Sleeve Testing

New Class 0 Gloves- Size 10

nd 502 - Util Office - Pool Total:

503-3702-44606
503-3702-44606
503-3702-44606
503-3702-47415
503-3702-50795
503-3702-43780
503-3702-43775
503-3702-47415
503-3702-43780
503-3702-50795
503-3702-43316
503-3702-43780
503-3702-48599
503-3702-50795
503-3702-44615
503-3702-44615
503-3702-34615
503-3702-34615
503-3702-44515
503-3702-44615

Amount

9,914.21
9,914.21

407.44
7.633.60
1,600.00

200.00

24,448.31

34,283.35

10,022.32
690.58
7,598.71
450.00
18,761.61

29,231.40

29,231.40

9.49
400.00
400.00
809.49

83.98
24.68
110.64
5,000.00
675.78
24,79
70.00
70.00
70.00
536.29
436.68
7,102.84

85.00
351.32
33.00
845.99
21,773.24
26.97
55.32
705.25
588.34
136,093.08
10.00
369.92
3,843.90
34,051.27
272.00
347.00
302.00
140.00
100.00
68.00

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 4 of 11



EOM AP Report

Vendor Name

WESTERN UNITED ELECTRIC
WESTERN UNITED ELECTRIC
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMIN
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEME...

XEROX CORP.

BOHANNAN HUSTON INC
QUEST DIAGNOSTICS LAB, INC.

SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
B&HOILCO.
B&HOILCO.

Fund: 504 - Water
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTQ/CARQUEST

LAS CRUCES 5UN NEWS

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, [...
HERALD PUBLISHING CO., INC,

VERIZON WIRELESS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

CITY UTILITIES

SUN VALLEY, INC.
SUN VALLEY, INC.
SUN VALLEY, INC,
SUN VALLEY, INC.
SUN VALLEY, INC.
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
REED'S TIRE CENTER
DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.
DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.

STEVE BELL CONSTRUCTION

PURE OPERATIONS, LLC
PURE OPERATIONS, LLC

TAXATION AND REVENUE

REED'S TIRE CENTER
B&HOILCO.
B &HOILCO.

Fund: 505 - Sofld Waste

TITAN MACHINERY, INC
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN

Payable Number

4126161
4126161
1IPB1798A1118
NMNMO0029065
095328678
103946
121918-1
121918-1
3145801
3145801
3145801
31458Mm
3145801
3145801
3145801
3145801
3145801
3145801
3145801
46658/46500
46658/46500

572863
572863
1D-238247
1D-238633
1D-238633
101267890
111918
11672
120418
121018
121318
142150/6
142150/6
142150/6
142150/6
142150/6
572866
572866
572866
5935
747003051-18
747003051-18
€17469
Ni1B2846
NI1B2B46
121418
5972
70033
70023

11764640
572864
572864
572864
572864
572864

Post Date

12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/1472018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
13/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/23/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018

Description (item)

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Account Number

Crossarms-3 3/4x4 3/4x8 W/Spli..503-3702-47415
Brace Arm Wood #PSCRAGDI8  S03-3702-47415

POWER SERVICE FY18/19

MONITORING FEE

503-3702-50795
503-3702-43770

BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE FY..503-3702-44810
Engineering Services/Cielo Vista...503-3702-48599
Screening & MRO Fees- Electric.., 503-3702-44615
Coflection Fees- Electric Depar... 503-3702-44615

Color Inkjet Printer 503-3702-44606
Executive Chalr 503-3702-44606
City of TorC Envelopes 503-3702-44606
Dry Erase Caddy 503-3702-44606
House of Doolittle 2019 Desk P... 503-3702-44606
Door Hangars 503-3702-44606
Biue Pilot G2 Pens 503-3702-44606
2019 Desk Pad Catendar 503-3702-44606
Business Card Refill Pages 503-3702-44606

Fine Point Permanent Marker  503-3702-44606
Ultra fine Point Permanent Mar... 503-3702-44606
UNLEADED FUEL FY 18/19 503-3702-43316
DIESEL FUEL FY 18/19 503-3702-43317

Fund 503 - Electric Total:

Wrangler Shirts-Tino Luna 504-3803-42620
Wrangler leans- Tino Luna 504-3803-42620
Flasher Relay/G-55956 $04-3803-47420
E Oxgen Refill 504-3803-44607
Small Presto Lit 504-3803-44607
RFP NOTICE/ENGINEERING SERV..504-3803-43740
GAS BILLS/WATER 504-3803-43780

RFP NOTICE/ENGINEERING SERV..504-3803-43740
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 504-3803-43775

OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 504-3803-43316
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..504-3803-43780
5 Pk 3/8/" Acld Brush 504-3803-44607
B OZ #95 Lead Free Flux 504-3803-44607
1-1/2 Sch 80 Male Adapter 504-3803-44607
1-1/2 CXF Adapter 504-3803-44607
1LB Lead Free Sclder 504-3803-43607
Jacket-Tim Hanna 504-3803-42620
Jacket-5al Martinez 504-3803-42620
Coverall-Otto Vienna 504-3803-42620

Front tires - 12.5/80/18 - D 21... 504-3803-47420
Chlorine Cylinders 1581bs - Ope... 504-3803-44605
Hazemat Fee 504-3803-44605
Bedding Sand-For Pipetine Repa... 504-3803-47415
Hydro Instruments-Series 900 V... 504-3803-47421
Chlorine Gas Ejector,50 PPD,w/... 504-3803-47421
WATER CONSERVATION FEE 11... 504-3803-43797
Tire repair and boot/JD 3105K B...504-3803-47420
Unleaded Fuel 504-3803-43316
Diesel Fuel/ Def 2.5 504-3803-43317

Fund 504 - Water Total;

Flange Nut, HE For Case Skidloa... 505-3904-47420
Wrangler Jeans-5¢ott Huron 505-3504-42620
Wrangler Shirts-Andres Alvarez 505-3504-42620
Work Shirts- Shannon Crowder  505-3904-42620
Work Shirts- Scott Huron 505-3904-42620
Wrangler Jeans-Andres Alvarer  505-3904-42620

Amount

2,162.50
147.50
52,341.21
125.00
44,69
812.34
54.40
25.00
299.99
76.86
72.80
19.28
17.94
17.47
12,56
3.8
4.18
8.12
8.12
293,98
638.07
257,247.59

162.00
138.00
5.99
13.56
35.00
3891
75.12
39.76
55.32
13.03
484.38
2.49
10.99
14,88
25.76
€63.98
69.00
€9.00
79.00
648.00
900.00
46.50
456.00
1,980.00
503.50
914.76
60.00
562.18
393.1¢
7,861.31

11.40
143.94
137.94
137.94
137.94
14394

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 5 of 11



EOM AP Report
Vendor Name

CHERRILL'S WESTERN

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST

SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EGUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN ECHLIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT ...
NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, |..

HERALD PUBLISHING CO., INC,
VERIZON WIRELESS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

BORDER TIRE, LLC

O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, INC.
DESERT GRAPHICS INC.

CITY OF LAS CRUCES

BORDER INTERNATIONAL, LLP
BORDER INTERNATIONAL, LLP
XERQX, CORP.

B & HOWCO.

8 & H OIL CO.

Fund: 506 - WWTP
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAB
INTERLAR
INTERLAB

AQUA ENVIRONMENTAL TESTI...
AQUA ENVIRONMENTAL TESTL...

CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN
CHERRILL'S WESTERN

NEW MEXICO GAS COMPANY, I...

VERIZON WIRELESS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
CITY UTILITIES

JAMES, COOKE & HORSON, INC.

1.5, DISTRIBUTING, INC,

Payable Number

572864
10-235219
10-239219
ID-239219
ID-233408
ID-239408
036412
035412
036412
03412
036412
036412
036421
036421
036421
036421
036421
111913
11234
120418
121018
121018
142546/6
142546/6
3002473
380222
5527
60577
X400028439
X400028439

095401776/095328664

46652
46652

22532
22532
22532
22532
22532
22532
22557
22557
22557
22557
S060
5060
572861
572861
572861
572861
572861
572861
111918
120418
121018
121018
121318
238364/228573
359899

Post Date

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/1472018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018
12/21/2018

12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/04/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018
12/14/2018

Description {item)

Wrangler leans-Shannon Crow...

Hydrotic hose fitting
Hydrolic hose {inches)
Hydrolic hose fitting

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Account Number

505-3904-42620
505-3904-47420
505-3304-47420
505-3504-47420

Alr line fitting 1/4" pipe 505-3904-47420
Alr line fitting 1/8" pipe 505-3304-47420
Snap rings 505-3904-47420
Machined bushings 505-3904-47420
Gate latch rollers 505-3904-47420
End gate cylinder 505-3904-47420
Gate cylinder pins 505-3904-47420
Freight 505-3904-47420
Mast extension cyliner 505-3904-47420
Lock washer 505-3904-47420
Hex nut 505-3904-47420
Ear structure 505-3904-47420
Freight 505-3904-47420

GAS BILLS/RECYCLE CENTER 505-3904-43780
Help Wanted - Solid Waste 505-3904-43740
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 505-3304-43775
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 505-3804-93316
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 505-3904-47420
16" Gate Mouth Tool Bag, to ho...505-3504-44607
1702 Spray Adhesive for poly ra... 505-3904-44607
11 R225 Spread Axie- Retreads t.. 505-3904-47420
DEF Fluid for Trash Trucks 505-3904-47420
Welding Repairs Trash truck G-... 505-3904-47420
Solid Waste Disposal Transport -.. 505-3904-34601
Fuel-water separator filters 505-2904-47420)
Fuel filters/G-95575 505-3504-47420
LAG-283718 Meter Usage 505-3504-44810
Unleaded Fuel - Open PO FY 18... 505-3504-43316
Diesel Fuel - Open PO FY 18/19  505-3504-43317

Fund 505 - Solid Waste Total:

Cadmium 506-4005-44605
T55-Effluent 506-4005-44505
Bod-Influent 506-4005-44505
Bod-Effluent 506-4005-44605
Acrylonitrile 506-4005-44605
TSS-Influent 506-4005-34605
TDS 506-4005-44605
NO3N 506-4005-44605
Chloride 506-4005-44605
TKN 506-4005-44605
TAX 506-4005-44605

WeeklyTesting- E-Coli {June?27-)... 506-4005-44605
Wrangler Shirts L/S- Jesus Navar.. 506-4005-42620
Wrangler ShirtsL/S- Patrick Lov... 506-4005-42620
Wrangler Jeans-Patrick Loveall  506-2005-42620
Wrangler 5hirts L/S- Leo Martin... 506-4005-42620
Wrangler Jeans-Leo Martinez ~ 506-4005-42620
Wrangler Jeans- Jesus Navarro  506-4005-42620
GAS BILLS/VACUUM STATIONS  506-4005-43780
CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ... 505-4005-43775
OIL-MAINT-S5AFETY 11/18 506-4005-43316
OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 505-4005-47420
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE ABB/OPEN..506-4005-43780
Rental Control Pane),460/3/60 ... 506-4005-43416
65P Battery - G-61009 506-4005-47420

Amount

143.94
17.81
13.76
16.94

6.19
738
4.60
15.00
65.70

650.00

120.00
78.93

725.00

0.90

175
25.00
77.42
96.24
24.68
55.32

297.65
78.35
33.64
10.99

1,224.00
239.80
184.45

27,901.87
17,92
70.06
3332

290.7%

2,444.11

35,686.71

225.00
45.00
105.00
105.00
630.00
141.00
15.00
15.00
15.90
40.00
9.83
145.50
168.00
162.00
138.00
138.00
138.00
156.00
2305
110.64
12.50
3778
265.29
3,153.76
64.31

1/472019 2:14:38 PM

Page 6 of 11



EOM AP Report Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018
Vendor Name Payable Number Post Date Description {Item) Account Number Amount
Warm Springs Rent All 48686 12/14/2018 3" Trash Pump Rental-3 dayRen... 506-4005-47425 303.80
TED D MILLER ASSOCIATES, INC 5704 12/14/2018 Calibration of Isco 4210/3010 ... 506-4005-47425 450.00
CHERRILL'S WESTERN 572866 12/14/2018 Jacket- Patrick Loveall 506-4005-42620 69.00
CHERRILL'S WESTERN 572866 12/14/2018 lacket- Ramon Sanchez 506-4005-42620 69.00
USA BLUEBOOK 745535 12/14/2018 TSS Glass Fiber Filters * Plus sh...506-4005-43416 111.64
PURE OPERATIONS, LLC NI182816 12/14/2018 1/8" Thick Neoprene Gasket Sh... 506-4005-43416 78.91
VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG 121418 12/21/2018 SEWER RECEIPTS 11/18 506-4005-48798 2,811.87
INTERLAB 22563 12/21/2018 Bod-Influent 506-4005-44605 140.00
INTERLAB 22563 12/21/2018 TSS-Influent 506-4005-445605 188.00
INTERLAB 22563 12/21/2018 Cadmium 506-4005-44605 300.00
INTERLAB 22563 12/21/2018 Acrylonitrile 506-4005-44605 B840.00
INTERLAB 22563 1272172018 T55-Effluent 506-4005-44605 60,00
INTERLAB 225863 12/21/2018 Bod-Effluent 506-4005-44605 140.00
B&HOILCO. 46656 12/21/2018 Unleaded Fue! 506-4005-43316 524.85
BE&HOILCO 46656 12/21/2018 Diesel Fuel 506-4005-43317 96.92
DPC INDUSTRIES, INC. DE-74000831-18 12/21/2018 Demurrage/Rental of Chiorine ... 506-4005-44607 40.00
Fund 506 - WWTP Total: 12,287.55
Fund: 507 - Solld Waste Transfer Station
XEROX CORP. 095401776/095328664 12/23/2018 E1B-082733 Base Charge/Meter.. 507-4203-44810 52.92
BE&HCILCO. 46627 12/21/2018 Diesel for Bulk Tank - Open PO ... 507-4203-43317 814.74
Fund 507 - Solid Waste Transfer Station Total: 507.66
Fund: 508 - Golf Course
CITY UTILITIES 121318 12/14/2018 CITY UTILITIES CYCLE ABB/OPEN..508-4303-43780 630.20
TERRY TAYLOR 143 12/21/2018 Golf Course Misc Expense - Ope...508-4303-45555 103.83
TERRY TAYLOR 143 12/21/2018 Golf Course Management Servi... 508-4303-48599 10,850.00
Fund 508 - Golf Course Total: 11,584.03
Fund: 509 - Muni Aleport
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-239221 12/04/2018 Battery Sitver £5-1 509-4403-47420 95.85
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST 1D-239222 12/04/2018 Distributor rotor 509-4403-47420 12.20
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST ID-239222 12/04/2018 Distributor cap 509-4403-47420 17.65
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST ID-239222 12/04/2018 Spark plugs 509-4403-47420 14.34
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST ID-239222 12/04/2018 Spark plug wires 509-4403-47420 26.01
VERIZON WIRELESS 120418 12/14/2018 CELL PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY ...509-4403-43775 £5.32
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 121018 12/14/2018 OIL-MAINT-5AFETY 11/18 509-4403-43316 13.75
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 121018 12/14/2018 OIL-MAINT-SAFETY 11/18 509-4403-47420 2.45
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS... 1811264 12/14/2018 Metals Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 95.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...1811264 12/14/2018 Anions Water Sample Test 505-4403-44605 70.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...1811264 12/14/2018 Sulfide Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 40.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS. . 1811264 12/14/2018 Metals Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 25.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS. . 1811264 12/14/2018 Tax 509-4403-44605 28.74
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...1811264 12/14/2018 Total Dissolved Water Sample 7... 509-4403-44605 25.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS... 1811264 12/14/2018 Alkalinity Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 25.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS... 1811264 12/14/2018 Turbidity Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 25.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...1811264 12/14/2018 Specific Conductance Water Sa... 509-4403-44605 25.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS... 1811264 12/14/2018 pH Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 20.00
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS... 1811264 12/14/2018 Hardness Water Sample Test 509-4403-44605 5.00
U.5. DISTRIBUTING, INC. 359897 12/14/2018 75P Battery G-28463 509-4303-47420 56.52
TRAVERS & ASSOCIATES 63395 12/14/2018 AIRPORT LIABILITY INSURANCE ... 503-4403-46732 2,875.00
B & H OIL CO. 46662 12/21/2018 Unleaded Fue! - Open PQ FY 18.., 509-4403-43316 111.81
Fund 509 - Muni Airport Total: 3,674.64
Grand Total: 544,491.14
1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM Page 7 of 11



EOM AP Report

Fund

101 - General
201 - Corrections
209 - Fire

211 - Law Enforce Prot

214 - Lodgers Tax

216 - Muni Street

217 - Recreation

294 - State Library

295 - Munl Pool

302 - Elec Construction

303 - Vet Wall
306 - ChJr Utl

309 - USDA WWTP

501 - Cemetary

502 - Util Office - Pool

503 - Electric
504 - Water

505 - Salld Waste
506 - WWTP

507 - Solid Waste Transfer Station

508 - Golf Course

509 - Muni Airport

Account Number
101-1000-43597
101-1001-42720
101-1001-43740
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44810
101-1001-48598
101-1002-42305
101-1002-42310
101-1002-42720
101-1002-48599
101-1002-60840
101-1003-42310
101-1003-43316
101-1003-43775
101-1003-44810
101-1004-42305
101-1004-42310
101-1004-42720
101-1004-43740
101-1004-43775
101-1004-44606
101-1004-44810
101-1004-48596
101-1007-43316
101-1007-43775
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44310
101-1008-43316
101-1008-43770
101-1008-43775
101-1008-45555

Fund Summary

Grand Total:

Account Summary

Account Name

ATTORNEY FEES-GOVERN...
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-OFF...

PRINTING/PUBLISHING
OFFICE SUPPLIES

EQUIPMENT & MACHINE...

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MILEAGE REIMBURSEME...
PER DIEM-MUNI COURT
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-M..,
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

OTHER CAP PUR/ADC/IID ...

PER DIEM-OFF CITY MAN...
GAS & OIL

TELEPHONE

EQUIPMENT & MACHINE...
MILEAGE REIMBURSEME...
PER DIEM-ADMIN OFFICES
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-AD...
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES
EQUIPMENT & MACHINE...

ALDIT CONTRACT-ADMIN...

GAS & OIL
TELEPHONE
OFFICE SUPPLIES

EQUIPMENT & MACHINE. ..

GAS&OIL
SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE
Miscellaneuos Exp

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Report Summary

Payment Amount
46,796.97
2,238.00
1,036.32
775.24
2,622.16
31,894.20
28,256.00
123.86
1,390.00
9,914.21
34,289.35
1B,761.61
29,231.40
B09.49
7,102.84
257,247.59
7.861.31
35,686.71
12,287.55
807.66
11,584.03
3,674.64
544,491.14

Payment Amount
10,766.88
180.00
242,86
789.09
342,50
2,014.50
26.22
19,40
100.00
2,821.00
249.33
38.00
47.15
110.62
339.93
26.22
60.00
300.00
109.02
110.62
501.44
224.36
7,543.23
2,608.76
625.76
699.92
21836
390.75
115.00
108.73
25,00

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 8 of 11



EOM AF Report

Account Number
101-1008-48599
101-1008-42720
101-1009-43316
101-1009-43317
101-1009-43775
101-1009-44607
101-1009-47410
101-1009-47420
101-1003-48599
101-1010-42310
101-1010-43740
101-1010-43775
101-1011-43775
101-1012-43316
101-1014-43316
101-1014-43403
101-1014-43775
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44615
101-1014-47410
101-1014-47320
101-1016-44615
101-1018-43780
201-1903-44805
201-1903-48710
209-1603-43316
209-1603-43770
209-1603-43780
211-2003-42535
211-2003-44573
214-2503-44810
214-2503-47597
214-2503-48599
214-2503-48815
216-4503-32840
216-4503-42620
216-4503-43316
216-4503-43317
216-4503-44615
216-4503-47420
216-4503-48598
217-1703-60840
294.5003-43599
294-5003-48830
295-4803-42720
285-4803-43780
295-4803-44615
302-4603-12906
303-4703-60840
306-6103-12902
306-6103-12918
306-6103-12919
306-6103-80840
309-6403-60810
501-1803-34355
501-1803-43780
502-3601-42620
502-3601-43316

Account Summary

Account Name

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE..

EMPLOYEE TRAINING-M...
GAS & OIL
DIESEL-RECREATION
TELEPHONE

FIELD SUPPLIES-MUNI RE...
Maintenance Contracts
MAINTENANCE VEHICLE/...

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...

PER DIEM-BLDG INSPECT...
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
TELEPHONE

TELEPHONE

GAS&OIL

GAS & OIL

REGULAR BUILDING MAI...
TELEPHONE

FIELD SUPPLIES-FACILITY ...
SAFETY EQUIPMENT

MAINTENANCE CONTRAC...

MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...
SAFETY EQUIPMENT
UTILITIES
AUTO/LAB/DWI/IUD ED

CARE OF PRISONERS-COR...

GAS & OIL

SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
UTILITIES

EMP{.OYEE TRAINING
UNIFORM & EQUIPMENT
EQUIPMENT & MACHINE...

9% ADVERTISING/MARKET..

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...
SERVICE CONTRACTS-LO...
ROADWAYS-LGRF
UNIFORM LINEN-MUNI §...
GAS & OIL

DIESEL FUEL-STREET MA...
SAFETY EQUIPMENT
MAINT VEHICLE/FURN/E...
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
CAPITAL OUTLAY (NMFA ..
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...
LIBRARY ACQUISITION (B...
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-M...
UTILITIES-MUNI PODL
SAFETY EQUIPMENT
CWPA TORC & OPERATING
CONSTRUCTEION COSTS
CWPA TORC 2 OPERATING
CWPA TORC 18 OPERAT)...
CWPA TORC 19 OPERATI...
WATER RIGHTS-CI JOINT ...
USDA GRANT

OTHER CHARGES FOR SER...

UTILITIES
UNIFORM/UNEN
GAS & OIL

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Payment Amount
71.83
168.15
215.65
120.80
55.32
1,624.84
B00.00
9.20
1,334.00
38.00
108.50
110.64
§5.32
35.86
696.68
802.24
110.64
1,717.83
300.00
53.94
202.54
158.80
6,151.54
243.00
1,995.00
70.58
358.85
606.89
723.60
51.64
§50.73
1,224.84
29.93
416.66
27,495.80
300.00
371N
857.52
79.40
915.96
1,873.81
28,256.00
15.41
108.45
175.00
1,135.60
79.40
9,914.21
34,289.35
10,022.32
690.58
7,598.71
450.00
29,231.40
800.00
9.49
210.00
461.47

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 9 of 11



EOM AP Report

Account Number
502-3601-43735
502-3601-43740
502-3601-43775
502-3601-44810
502-3601-47410
502-3601-47420
503-3702-43316
503-3702-43317
503-3702-43770
503-3702-43775
503-3702-43780
503-3702-44606
503-3702-44615
503-3702-44810
503-3702-47415
503-3702-48599
503-3702-50795
504-3803-42620
504-3803-43316
504-3803-43317
504-3803-43740
504-3803-43775
504-3803-43780
504-3803-43797
504-3803-44605
504-3803-44607
504-3803-47415
504-3803-47420
504-3803-47421
505-3304-34601
505-3504-42620
505-3804-43316
505-3904-43317
505-3904-43740
505-3904-43775
505-3904-43780
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44810
505-3904-47420
506-4005-42620
S06-4005-43316
506-4005-43317
506-4005-43416
506-4005-43775
506-4005-43780
506-4005-44605
506-4005-44607
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47425
506-4005-48798
507-4203-43317
507-4203-44810
508-4303-43780
508-4303-45555
S08-4303-48599
509-4403-43316
509-4403-43775
509-4403-44605

Account Summary

Account Name

POSTAGE & MAIL SERVICE...

PRINTING/PUBLISHING
TELEPHONE

EQUIPMENT & MACHINE
MAINTENANCE CONTRAC...
MAINT. FURNITURE/FIX/.
GAS & Oit

DIESEL FUEL-ELECTRIC DIV..

SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE

UTIUTIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

SAFETY EQUIPMENT
EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY...

MAINTENANCE/GROUNDS..

OTHER CONTRACTUAL 5¢...
WHOLESALE POWER COS...
UNIFORM/LINEN-WATER ...
GASB OIL

DIESEL-WATER DIVISION
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

WATER CONSERVATION-...

CHEMICALS/LABORATORY...

FIELD SUPPLIES-WATER D...
MAINTENANCE-GROUNDS..
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...
MAINTENANCE EQUIPME...
WASTE DISPOSAL
UNIFORM/LINEN-SOLID ...
GAS&OIL

DIESEL FUEL-50LID WASTE.,

PRINTING/PUBLISHING
TELEPHONE
UTILITIES

FIELD SUPPLIES-SOLID WA...

EQUIPMENT & MACHINE...
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...
UNIFORM/LINEN-WASTE...
GAS & O

DIESEL FUEL-WASTEWAT...
0 & M PURCHASES-WAST...
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

CHEMICALS/LABORATORY ..

FIELD SUPPLIES-WASTEW...
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...
OTHER MAINTENANCE-W...
VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBU...
DIESEL FUEL-LANDFILL
EQUIPMENT & MACHINE...
UTILITIES

MISC EXPENSE

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...
GAS & DIESEL

TELEPHONE
CHEMICALS/LABORATORY..

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Payment Amount
5,000.00
24,68
110.64
536.29
675.78
8398
303.98
638.07
125.00
55.32
985.23
1,010.62
1,308.40
44.69
3,861.24
4,656.24
244,258.80
517.00
575.21
393.10
78.67
55.32
§59.50
914,76
946.50
166.76
456.00
714.99
2,483.50
27,901.87
£45.64
588.44
2,444.11
24.68
55.32
96.24
44.63
3332
3,652.46
1,038.00
§37.35
96.92
334431
110.64
288.34
3,164.23
40.00
102.09
753.80
281187
814.74
92.92
630.20
103.83
10,850.00
125.56
55.32
393.74

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 10 of 11



EOM AP Report

Account Summary

Account Number Account Name
509-4403-46732 GENERAL UABILITY INSUR...
509-4403-47420 MAINTENANCE VEH/EQUI..,

Grand Total:

Project Account Summary

Project Account Key
- 'Nﬂne‘ »

Grand Total:

Payment Dates: 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018

Payment Amount
2,875.00
225.02

544,491.14

Payment Amount

544,491.14

544,491.14

1/4/2019 2:14:38 PM

Page 11 of 11



FlaG.|

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Summary Plat Amendment for lot split and Variance for development standards at
1700 E. Riverside. Applicant is John and Gayle Jones.

BACKGROUND:

Applicant is applying for a Summary Plat Amendment to split his property at 1700 E, Riverside,
and at the same time is applying for a Variance from the Municipal Code Chapter 15, section 15-
15, A2 requiring subdivided lots directly access City streets with curb, gutter, and sidewalk. The
Variance is requested because no streets in the neighborhood have sidewalk, and some do not

have curb and gutter. Applicant would like to be able to meet the development standard of the
area.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Summary Plat Amendment and Variance

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

Summary Plat Amendment and Variance applications with supporting documents

Submitted by: Traci Bumetle Department: Community Development Meeting date: 1/9/2019




Steven L. Green Rolf Hechiler

Mayor Conunissioner
Sandra K. Whitehead Paul Buca
Mayaor Pro-Tem Commissioner
Kathleen Clark Renee Cantin

505 Sims St.
Trath or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
P: 575-894-6673 ¢ F: 575-894-7767
WH'H'JOP(_‘H"I.OI'g

Commissioner Interim City Manuger

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Truth or Consequences City Commission will hold
a Public Hearing during their regular scheduled meeting on Wednesday, January 9th,
2019 in the Commission Chambers, 405 W. Third, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico to
receive input regarding the following:

1. Discussion/Action: Request for a Plat Amendment at 1700 E Riverside Drive, Truth or
Consequences, NM pursuant to Chapter 15, Sec. 15-17. - Amendment of plats.
Applicant wishes to amend the property line to separate the property. Applicant is
John and Gayle Jones

2. Discussion/Action — Request for a Variance at 1700 E Riverside Drive, Truth or
Conseguences, NM pursuant to Chapter 15, section 15-15, A2 requiring subdivided
lots directly access City streets with curb, gutter, and sidewalk. Variance is to allow
subdivided lot to meet the road standard for the area. Applicant is John and Gayle
Jones.

All interested parties are welcome to attend.

The agenda for this meeting may be obtained on Friday, January 4, 2019 by contacting
the City Clerk’s Office at 575-894-6673 or by email to: aatorres@torcnm.org.

/s/ Angela A. Tarres, CMC, Acting City Clerk
. Published on the following date:

o Sentinel — Friday, December 14, 2018



ALTERNATE SUMMARYT PROCEDURE
SUMMARY FLAT
of twe tracts of land
in tha SEl/4 SEI/4, (Lot 4), of Saction 34,
Tounship 13 South, Ranga 4 eat, NFFT,

sy Mo, l
- e L) ! in tha City of Truth or Conssquances, Slerrd County,
Wi New Maxico
R 269833 Mase ___] Ly
from S0VIIOET b P

Moot

g Fwes irdelas ow nlsjonl i anal. of sanarat
T ot msioul wrm o Posal Tova X, fnst
u-‘:-:.—.uh--a.:- n-l'u-q‘_h_mn
ﬂl—v—lﬂwnlw&n l.q—--l-—f.-lz.
Lot i i R i6ga Frael i P o AL ‘pasia! flaesd
ne Iy Mubyaar onh Roee Ml siwestion deterarma™
TP APe S PRt $AL ot Al it Pur Cig @ Troth or Commasporwes

| Drtheies Couton, Oraiminas Koboar POA. epriad Fiy 11 3. (Cier 8.
sl o Pt b 4 DAY, Sumbellilly Mot v ronsnl dividowen inboenl o= &P

PO gy e Sy 041 1 S ey EnserEREe S A lansisat
s A 0N O ranars At an e SUSTSIIN Lhg, o Shmium Lag Hompent LS 0T
nte et
[ M.
o Bt W1, Pl 300-R1C PN Dot
epepgest Nip. BN
UC AT AT BT
B, | Foge Iins, 1Pu of Burvay)
Mitigongd Pt Serieep FOwgrim, Piawel benreens Rbe P Ao Ve ERy of Bt ov
Comanurers. Bwre Coumy, Mo Mavias, Commuioy-Foad e 20T €, fvap
v ddy
iy oF Tt o [ Cantion. DA, (on
Joo o fea LLS Py 20 J0me)
o o8
T AT W

Logma

[} -‘-‘I?“.' Do}
b ol _."F
l‘-
l"
-‘-
O—‘-.
neowser
ey
L
[ ] v __
e ot

GRAPHIC SCALE
[ ] -] 00 ne
—
o pExy )
i Ineh = 100 [t

.!_....r__

B P e
Pirunt Jwn ey, (sl g BLRHLY
Dvarhmset ity st — . &

Boer glosn o B

1
i

OFFICIAL SEAL
WMARGARET T. REED
-] NOTARY PUBLIC
o/ STATE OF NEW MEXICO
Com, Expres LA 2021

T, OFEICIAL SEAL
) MARGARET T. REED
NOTARY PUBLIC

GTATE OF NEW MEX
. 1

Bec. 34
THAR4In

Chaparral Surveying, LLC
Profassiona! Land Surveying
PO Bou a1 Bupnan Buite Mo P §IN
CERTIFICATE

u-umw':‘uHWH::ﬂl

{
i
|
g!

5 ot 80 snomm o e i INDEXING INFORMATION POR CDUNTY CLERX
John E. k& Geyle L. Jones (A338)

e Sectlon M4
Tewnship 13 South, Range 4 Wesl




F246

- L)
- Al
2 AU JULE L
7] L

L) ’
\\\“"1

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Summary Plat Amendment for lot split and Variance for development standards at
1700 E. Riverside. Applicant is John and Gayle Jones.

BACKGROUND:

Applicant is applying for a Summary Plat Amendment to split his property at 1700 E, Riverside,
and at the same time is applying for a Variance from the Municipal Code Chapter 15, section 15-
15, A2 requiring subdivided lots directly access City streets with curb, gutter, and sidewalk. The
Variance is requested because no streets in the neighborhood have sidewalk, and some do not

have curb and gutter. Applicant would like to be able to meet the development standard of the
area.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Summary Plat Amendment and Variance

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

Summary Plat Amendment and Variance applications with supporting documents

Submitted by: Traci Bumette Department: Community Davelopment Meeting date: 1/9/2019




otal doe § U

BUILDING/PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Volee - (575) BB4-6673 x 110 Fax - (575) B94-0363
{Staff Use Only)

505 Sims Street — Truth or Consaquences, NM 87801  Cage No

Related Case(s)

PLANNING APPLICATION FORM

lication, which includes accompanying plans, shail ba subjact to the review of the Building/Plannin
Department. This application Is usad for a varisty of andnalallhnsnwyapplytnyourpm]ed.lfyoufaelg
requirement is not applicable to your

ProCieesy
g_o]ed. "N/AC have uestions whila com, this epplication please ask
mernherofﬂleP!anR riment assistanm.lncomplawt’:appl qwﬂlnotbeaccepta%h(%nrg&epmmaybeddayed.a)
O Master Pian ($100 -+ $200/l0t) I:IAnn;gg;m ($100 or $10/ac. Q Cup/suP ($25)
Max.

O Master Plan Amendment ($200) QA 1($50) O Prefim. Piet or Replat ($100 + $200/10t)

0 Development Agmernent ($1,000) Jﬂ s (825) Q Final Plat {$50)

e (R0 or 410/ OZone Ondinance Amendment (s250) 4 Summary Pl (450)

ProloctBusiness Nams any: JBnak (Dl JoVS
Pruject Description (add extra pageqs) i

o Diids ny_properi

PTOpENy AR TEST L OCHT -
Assessor's Parcel Number(s): .io_LLo_Z;_g_ﬁ_ﬁ‘_trz_..
Total GrossLotAms: . 5 U P2 ALKES Total Net Lot Ares: ¢, 5Y7 0 1HCRES
Existing Master Plan/Comprehensive Pan Designation; ___ A/ /13 Existing Zoning Oasignation: _
Propased Master Plan Designation (i appicable): ___ 18 Propased Zoning Designation:
Exisfing Uses and/or Struciures on Site: P
Surounding Uses:  North: oc sout: Q< Loaps iz
Emst: Restilence . West s7/5C

‘Ifm
Date: /2 - M -
e Bopnes o™ cie-dig By
Address: ! Rwevside He Fax No.
ay ¢ Pl /1 [Zeoe 2 750(
Contacl Peron: T54 41 T o e [Emal Address: -7/ 65 MTSER ¥ i1Ce5 @eamif + Cont
The Clty will provide the applicant with hearing notices and staff reports unless another parly is identified.
RecaivedBe Flecd, Paya ble Amoui Reothed: S I7U00 | @ 5123482

Form Date: May 27, 2009



PLANNING-APPLICATION FORM -page 2

B ry J?;ncc am the owner of the propesty described in this application and hereby authorize
Print Name
_ _to act on my behalf on matters pertaining to this application.
Name of applicant or representative -
Propesty Owner's Signature: 5 Date: /2~ 4f- 1 8

Note: If more than one owner, a separate page fnust be attached listing the names and addresses of all persons (if a corporation
list officers, and principals) having interest in the property ownership.

+

ARCHITECT Neme: Telephone No.:

Addreas: Fax Mo.:

City: State: Zip Code:
Contact Person: E-mail Address:

ENGINEER Name: Telephone No.:

Address: Fax No.:

City: State: Zip Code:

Contact Person: E-mail Address:

Processing of this application will not begin unless this application Is complete and all signatures are provided: 1,
the undersigned as project Applicant or Representative of the project Applicant, hereby authorize the City of Truth
or Consequences to review the submitted plans and specifications for this Application in accordance with the City
of Truth or Consequences Municipal Code.
Applicant(s) acknowledge and agree that by filing this application City staff may enter upon the subject
property and make examinations and surveys, provided that the entries, examinations and surveys do not
unreasonably interfere with the use of the land by those persons lawfully entitled to the possession thereof.
Applicant(s) certify under penalty of perjury that | am the legat owner(s) (all individual owners must sign as
they appear on the deed to the land), Corporate Officer(s) empowered to sign for the corporation, Owner's
Legal Agent having power of Attorney (a notarized Power of Attorney document must accompany this
application), or the owner’s authorized representative (include a notarized consent form from the owner).
Applicant{s) acknowledge and agree that | have included all of the required items and understand that
missing items may result in delaying the processing of my application.
Applicants) agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmiless the City of Truth or Consequences ("City") and its
agents, officers, consultants, independent contractors and employees (“City’s Agents") from any and all
claims, actions or proceedings against the City or the City's Agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul an
approval by the City, or the City's Agents concemning the Project (collectively "Claim”). The City shall promptly
notify the Applicant of any Claim and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense. If the City fails to promptly
notify the Applicant of any Claim or if the City falls to cooperate fully in the defense, the Applicant shall not
thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify, or hold harmless the City. Nothing in this paragraph shall
obligate the City to defend any Claim and the City shall not be required to pay or perform any settiement
arising from any such Ciaim not defended by the City, unless the settlement is approved in writing by the City.
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prohibit the City from independently defending any Claim, and if the
City does decide to independently defend a Claim, the City shall bear its own attorney's fees, expenses of
litigation and costs for that independent defense. The Applicant may agree to reimburse the City for attomey's
feas, expenses of litigation and costs for that independent defanse. Should the City decide to independently
defend any Ciaim, the Applicant(s) shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement arising from any
such Claim unless the settiement is approved by the Applicant.

Irisso

12-4-18 John E JouneS

‘Appiicant's S Date Nama of Applicant (Print )

 Form Date: May 27, 2000



Steven L. Green Rolf Hechler

Mayor Commissioner
Sandra K. Whitehead Paul Baca

Mayor Pro-Tem Conunissioner

Kathleen Clark Renee Cantin

Conmmissioner 505 Sims St.
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
P: 575-894-6673 ¢ F: 575-894-7767
www.rorcnn.org

Interim City Manager

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Truth or Consequences City Commission will hold
a Public Hearing during their regular scheduled meeting on Wednesday, January 9th,
2019 in the Commission Chambers, 405 W. Third, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico to
receive input regarding the following:

1. Discussion/Action: Request for a Plat Amendment at 1700 E Riverside Drive, Truth or
Consequences, NM pursuant to Chapter 15, Sec. 15-17. - Amendment of plats.
Applicant wishes to amend the property line to separate the property. Applicant is
John and Gayle Jones

2. Discussion/Action — Request for a Variance at 1700 E Riverside Drive, Truth or
Consequences, NM pursuant to Chapter 15, section 15-15, A2 requiring subdivided
lots directly access City streets with curb, gutter, and sidewalk. Variance is to allow
subdivided lot to meet the road standard for the area. Applicant is John and Gayle
Jones.

All interested parties are welcome to attend.

The agenda for this meeting may be obtained on Friday, January 4, 2019 by contacting
the City Clerk’s Office at 575-894-6673 or by email to: aatorres@torcnm.org.

/s/ Angela A. Torres, CMC, Acting City Clerk
. Published on the following date:

0 Sentinel — Friday, December 14, 2018



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM: DISCUSSION/ACTION

Approve Resolution 22 18/19 Authorizing and Approving Submission of a
Completed Application for Financial Assistance and Project Approval to the New
Mexico Finance Authority

BACKGROUND:

The Public Project Revolving Funds is used to finance public projects such as law
enforcement equipment. The Police Department would like to apply for possible
funding assistance for the purchase of In-Car Camera System and Body Cameras
to protect the officers and citizens as well as help the department run more
efficiently and a Police Radio Repeater to increase the range of radio transmissions.
Currently there are sections of the City that are not covered for radio transmissions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

To Approve Resolution Authorizing and Approving Submission of a Completed
Application for Financial Assistance and Project Approval to the New Mexico
Finance Authority

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

* Resolution 22 18/19

Submitted by: Traci Burnette Department: Community Development Meeting date: 1/9/2019




RESOLUTION NO. 22 18/19

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING SUBMISSION OF A COMPLETED APPLICATION
FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND PROJECT APPROVAL TO THE
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY.

WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences ("Governmental Unit") is a
qualified entity under the New Mexico Finance Authority Act, Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31,
NMSA 1978 ("Act"), and theCity Commission of the City of Truth or Consequences ("Governing Body") is
authorized to borrow funds and/or issue bonds for financing of public projects for benefit of the
Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Finance Authority ("Authority”) has instituted a program
for financing of projects from the public project revolving fund created under the Act and has
developed an application procedure whereby the Governing Body may submit an application
("Application") for financial assistance from the Authority for public projects; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body intends to undertake acquisition, construction and
improvement of Law Enforcement Equipment ("Project") for the benefit of the
Governmental unit and its citizens; and

WHEREAS, the application prescribed by the Authority has been completed and
submitted to the Governing Body and this resolution approving submission of the completed
Application to the Authority for its consideration and review is required as part of the
Application.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

Section 1. That all action (not consistent with the provision hereof} heretofore taken by
the Governing body and the officers and employees thereof directed toward the Application and
the Project, be and the same is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 2. That the completed Application submitted to the Governing Body, be and the
same is hereby approved and confirmed.

Section 3. That the officers and employees of the Governing Body are hereby directed
and requested to submit the completed Application to the Authority for its review, and are further
authorized to take such other action as may be requested by the Authority in its consideration and
review of the Application and to further proceed with arrangements for financing the Project.



Section 4. All acts and resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby rescinded,
annulled and repealed.

Section 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSES APPROVED AND ADOPTED this day of , 200
GOVERNING BODY
By
Authorized Officer
(Seal)
ATTEST:

Authorized Officer



;‘mtmnm:‘.

7,

i
(7

L [}

x ’
Oty
Yy

1
!

A

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Special Use Permit for mounting Verizon antennas on the painted water tank at the

end of West 2" Street. Applicant is Amy McKenzie, Black and Veatch.

BACKGROUND:

Black and Veatch has been working on behalf of Verizon to get antennas mounted on the painted
water tank at the end of West 2" Street. They have presented to the City Commission previously
on 2/14/2018, 10/24/2018, and 11/14/2018, and have provided the City with their proposed terms.
Having now completed their environmental and historical impact studies on the site, they have
submitted the special use permit for mounting the antennas. At the City's request, Verizon
additionally provided a third party Inter Modulation study from Sitesafe LLC dated 12/27/2018. It
concluded that “no harmful interference is predicted as a result of Verizon Wireless’ proposed
collocation affecting the existing operations on this structure”.

The Special Use Pemit is to approve the antennas and the project as presented. Granting the
Special Use Permit would not commit the City to any lease terms at this time, the lease would still

need to be reviewed by legal.

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

Special Use Permit application (including site design plans and an extensive project description)

Submitted by: Traci Bumette

Depariment: Community Development

Meeling date: 1/9/2019




BUILDING/PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Voice - (575) 894-6673 x 110 Fax - (575) 894-0363

E-maii_Rtravis@lorcnm.grg (Staff Use Only)
505 Sims Street — Truth or Consaquences, NM 87901 case No

Related Case(s)

PLANNING APPLICATION FORM

The completeness of this application, which includes accompanying plans, shall be subject to the review of the Building/Planning
Department. This application is used for a variety of application processes and not all items may apply to your project. If you feel a
requirement is not applicable to your project, write “N/A." If you have any questions while completing this application please ask a
member of the PlanniqngDe riment for assistance. Incomplete applications will not be accepted (or the process may be delayed.)
{PLEASE PRINT OR PE?a

CHECK APPLICATION TYFE(S) REQUESTED:
& CuPSUP ($25)

0O Master Plan ($100 + $200/o0t)

OAnnexation {$100 or $10/ac.

Max, $250)
O Master Plan Amendment {$200) ;

QAppeal (§50) B Predim, Plat or Replat ($100 + $200/0t)
O Development Agreement ($1,000) B Final Plat {$50)

OVariance ($25)

O Change of Zone ($100 or $10/ac.

Max. $250) & Summary Plat ($50)

0Zone Ordinance Amendment ($250)
O Plat Amendment ($50)

PROJECT SUMMARY:

Project Description (add extra page(s) il

needsd): Please see attached

Property Address/Location;_End of W, 2nd Street Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

Assessor's Parcel Number(s): 3022078190410

Total Gross Lot Area: _about 1.1 acres Total Net Lot Area; .

Existing Mastsr Plan/Comprehensive Plan Designation; orthwest- Medium Density R“idﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬂg Zoning Designation: _R3- High Density Residential

Proposed Master Plan Dasignation (if applicable): _n/a

Proposed Zoning Designation: n/a

Existing Uses andor Structures on Site;_Water tank and existing lattice tower

Surrounding Uses: North: __ City Use South:__City Use/Commercial
East: Residential Wast:  Residential
.APPI,ICANT /] R_EPHESENTA-'I_'IVE Name: REPRESENTATIVE(S):
Verizon Wireless LLC c/o Anne- Madie (Amy) McKenzie Telaphone No.:
 with Black & Veatch 913-458-6771

Address; 422 Live Oak Ct NE

FaxNo.. nfa

City: Albuguerque

Slate: New Mexico

IZP Code: g7)22

Contact Person: pnpe. Matie (Amy} McKenzie

F-mail Address:  McKenzieAM@BV.com

| certify under penalty of perjury that all the application information is true and comect:

Applicant's Signature: 4 iy Datg.  10/172018
PROPERTY OWNER/ AGENT Name: Tefephone No.:  575-894-6673 ext 330
City of Truth or Consequences
Address: 505 Sims Street Fax No.:
City!  Truth or Consequences Ftate: New Mexico iZip Code: 87091
Contact Person: E-mall Address:

The City will provide the applicant with hearing notices and staff reports unlass ancthar party is identified.

Date/Time Received:

Receipt No(s):

Recelved By:

Amount Received: $

Form Date: May 27, 2009




PLANNING APPLICATION FORM -page 2

I, am the owner of the property described in this application and hereby authorize
Print Name:

to act on my behalf on matters pertaining to this application.

Name of applicant or representative

Property Owner's Signature; Date:

Note: If more than one owner, a separate page musl be attached listing the names and addresses of all persons (if a corporation,
list officers, and principals) having interest in the property ownership.

ARCHITECT Name: Telephone No.:

Address: Fax No.:

City: State: Zip Code:
Contact Person: E-malil Address:

ENGINEER Name: J5 Infastructure Partners Telephone No.:_505-232-4884 Ext 131
Address: 4520 Montgomery Blvd, NE, Suite 5 Fax No.:

City: _Albucquerque State: _NM Zip Code: 87109
Contact Person: Jeff Montano E-mail Address: [Montano@]5IP.com

APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT:

Processing of this application will not begin unless this application is complete and all signatures are provided: |,
the undersigned as project Applicant or Representative of the project Applicant, hereby authorize the City of Truth
or Consequences to review the submitted plans and specifications for this Application in accordance with the City
of Truth or Consequences Municipal Code.
Applicant{s) acknowledge and agree that by filing this application City staff may enter upon the subject
property and make examinations and surveys, provided that the entries, examinations and surveys do not
unreasonably interfars with the use of the land by those persons lawfully entitled to the possession thereof.
Applicant(s} certify under penalty of perjury that | am the legal owner(s) {all individual owners must sign as
they appear on the deed to the land), Corporate Officer{s) empowered to sign for the corporation, Owner's
Legal Agent having power of Attorney (a notarized Power of Attorney document must accompany this
application), or the owner's authorized representative {include a notarized consent form from the owner).
Applicant(s) acknowledge and agree that | have included all of the required items and understand that
missing items may result in delaying the processing of my application.
Applicants) agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Truth or Consequences ("City") and its
agents, officers, consultants, independent contractors and employees ("City's Agents") from any and all
claims, actions or proceedings against the City or the City's Agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul an
approval by the City, or the City's Agents concerning the Project (collectively "Claim"). The City shall promptly
notify the Applicant of any Claim and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense. If the City fails to promptly
notify the Applicant of any Claim or if the City falls to cooperate fully in the defense, the Applicant shall not
thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify, or hold harmless the City. Nothing in this paragraph shall
obligate the City to defend any Cilaim and the City shall not be required to pay or perform any settiement
arising from any such Claim not defended by the City, unless the settlement is approved in writing by the City.
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prohibit the City from independently defending any Claim, and if the
City does decide 1o independently defend a Claim, the City shall bear its own attorney's fees, expenses of
litigation and costs for that independent defense. The Applicant may agree to reimburse the City for atiorney's
fees, expenses of litigation and costs for that independent defense. Should the City decide to independently
defend any Claim, the Applicani(s) shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement arising from any
such Claim unless the settlement is approved by the Applicant.

ITIS SO AGREED:
/"f"“‘ /,/? 10/1/2018 Anne- Marie {Amy) McKenzie
Applicant’s Signature Date Name of Applicant {Print )

Form Date: May 27, 2009



PLANNING APPLICATION FORM -page 3

Application Requirements for Zoning/Master Plan Projects

The application materials for a Planning Project include the following:

1. Signed Application

2. Payment of appropriate City Fees

3. Site plan (8 '/> " x 11") with dimensions

4. Autherization Letter from property owner or applicant

5. Appropriate radius map based on assessor's parcel map, three (3) sets of mailing labels of all
property owners within the appropriate radius.

In applying for a Master Plan, Master Plan Amendment, Specific Plan, Zone Change the plans shall include
the following:

1. Name, address, and phone number of the Applicant and Applicant's Representative
2. Assessor's Parcel Number {(UPC)

3. Total Acreage

4. North Arrow

5. Vicinity Map

6. Date of Map Preparation

7. Graphic Scale

8. Existing structures such as walls, buildings, and trees

9. Existing adjoining land uses

10. Names of adjoining landowners

11. Dimensions of each lot and/or property involved in the application
12. Lands dedicated for Public Use

13. Easements

Twenty Five (25) sets of plans which are folded to a size no more than 8'/," x 14" and shall be stapled,
collated, and bound by a rubber band.

Application Requirements for CUP/SUP and Subdivision of Land Plan Projects

Form Date: May 27, 2009



I . DS FOR
SITE_NOTES: M
1 | FBOR TO EXCAVATION, COHTRACTON SHALL CHECK THE | -
AREA FOR_UNDERGROUND FACLITES
. .\0. L1
. e, by

s ]
COHNECTION OF MOUNTS, COHDUITS AND ASSOCIATLD
EQUEPMENT WL BE &Y STUD WELDS. SEE DETALS O

SHEET $1. L~ [15
S5 F
. a3 H 5
PARENT_PARCEL U
WATERWORKS PARK = 2
BLOCK 80, R [}
HOT SPRINGS TOWNSITE =
[ | z
O {6) NEW LESSEE PANEL AHTEMHAS v
— =PANTED TQ MATCHM NE{UTRAL COLDR OF
WATER THIKC " <=0 5
| | i_(3} NEW LESSEE OWP UNITS (BELCW), Yy 2
[ PAHTTD TO MATCH HEUTRAL COLOR OF
- !ﬂnﬁkuﬁaﬂ_.ﬁ@ =< 9Q
j &) G
[ ‘ =
| -— O ~
..‘_ / ] m |
;] ! '
7 / \ & M G
r i s m
ol VR Y Ay Tk
COMDUIT ENTRY, / /
T / HEW LESSCE DISTRIBUTION PANEL,
, / X2 N{WA, U TS W/GEN PLUG
. — _ﬁaﬁﬂﬂgngzﬁ.g‘/ n\.gisﬁ«z&
4 ! N HEW LISSEE CABLE BRADGE A B o S e
byt ey el b VTRJTY CIMIER, ?
SEE DETALS %}f NEW LESSEE CHAN-LINK
N FECE ENCLOSURE
/ 2 s oo
7 9
-

NLw LLSSEE '
%/ Lt / g S /!
g [ P et e § e #  + 3 A /
I I M - 1 e = — = — e — — — —
__..__ .__ ...__l_ T T, i 3 \I\

: - &
-|JI||rI|rV L === Mmm ol
T T | / ExSTIG 5
. / el m.._,m NM3 BEAVERVILLE
o f EXISTING §2°—0" WATER TARK

S COLOCATION COMMUNICATION SIE

Fes

m. w PeoAtT aobiiss —

. END OF W. ZND ST

TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES. HM
SIERRA COUNTY

5
i

ENLARGED
SITE PLANM

s
ENLARGED SITE PLAN )
et EQUIPUENT LAYOUT PN 0, = orzons 1120
4 2 NORTH vax_...l.-_ ﬁN

SCALE. Xg* = 1'-0 RORTH




z E:gggﬁg " §§ ._g
e E ¥¥ Pt - — zf mﬂ
!'g !Egsgé ma 1w oy moT ';'-",._' g;% gg% E : =
LT ] PR ———" )| Y72 | Ysgl g |
£ g:ggése N L ¥ v 4 > § +8 f_ég u é
1k 3unLonulsvaInNi SE S5y [eehl 1
Eb‘é? L, |gee [He38m = LSl
i E gb I Z§§ u'S [
' [ 188 2 §

g I
! |
E i l =T f‘"' -
55 ol Y L ’ @%
e of B4 |- LSRN
§§§§hh 2535355 j/ rz_-“
o A e | 5, ot kg
21 [l gt ERIE S e
gﬁ_E, E By L
= gggéé ' §§§§“§§f§ :
= el || e | R
TRl
) S 5 ! 235;%2 38, £
» mE Z %z 5 Eig g%gssg;gg ;3 :
—~y w O (& | [5y Greietet=g
S8 @ S5 & L
SO TCEECRE W
C A E M O | EEEE Bastssiked 95 ol
2 25 5 < £ s ik
Ha 808 =2 | et
N >0 2RO L srif] o |2 b EYERELS JfEyye
<A L2 = e gfsgz o0
"B i 002 £8 gl leii i
st ledg (€ o8l XaRedy Eeigg
Mmool vz B s=§§.g§§:§§§=.§gg§; ush
X Z05 ZO |diitd kil b
SEREAY
" A 2 #
-E SECER
s i ¥ |a " [a Ja
=
2 s |
D U g'&é'* g:ﬂ
o 2 b 3l
Eed 3 it
Z el NEEN ==. °
2 e
1L i Eigs Halslal2
B3l
E*’g?wsgs%ééﬁg??gg%; |
E |-l lafe slofole foleleielelelelelelslele] | | |




P —

nv gz 9I0zfoT/e
[org o |
L33HS NOILVIIAIDIdS

[ aa |
ANNGD vy¥IIs

15 GNZ "M 40 ON3

AN °S30NINDISHOD O Hinyl | |2

— SEINKN LTNOR
3LS NHOILYDINNANO) za——«.uo._cuﬁ

JTNAYIAYIE TAN

e

(D1 01 SN0 NOUINUISNOD 1Y Gaee SoRI0a T STINO0_TIULIA_ Mz *
- deQauS.!_uziEnguE.a

*

DINVL H3ILVM  0-,29 DNILSIXI e

.E___,_S IWONOD 30 L% F)

S _ONIOWOSNITH WIHIO ONY S3NWJS “S¥00H mgaﬁm...a?.n

3AvH TIVHS TIUS MeuaIny

YQ3 HOIDISH 30 JDUON ¥ I0WOHd TIVHS ONY J036ON0D 30 PGERI I HL DL

(THEYINGdy 3] 34 LIS NO SON YHNILKY WHINID 0S¥ 1S | ¢

(HO0VOHD/HINMG JHL AB 03N03d SY B0} SNOUVONINNGD3Y 5H3ENLIVANNYN
H3d JHVMOHYH HIMO01 ONY SINNOM SYNKILNY TTYISM 0L BOLWHINGD | L

SSTIGN NOTIVTIVISNL JdvAOEVH ¥ SINOOAN VNNIINY

“SINCULITL] TV
B NOUYIDOJSHYEL QISOTOND HLM B M MDNEY NINONE HO 'SNOIYINNANOD
DHD/YITIA HO 3031 M 30 3HI 01 N MOHS Ol (3UN0IN 33 SNOGNIA TW | v

“NOELRISROD O 0RK JUVSSIIIN SV HIINONI TORRIOdl030 IHL LWISHOD
TIHS ONY (TIGVIVAY ) LHOJ3H TENKIUOYD M) QvIH TIWVHS BOLIVHINGD i

3 310 z
Wugzlzg
48 OIS Qv O3 DML 3 TS UMD T L Rt
1534 eldd HIMYL 38 TIHS SHKMILL O JHYNGUO NY DMEST HYW ¥ 0 LMY TWL JHL B0 HONGHM 13vdmi
TS () Ol SAVD £ I¥ DIISIE 30 THMS (1) W0 "SMIONTIAD WY 30 SLOVM W1 ¥ A8 OINWLY 3B AVR SN LIVINGD ML N v LeOP
ISISHGY TIYHS 135 HOYE "IN L33HS MO SKOUI3dSM Tv3dS Af) MSWId TV MMM SIS IVHE SSIMIMON 3HI SY (MU 51 NOUKINGD LiOu
YL 38 TIVHS SHIONTIAY ukedmdd 40 136 (1) 30 30 monsam v DONS W4l SINIWANOOH Lhou BAeS SSv O O3MLBAL 30 TGS 5006 T
I B4 HSY HEOOMS ONY MO OL G350aXd JON SIOVANS “ALIeUId DN _TIvHS QHDY AHY J0 DHILNO-HO8OL | 9
£ OWY 'T°9 ‘TS SNOLTIS 10T [V Hik BT
THHOHOOTY W EHSIHL 30 TG STRGMNS JIEN0D [SINAINS HIHIO '8 COMS AT OL LN SISODAT HOIIMMINGD b SINIANI00 WOUNRUSHGI
- o e e S I G IHi 40 NOUYIIHJULINSM ML HUM GUYOOSSY LNV T 40 03AI0SEY
s = § SHIMLING FHNLDNYLSVILIA GF ‘HOUDIEY HO/ONY WOLLYEYS 50 10S el
SNSRI SHoo 0L HOBD INILH NOISIO Hilk JOMVIIJNOD bB0J4 MBASH OF GHOIIH 4O NIJNIOH]
DMHEING IETHINDD o 4 SON:
N

NOG SS¥d 10N 00 SYMNIIMY SHL L
JAVS JHL MMM HIOREDND IND HYIHOND HOLLMIRISNGD NOTIHGA
U 01 XVE NS 30 15N 1 “HOLIYY. HOUYTTYIS
AB OINIII DHIIE N3HL 40 SHOOH 2]y L] L] .
oL

‘TIIINDNT TIWVIN URBAS AVA BOLIVHINGD WL “NOLLINISID HMO SH v | 5

u..—c_zlg._ﬂ._.ﬁ ggﬁgggé
WLC IV ¥ D6 FH_JO 61 HILJWHD MU JONVONOODY Wb 38 THS JU35on0d Tiv) L

15y 0
!dgﬁgﬂu-ﬁuhé-gggﬂumgguﬁ
I5d 0OT'F 30 (74} HIDNINIS ASSTUand AVO-0Z AANA Y

SHHIOUS DHMOTION 3ML

*5310N 3IIHINOI)

"HOWO3 1SUYT ‘SI000 ONY SD34S IStv Od
MHOMOD TWHS 1S TWanionuls 30 NOUJINY ONY NOUYIWNEYS “ONTIvIS0 TV | v
o]

4
~d
(I3 Zv) @ "HY '00S¥ MISY (0NN0Y) SIS 5SH
{15¥ 9%) B &3 ‘DOSY MISY {38M) Skhrwis SSH
TEI3AS ANRNA
SHIMOTION M YO0 X TTLY AISY H3d QIZNYATYD 38 Thhs T3S Tiv | 4|
SIION 13315

ATUVRIXONGSY ~
H1OM0/oNoY @

wsgku/ |-|\\\

HNOIM0) DWLSIXT

IND NI m—— — — ———

104 KA W0 T0UINGD eSS EEIL G,
g9t v

ANN3d P
INMANI D

NDVL R3HM IS
NAYEG JEOHM LTHS

HIBANN W0

NIVl JOHM LTRG
MEYHO JdOHM (T3S

HIUTT wowdIs

tz E.gﬁnﬂgééisu.%u
{1 S.E-u!.n.oawuuus._.:ﬁ.:acaﬁiﬁaaadn
= MUY DHLG 1 = S5V 1S e ﬂuﬂyuﬂqdﬁﬂu
Z-¥Il ISNY % 99GIE 326 'f191# S10Z DA SOWR DsES | 'z
BOLIVS IOMRLHOIN D ¥D 3NSOdI] W = BSYI0 3uMdNE1S
(30 TAaVH 0) Hdf OF = A
{150 "235-C) Hdn GiL = A
9-LZT=vIL Sy ¥ SELS Ob—z 305V ‘60916 GI0Z 200 'SOVON Oww f -y
ESEINEE SRALV R NS

{STIVMRYIHS JIUINGY ITW0INOY LvNHD) O
{STINVY TVUNIINKIS 000M Ji gaiEtﬂ..vn.m
{STIWAMYIHS 313HONCD HIYId Aevaluo) SL = o
=5 {T/2) = =g
Gaous 3nsy) 21 ‘(woes oml) 4L (w0iS-Tews) 04 = 4
]
ORI -
0 = S5V 3PS d.,u.an:uoo
{00HLIN OXaldres) vicZil Di-2 305V ¥ 1ol n.EuB TSQVON WSS | (2

e
MESULUEIEESEEU: 1 HHLIM O30MOM SINIANDOD TV
MHOM TN H04 FIASHOISI ATIOS 51 ONY SIMIRNI00

01 = HOIZY] IONYIMOJAL 23 = "ivD JUNSOET T = “IVD ADNYSNIDD

HdA
SIOE OO SOVOT oM | )

SLi = HA

{00oH1IN QAUNdn'S) SUZE 0L-¢ 3057 ¥ €091d ¢ |1
ETALNEIS DR

SVWNILNY Oy SINUONALS DNIBOSHT VWHILAY B0J GEVOMVS TANUDNWIS,
2-ZZI-Wi] SWY ¥ STMUNWIS WHIC W S0 M1 SOVOY KOISK Aiwmhn,

‘Di=i TISY SI0Z 00D DRTING WNOUYKYIIM 40 SINGNINNCTY mOdd AR SOvil Tiv

S bvd3d 40 150D I, E§£BD§§ESE§
0l 3vAvD TV Wvdlh ONY SHRMYE AYUOIMI1 TIV JAOMIH TIWMS B0,
3HL NOUDEISHED SNING JFBND I 30 ALLYS Bl 1I3L0Md D)
HO/OMY SIOVORRIVE AHVEOJAIL DHLDZHI HO3 FWNSMOISI &1 8O

VIHETIET NS0 TVaniTwis

L
*S3I0N I93r08d IVH3NID




1 Sd e

ny @7 e10L/oT/e

|

133HS OL10Hd

Tuu IR

AINNOD vad3ls |
NN SIININDISNOI B0 HIAML
1S ONZ "M 30 ON3

LIS NOUVIINAMNDD NOILYI0T0D
DINVL Y3Lvm 0-.2Z9 DNHSIX]

ITNIAY3IAYIE ERN

[

d

1 i

AN-WN-Ql-0D-VD-2V
H ¥

¥l -
E

in
]

JUNLONYLSVIANI

S

LULE X3 AGN “3N0UGNDNETY
JH MNBNT LTS

_gg .

e

¥34Y 35v31 M3N J0 M3IA NOILVIOT 315 M3N JO M3IIA VIE3V

(L1 DS S22} VNV TSVT 0 i
LO0-.S1C 8-y TISST MIN

Yav IS¥ID MIAN JO MIiA

”
o
(U 'O ST} vauv 35V W

S0 S1X9-r1 OSSN MIN




ms |z 01 [l — QHOJIY 20 SININNDOO NOUL 3 2001 -98E-505 TINOHd Tucud W
e TR SISTHLNGHYD NI 3ONVISH anv onevas () NOFNSOZE0C | LOWYD_“INIT
i 6508 OOUGN AN ‘SWOL
i v (Q3U0N SY) 0 dvD HUM NVERN 135 O 9097 %08 '0'd B — T o0
AdH | H e ) Rg1-4d =
SININND0G IDININIIAN ONNDS ION HO0J OIHDWV3S 4H4S [ R s r e E ] Forae
(135 10N INIOd) M3INHOD QAYVINITYD 3 WoIPWhBOCELWAR (0l
(Q310N SY) LNINANON AZANNS ONNO4 (B iw:% ﬂwﬁl\\
(310N nruve @ 0NV NUZISIM 1V3ED ¥ NISTVID 'O &
QOGN MIN JHL A QINLI30 o SONIVIE 40 SISYE QL Mid3M) AR 03¥Vd3ld LD3roud
S¥ NOISWO ONYY ¥ LON SI 1 ONY LA I JEL sy dva/m WYE3 8/ ONROS = 35vE. A
NOJUIH NMOHS SY SININIACHAA WHINID NN TR 3NV ILVIS SNOUITO8d v
3HL SL0Id30 AUD3HHOD aN3IDTT
1 NoWD34d AN H30N0 O30dN3d WITA_CONRALEY i
AJAH 4 ¥ 30 LSy HOUVIS 3HL Lv [MATISHO SHOUYAIGSHEO SUYLI0 VIV 3SYTT HOJ AJANNS T3S UHINYIS DOREd DHINNG Tl JHE =
3HL SI 1¥1d Y3Y 35V SIHL T 540 WA JOMINID XUIOBT S| Mk G3MVINGD AVM 30 1HODS BO SINGAGSY3 ON SINGAGSYI DNUSUO MUM SHER0IN 10N 0L (33Vid K338 -
IvHL AJURED ABIMIH 00 {¥SSON e LA SYH V3NV JSVAT JHL “ISTHAIM J0 VIV 3HL ¥VIN ONNGJ 3uY¥ SNOUZING JLUL SHIHA "AJANNS SHL HO g vt
YOAJANNS ONYT TWNDISSLI03J s IS TWVHVAY 0 3TIS ONY TIvIS OL 300 HMOHS 39 LON AYR Y3MV ISv31 (SO0Nd 3H4 MON) AWVISO —
020GA_MIN_'NISMVID ‘D OvD ‘) 0o0GN AN 30 7Y 1714 00Z 40 SS30XT M) SHOHJZNG TULL JIANNS SHL MO (R0 NI WH STIVRIGY ROHM ONY — £Te
e s TR [asva T T QIMIW3Y NZ3E TAYH NGEGHL CEISA SUBHIG 3HL Hisk 3A08Y (INHEAHIGY TUL FHL AVHL ASEA 0L SI SHL
. ‘NOUVOLILEID S.H0AIARS SOHEHYI8 ¥ IWRNS JHY SIONVISO TIV 'L
58 ‘5Td GODGN MIN TTMMIAVIE SN IV uS
R e *VIVO MNLYO % _ONIHV38 JO SISV8 L-PCZSRZISIOZ 0N JONHASN
: *600G~Z0G 1NN~ LLEETON T4 —
\\H«. \ “smioqsy SHOUMIOS FUIL "' A8 JUH 193M0Hd -—w
BV € AINNOD YHRGIS MOMJ OHOITH 40 SLOMND0O T TAIMEINES DAL HENESVS D ¥ Aowad S
4, “SOHOIEH XYL ALNNOY i |
TSIV TN
LET°G1,SLIOIM-3ONLIINGT m-)  Ows
, oL L6755, L0.CEN-20MUYY SRROAORURG
39vd "ot _%008 FQERH _._.wu._.\w«h}. B.___.d FLSCY-NOUVATE [ - ! ] H 1 i H T
$0 S3IVIS UMM A VM LNGIvd OWY1 "L /B6'806200" 1 -DNILSY |_mw_ P ! ! i H '
D T ZOLSULLL-ONKEBON | 8 |G o7 ! PN i i
5 o 2va 608, ONVTIA00 DYL/M | 101 15 ! | P e® ; | .
e ot R I N S - B I
TS o ISP 0 & " @ Trt—t 4 3
11140 000GN 4G4 3n0EINONE T @ & Stevz Se——d_ ! F
3N NNV 1286 "ALGJ0Nd JOWBNS 10K ‘6L 39vd 60 ——t =——t . M5 SO P =
- BN BAIONR
%008 M 1661/1Z/00 (DOUOINY 1681/01/6 CUVD BEELSLLOM-ZONLING) t . (B gpp — o AT 07 g
OIS HJ_..,M_ ONY aﬂ.ﬂﬂﬁ_ .ﬁhﬂ..:nh u.n ZSOZE L0.£TN-30ALUY) v_ . \, A r0pgy) ————
LSl it L s T R s SOTY-NOUVAF | ___ 3
] SONNSS 10H JO LWSHADL JHL 30 IVid D B59TILEC'E-DNUSY3 i ! mﬂv\ Y.
SOGAOT 0T R SIDOLTLL-ONMINON | | g ANS (1M I, BnEsv £ ;
0O UM . 6£081 OVl QKYT3JOD ¥ ‘Lits orelL Awn
‘ ._mnum.lpuu-ﬂnmulmcuuuéq 10 Eae oY St Bh\S az_..n.._lzo_pn_nﬁmuo -mn_ g N, ¥3MY 3SVAT ININD & b I E i ¥ 1101 m
mm:._.U:m._.w<~_u_z_ ITRAGAYIE T TINWN S ) ~+CTSUCISI0Z 0N LR m 1 ...,.M_Q v hY [/ M_m 1 _ 4
TR W soumos Tisen @ |58 m gla . Qi ‘3 T i
: Sfc & WO'M OLUYAVA Bl 101
01Y0819£0220¢ Il P — 0._ < 3 5 T WO au _
3%l 1324vd QNOJ3Y dNand (LG AG UGS FLEgL «L6F GG, LATEN-30NLUY \ —yrd S _
TCT)a 9L93-18a-GL8 T/ ] | e SIS -NOUVATTE | N g “ 1
ol 3608 ; i FTEZICEC I-ONULSY3 b~ J wml=e B i
it IRERO00 TREE T (B9'GCO°LLL~ONHLHON _ wl 2 T H _u |6 43 TS 68 0] i
J05L8 AN “Diar 6L081 DYL ONYI3JOI/M S~ vonsn | R WOH DLYIVA
LT3HIS SIS 505 'SEIH0aY ¥BY G\S ONNOA-NOUARDS2D |-~ i anun Mo \Xu uuuuuu
SIONGNISHOO B0 HINML 4O ALD Invi JZE LS LLOM=30MLIONOT ?u@h,siuu [ SSEDONL f—— ' e |
T ZE9FS L0.CEN-30NLILYT ¥ns 30 A .
UINMO 1308vd ONIATNIONN e et e e \_ T s (33 IS, 0z 101 !
10648 JAZH0STEC 1-ONLSYI ===l | 2USWWOL SONWJS 104 1MIn3sva an/
0J1X3N MIN 9Z°286'5LL~DNHLHON ® |, | o8 01 g S533¥ &1 INAMD e
. ANYL 20 HILNID-NOUJINOSI0 100 S T
ALNNOJ VHH3IS o FiNod LEE0LSLLOLM~SONLIONDT | T3SV DRSCAT (zvsrz  15v3) W oz _.au _ m@ 12 101 @
‘SIININDISNOD HO HINYL Z¥ETS.LOETH-J0MRY] - nm.nvm - meﬂwhmm - 5 =) T TR " @
133415 PUZ 4 4O ONI| | ) 26Ty ETE"1-ONSY " aaomaonn
9434 500 G374 1'434 NIVHD 0330 33S . i M
: . . o 034073430
ES3R00V; Lr Oud 0IXIN M3N "AINNOD YHA3IS o ey T T e — e —
'SONIIAS 10H 40 IV1d 3LSNMOL Aty nEanmvﬁmua ) .Gmc.m% mnmmm e N ONGS
, ' 29 f1M0d .
I1UAMIAVIE AN O A e g Ly [A3AuNS 40 N0 o4 GTaH] _ LS AR 13341S ONOI3S
SSI13UIM NOZRIIA TIAINS VIV ISV ® I
*INYN_ 1D3roNd




Wy el Mg B

% R 363 Wl g0 = w

fi.y B 2l E® . § W5 ¥ §§ 8 e 2| |

S§§§ i EEEE.EE EEEQ; § I EEE;* lij : égégz THE T
" sfd B FERL oan B OB wm 2 303 33 | [

IRE AR R TH

Eg§§ i ‘éiiggf i Egﬁ 55335 | §§;’§ i I sz Baf &

HHE 2 R

gf-‘é 5 it §§E§3§ ’gaggé sies 55555 . EBEEE Mo

Bowl E—ga B =5 B éa & EE: g‘g&'. B8, 23 :gE_E Eg“ 5 g H"I"L’:r'ﬂs-

gEEE i ngféﬁ g;gfiag :Zggz Eﬁﬁsgg L e

s gggg 5‘2 gﬁ N g N g«

i o M it M Sl s S ke L DL

il '§§sss§ 0 T e E{éséﬁéﬁ%aﬁﬂs

232 gyt Niza g i o3 Bdsfi 95 oIty fug mot Hug =4 [tioale[olellslale

0 04 g i o s e e

—_— e e———— e s o —— —

4 = .5 e
Edgug \'\Il | | e "
ge=z5 \ [
28 \‘.\ \ : [ SEaIN
B2y \ Ny SE [ 3B # | . 110
x 2 \ lH | 1 g = %\l
BARRLT AINEAN
R E% 1 || I| ! § | | U\' ggg“
z b 1 Jc% | | S5y r'#-'.'{
8 ‘l ! | |I A |/ ég% | :
g.3 f
he N kY A /
§3§ . {//,/ /} e
& /9,7 o N

CLIENT 13° ACCESS
JUTILITY EASEMENT
1 »

G3d0T3A3aNN
133448 113991




12 [Eumw aea}
Y eI Rlozfot/e
|

Nvid 3115

—.-.ﬂ_- [
ALNNOD wHYAIS
HN "SIONINDISNOD 40 HINHL
15 ONZ "M 40 ON3I

—gg

115 NOIVIINMNNGD ROLLYI070D
ANYL HIL¥s 0-29 DNILSIX]

ATNANIAYIE EWN

s,

d

¥

¥

N

3

AN-XL-AN-WN -0l - 0D -V -2V
1

FANLONALSVHANI

§

HLHON

L]
.9 84
Nvid 315 o5 2 TR

|
-— L

-

§ 735571 M3N

T T

CHNOINRQD JrLsi]
LTSy SHIESIO)

|
|
|
!
|
I
!
|
|
I
i - -
NN Lovuy
St

fxi il

33 KOZ3A A5 o007 H13N0 A%V DRSO

llllllllll ¥ 3104 Z0ANTS NIOOOM 52 MIN .
_ ISV L0~ SIX9-,

I 30w 0=51 JISTI MIN

| SYNMIINY 1INVd
] 335537 M (9]
MNYL HEIWM

1 {v9v .0-c9)

—_— e e ——

JLISNMOL SIONIMdS L1OH
‘0B %2078

AUVd SHHOMHILYM A
TITEVd INIEVd N \
N\ \
\ A

]
|

NN 2vep

kL Y




Zd HIYON -4 = 0% TS

—ul! [T ]
FY UL BHEESOESY HLMON M) s X TVS EI
e - Z .y 8 LNOAYT LNINLINO3J .c._ . o -9
e NY1d 345 Q398VIN3 o9 o 08
NY1d LS -
QI9UVING . - w,la.o_ )
ANN0D VEuIs J L N : s . = —
p—— - _——
AN "SIININOISNOD YO HINYL - —II M
15 GNZ "M 20 ON3 @ = '
e S — . Hh B
Uvs $530v | : d f i d ay gl
0M I JISST AN i ] - * 1 ; ale
3LIS NOUYIENNANDI NOILYI010D ! “ ’
MNVL ¥3Lva .0-Z9 ONISIXZ| o =
llllllll - %
ITNAYIAYIE SAN m..,mﬂ il NI BN
Q o T ] -
| ol 11 ¥
B 7 . ‘I
B A — — — B
/ :
y L
S N
7 ; X i N2
UUNNOR SINN 0 e Trer M3 (1) e Ll I3 /l\\
o 4 . — &
oma e fRUSHY 1O daunnon dAL YINHOD ISV T35SIV MON f/
“OMYd NOUDNBINSIO TISET waN \ @.{E - T S T S TPt 3 [}
/ N) LNOHGD
{14 05 5°er2) vauv 35VR ) “Bnouzsoun -0%01
{0 SIKa-L TSI i IS5 MIN
{
!
L= “
8- @
o = 30 U TN HatvnOF Dava
= w .?uﬂn:_ SINA AAD FSETT MIN (C)
O =
oW 10 vV LN Howm B D3cn O
= STNNIINY TIHYd TISST) W 1)
gl |
n_h v 1A JUSNMOL SONIMAS 1OH
m Hn @ 08 3078
WL ITS WYL HLLYM Vo HYVd SHUOMHILYM
LAY | R B RN TR T
n m P Y A\ ._..
l AL HIlvm 0 BOWOD \
i TVRININ KIPYA O1 GIINvd SLKNOA \
= n 3 m.zz...:.a ST M3H (9) !
S o L LN
«IT1 \ 3y (2N b - \ f_,f LS
o e 2 v \ s \ i Ay L Pt
DS MBS, TIWVINDD MO0 3U 2 i 310N
3 10 MILYTOMAR A DN 30 K0 350
e e O S St s SI504ug QIVIIE HIID B0 DNUIADNS
LR B SAMSS Ov Sovmsl XSy BO4 GISN 38 10N TWIOHS ONY AJANNS AvONAOE
~ S 'SUSK IS G S WA ROLT Sqeines o | £
V149 0IIn Man S0E0RGATN - e SOH0O34 JNENd NOHS G3UIIYD Y1V TV ATND
5 SIS0JUNG NOUMIH bOJ MOTIE NMOHS HOILYALO W1
- "SHLKY] OMNOEDYIORD BOJ Y3y
E e 31 MY TVHS HOLIVHINGD 'NOUYAYIXD 0L BORK
] A 5 SIION 3115
WO QRCRSRF




nu _‘l.l-.-:

v BZiL giotfol/a

0-1 = 9l/i Fivas

NOILYAZTI MNVL HILVM HLINOS M3IN

ALNAGD vuy3IS

AN “SIONINDISHOD HO HINHL
1S GNZ ‘M 40 ON3

[ ]

3uS KOILYJINNANG) NOILYIOT0D
ANVL H3lYM ,0—Z9 ONILSIXI

ATNNAHIAVYIE TAN

E}

=E
: wfy_m_
g mn___ :
el T =
il 8.5
{1
g(S=~>
z.4
:-2
=z =z
T 0
B
S o
IT1

s

NS 3K _/|
Wen-HvH3 33SSTH MIN

SLINEYD INInanol /|
¥00QLN0 J3SSTT MM (2)

YN ATNEN |
35058 YD IS AN
WYl

IV IO 00D WHININ _
HILYN Q1 TUNY LNONGD

NNYL W3LYM 30
BOYD TRININ HIYEY
DL D3NN SIN His

TSN M3N (9)

NNYL uilvm

._
|
U
|
|
!
!
!
[
{
|
|
L

A

[0
eSS P S NN
SNOLLYAIT3
. Offld W33 \..u\ 5 3l O a _m. &
T L LA ik .unuuwNﬂ...._uHh = _uwf &

23551 MM {3)

(401035 H3d 1) T8vd
OBBAH 1551V MIN (T}

¥NVL HEYR
(VoY L0 .E9)
0,29 2NUST

JIuON03 0 &0L =01
AT L SOL el ¥ |
JENLONHIS 40 0L i 1. |
NOUWOYE 30 HIIN3D = "o
ey

/

TTtoe

O-t = 91/1
NOILYAIT3 HNVL ¥3LVM HLNOS ONLISIXI

g o-0m0

QMDD oznm_.u\

BV DhuSix)

\\\\\Lmo ook | LI

|/4oﬂ,..v.= 4

|~

[~ UNON0D TMISI]

:

ATl H1ivm Top Bu0-.09
{9v 0-£9) @.0- 03
-0=.79 QNS / SO e-0-
NAD DhIRIXT
04K ONUST
TT I a6




¥J QRAOIE A HLM QIRANDD 38 TIVHS SINJAJENOIE "SHIINGD 5 AVIIYADIDEAEY MO (VS|
| amev v Lmi3d Jes GIGHYD 30 JoMYHGUO TYICT| SBHVE Id ¢ YD 21 DusEd HLM HILVA O) Jow ODISWL 0D L2/1-21 ONvEIS 318000 e e
Rz Rioz/0z/e g - 135 DI YO ¢ T HOGHAL
[ s STAIDN 3T XV OIS SONE DOM D JuUR NOSNIL IV ONY)
WYLIQ ¥3INID ALMILN =| 3y Swuovi 0 gvim JIONS ¥ SV ONv S150d IV TIUS MIZNVATYD YD LL_AGAIGA Jew 30
5-‘50 “ mzo_._.owm o [ = T Uhd.w ZELY NLSY 0L DMABOINOD "H5IN _Z 3215 T 3800 ¥D 8| AV
{dAl) 13k "IN0D ; r. IOH 0 SHIVETIOH 21vd () TIVISK OF HOLIVHINCD IOV QNY HIUYD 3dil RODBHSNA /M 00H WIDNM 00 LSITL HHYT 31D
[Fu s NMOHS SY i3d NG00 g £ "TWOLJ MISY U3d ‘3o Or QIWWERE)S GO GIF1 FLcT] u.&r
__ALNNGD VHH3IS e sisa9 Bm:uu/ T 51504 TV 3708 55082 (TS Y. M D21y EWOLJ RISV U3d 3 O TWMINDS 00 520 4| Wy XM/ Wy <01
AH "SIONINDISHOD HO HINHL T T - AUSY 'di=10H} "ATVD I8 OL 3did TIV “O4vONvIS E99LJ MISY Hid 3dd Or TWKIHOS 00 005 € 1504 HINB0))
1S GNZ ‘M 40 ON3 AMISNON I0H1g B 325 3cid IMLI ¥ 150d] SISO NIIMLIA OWOVJS XVR 0,01 CBOLJ MISY H3d 3ol OF IWKIIHDS G0 ,SiCZ 150d_3nn)
[ | TRG1 1 NISY §3d ‘1337 9 OL dn SHIOW VD B0J 32 O JWKINDS ‘00 L0057| 1564 31V
— : *5310K] {0084 MISY 34 SAIYD DNMS / £9GH MISY H3d SHONLY Tivisw)
...nsau % =HI

IS NOUYIINNANOD NOLLYI0N0D
WNYL HI1YM .0-.29 ONILSIXG — AFE@
MNANIAYIE SN V130 J1¥D 55300V ANN-NIVHD

d
s u&n\ b il Lgm Iy

{l) B ONOD 02t

=T

9
(=]

!
| N B |

T
=l

2
[T S - T (T T %.D.
SUIINI SSOND = | 1- =N
ZATG o80 JOH KL 4 i {ii =l PO ————
d Bt 1= 7 s m.»_.d# 31D WIN3D AL MOOUHSTIL
@EL-HHI 1 =1 TS g S i i . i vy v
} e i | FEARET A E A T e = —— e -0
i

b= ]| == = el ] S ]
IVHE TYINOZIHOH HIM SHINBO)

WS /M YY) JIYD

150d D Hv3

w04 (1) 350 "yrd NOBHLL

m M3IA NOILVAT13 3QIS
im

-
. 9 ; 7% %8 wr = s 1uwo

: mi® N -

> - — MIZBVATYD SWOu (5}
[®)

L

(-] .tH

dAYT) MBS 00 LY {dul) HAd Q.Oul/

HMOHS SY W3 DN :
OIM S1S0d 038R ™ H {dit)

N VAL

- H
¥ : 2o,
2 :
3 . o= .
m m
a3l o >"T1 o
F TINKYHD 20FWD
M.. « Zi RN
g _£471 Jad

i Oy 00 8L

.__.!-..B A X . {n) #.20
Y- e/ N . .
. s 0 = s .a.

NOILJ3S Gvd I13HINOD L3INIBYD

3

o 00

/E.ﬂggxgg
T ¥ Ay NO FINORGHENL
TUS HIW 00H TrROomMo

=
1n
]

HIODAHID DNGW Ty &

XL-AN-WN-dl
FANLONILSYY

‘mouoe (1} ¥ a0 {1
/:a.ux IS 0 1004 13d (1) 0D MOSHIL

13}
-
§

®,
., 5, - o
7. T - )

B A3
TN RIS §F K0 LNZN) (au) 0,1 145 L33HS "SILON /l. S — .

PG 34 ANCHLE TEEMONd S SUORD00 ¢_ 1 _Ehgustsm - l__“ WINEQD V3 e 1504 THW HO HINECD “UVD QN]

VG KO (IPeViN2) WAL 3L 5 FlTE Ty o 245 A0vam0d LR g H ™ 1500 b3HB03 nv3 w04 (2) ‘1504 LivD
B0 0 M0 A DD BT 80 T A Ll N o I Wy 3ve0 | :
ML W0 ENO0N W UMM DoV | _ Lk B e =] \. ! ] HO ON3 HWI 0J (5) 350 UvE HOISNAL
& 6 AN TS B 0N DTN ] _H X AR k[ & dAt “dvJ 1504

LERIOY DY SUNSS (W Sl 353 r.q A all W IHOUBIHIYIM TYRO3iN HiW SPYY Bve
LLLE DIEA 3N INGDNONETY L — =

e R /’-Enu.. s M A3UND 0-L
A¥R Y3 Y021 & Suve o) T 0-01 BHL K¢ 0L
] WYl 13S
o]




53 e

I ey
Y 8Ll Ai0z/0z/e NOILI3S ANNOJWOINE/
_..-ﬁa g
WOS dIEEAISIOND ﬁ:ﬁh«: Tl m.no .__.ﬁh_uusu o1
SHYLIO ® SNOWLD > . AN AN AN . Jonioa -d008d
1938 R R R R R e AR
s A R R R R R R R R ARy
AINNOD VH¥3IS A SN,
KN 'SIININDISHOD HO HLNYL - T :
1S ONZ "M 4O ON3 Va0 INUSUD 1l
Nz LMD WOUVIVED T3S £ = _.u.mo..zoo Eh_wu
e |
W TE
LIS HOUYJHNNANDD HOLLYI0T0D MO0H GIHSNHD % JO .7 L /._.E TUNLINYIS /M 3IVIIE ¥ TWIENS ONNORD

MNYL HILYM ,0-,29 ONILSIXI o US40 (hen) .4 ¥3ddn BNED ¥ WD)
# IAYIAVIE TN

“I5510 NLSY U3d QINAUI0 5V LIGHID AnAGYR J0 %56 01 (IOVIN00 GNY HEG30 M .21 VAL BIIVIED ON SLN7 W1 GGovid 38 1TnE
TNV STVHIIYA SIOGMTIIO ISULFHI0 WY 3SMJTY “SOMYON0 S8 20 IT84 WNlIvA ONINWVB0-3%Si BVINNVED I8 TIVMS TR TVBNMDANIS
310N NOHIVIRGS
6-T -0 DO "ON L
- 52-01 L —= 9 033033 10H ThHS IDN00N IVDIHDOY ORSwad Frtl 40 XIM AMOHSYd Bu | "9
05-0% = [ W30 WU IO ONBISIND AR
3o e Lo |_ 032110064 O SITVALAS MYNONY KONGY 3HON B0 TlwL IvH TVWS YRV ISUNGD QINGNOI ML JO UIMOIIM AB) T30 ML J0 500 | |
3
Bn_a._ou .dn..d .ﬂn DOZ ¥3GNAN FH1 SISSV TRHIYA 30 JWON BO XS N OF Mdl SST) INTIYANOI CNYS Y IAYH 10N TR OIS0 Tylvn avnmooy 1| v
= 001-08 =z HYHL J6OM 38 100 TMHS TZ1L 1 CuHEW] STIOUMVG TUEVIHS OWY SOAM AVID uEEngﬁbnﬂ.mugntﬁkgsuoﬁuuﬂmw.ﬁ
- 001 3 1531 NOSYYEY STTIONY SOT M1 # XST_NYH] 551 5501 ¥ MOHS T TvRIAVA 3LvD3u00v ML | Z
Shmn- % SNN-2 ns s UL TIEYNOUINEO
HIHIO CHY ‘STYRIIYI D$4YDHO ‘3TN OHVHDIINISN MO 1505 nOud 334) AWGVNOSYIH 36 Tm THlivA (wWSANS L NOUYOYED
(S3AS SwiSSva o0 48 3} | ONY_AWIO  AOANN 38 THHS GNY XJC# TIBYENO "#ONOL ‘ONNOS MOHJ 03NO00HJ 30 TWM 035N 39 OL Trblivn yojwooy B | 4
J THVYHI NOITVavES 31vo3899Y 'SIION 3IVIINT5Y
‘o
Q
p - Qp—
n.J N SLH S SN oo = 7/ TSl oo = S
o> T1 AHAND LINONOD AONNOYOHIANTY VL3I0 39018 318v7 TYL3IQ NOILIINNOR 2/ WYLID NOHLDINNDD LNNO
[ Fv) OV3H 0I0vY 3L0W3Y 300148 38Y3 X08 JAD NIVH
m !V .0~ m!.nu.._.r Nomdy
[ HNddNS 39058 T18YD =alimn
w et L | ¥
Z ae NOIYONNQJ 1UIHINGD 3
S g i i |
HE A = w | 38 0OR_ o i
z=C e | [* ] OG0 siomse
' m D ANHUTY DI
o= G
38 01
" Hn N F——
5o 3 i




mo —l! Lws

nY BDLL SIOESeESe
1w ot |

SvV130 ® SHNOWLDIS

T LT

ALNNOD VHYAIS
KN ‘SIONINDISHOD HO HINWL
1S GNZ ‘M 40 anN3

-EE!

3LIS HOLLYJINNINMOD NOLLYJO100)
DINYL H3LVM 0=,Z9 ONILSIX]

ITTAYIAYIE AN

-
s,
(o]

sty TrosBoleh
YLIQ NOILYAZTI — HIALINID ALFIILANE/

1| 8 o
HE -
e © >3 £ BRI TwouT
-3 i [ L =
Nll— E * 3 = == ...J.f-l A%
S = cooofJoooof------ ﬂ |||||| L
its e LT
H I & rertaplofol | o8 o 2z o
! i @ =17 C 3 0 NIY fm s A..V
2 © ! SOTVH DY
S o - Frrespeie - (R ] s WounBISA &
1 w11 HM & & _ _ o & SOMIVE_ONGUD I)
i B A || A (O . = i INUNG BO3 TGS OIS
et 30 iH Sl 3 SoeED] . @ Clc sl simn Z1-an0 (2 &
L Tl T S T 33 I\_— | V0 pananod ava Tws | D
Bt 0 (IM0N) OV SEPUNG BHUMRUSYRN) -0t
6 50 Al Y05 1 OW (ACTioNd [{LERER




] e
nd 1T BHZSEL/0
[ s |
SYL30 ANNON
Javd ¥ VNMILNY

[ 1|
ALNNDD Yu¥3IS
AN SIININDISHOI O HINYL
15 ONZ "M 30 GN3
[——rr

A5 ROUYIRNAROD ROWYIO10D
PINYL H3LVM ,0-,65 DNLISIX3

ITUAYIAVIE CHN

{ana} 0 0-r \.
0 JH0dANS DMITYHE
X¥OD 0=, 1110004d :..!I\
Tha WY HIlYM SHUSID —

TIVIT DGR 8 £ 345 VTR SRS in i

{anl)

S106-n ¥ saN () TN WAL HlivM DHILSIX] I/Jr

a - . - PORNEL RT3 =
= v " 5
w | — 3w Sla
03% (1) /n b u S S
il [ _ r

Vo
o
LT
3
¥

NI

Q
o>
Ad
m HV R TATE ™ yl\ Ll - - |- ;
o EENEL T2 = ———— El\ 5
m = o L . L - P M Sy 1 _. :
= % e | N o T xT {aut} s108-n 0§
Nn E I T )
b @) : :
5
5 ) n " {dM ‘038 S¥ HLONTT) AWGATSSY INNON
i I_n TS £ Jod MIN 130-OMVLS YHMILKY MIN
- =
Mn m v oN3 HoVT ‘g |\
w i wIT1 (dat "0,039 SY HIDNTI)
AUS Z Icid MIN
S FEUNRUSVLN S 0 IO = —
MUNE 3 1048 TLBHNS § SHGATI0D N =
OV AR (HVINE) IR 3 £ _9
TN M0 RUIOOBA WY NI W0 5 X \
LOND Y SAANG DN ST I
1LLZ0 DICXIN MIN I ™ POLIOS ¥ dOL AWRISSY e
3N WNYBNI 120w SHOLGNOD DY 1O DevB 11 Mionsa INAON 130~ONVIS YNNILNY MON

MAL0D DL M0 HI HOUYOWEYS 01 bDd
SHOISNITOD JURGEA O 01 HOLOVEINGD
= 10N dNh=1H

|




ny 82 Goz/or/e

Hvid
NOILYNIIHO0D Y3814

[Farma]
ALNNOD vHYIIS
AN 'SIININDISNOD HO HINHL
1S QHZ "M 40 aN3
_ TN LD

NS HOLLYJIRNAROD KOILYDOT0D
ANVL H3ILYM 0-.29 ONILSIX]

JTNAYIAVIE EAN
e

PLOZ/R

d
I

Y

1

3

dN-XL-AN-WN- Q1 - 00 -
N

¥

JANLONYLSVYAN

H

f
SIININOITNOD 40 WINHL 40 .Eu&
Al SHONONGD CVIHEIAD MIN ¥

HIYON

@ N¥Id J1IS NOILYNIQYDOD ¥381d

LS
Al’ll.l.lr
704 ® 5:«294:V|>/ .afr/l

-
LY
G T { [
VAYSE "Hdl ONUSIKE » - T—
\ Ay
\ b /
2

/
/

ONY QHOMD TKId “LIONGD !
Oad OF “HIS L (Z)} MON i
!

IO LIMHS-TULE 3HL NOAIISH SONWYBO IO IS 21T kn00
INJHNAD WL L SSIIOW INOHIM LIW08] SHL NO N0M
NOWNIHISNOD Nu0JH)d N0 SO Lmans MON TIVHS HOLWHINC)

fG=i= g/ T
VLI LINQNOD H3al

8
~E

ONNCJWOD 3015iN0 987 *
-
8

:

ANNOCNCD HIHLW ¥

HIBW Wi—¥1-90 JO S¥Y ATLMED 1L 10N 51 HOUVIHGHDOD HISU)




100 LIMS-FUNL I W ODISHT SN

Y :.—xoz 0-0L = I IWIS
PR 7 . ouopEE3 SHL 0L mnouunq ANOHIW .uwdE S
A T —— ]
! z< 1d 3US NOUYNIGHODD ¥3IMOd 0-51 o a0l

NVld 31IS
NOILYNIQHOOD H3MOd

m.ﬂ.ﬁ Ak
ALNNOD YHN3IS
[N *S30N3ANDISNOD ¥O HLMEL|
1S ONZ "M 40 ON3
L [weor e ] HINUOISHYIL
BES T0d /021

YAXGZ DMUSI]

3US HOLYINARROD HOUYDOTIO0
] G0k 055 DNISIG
ITNAY3AYIE EHN \v\
e 1HINtAGI0 TEWLITI \
SINI0ISHED 40 HINKL 40 LD

AB ‘SHOLDNONCD OYIHEIAD MIN

SLJ O
[ o]

d

Y

FANLONYLSVYANI

“NOULDNM |SHOD|
20 LHVLS O1 HOtid QILAION 38 TIWHS LOvIHOD|

N

m.u ONY HILIN YOOZ M3N
.o._w HOLIVHINGS 48 ‘@001 TI0J
THHIE HI000M ST MIN
Lyl
9
)

AN - XL-AN-WN -l - 0D -V0 - Zv
1

i1 01 I
L] 1l NI
" H
E_ 1 SOMUAYHO ISIHL NO CHNGI NOWEOIN NOUWGHOED HINOd] I
15310N
T 5]




3 [
nd H9 RI0S/LSE
[Fiv0 vt |

S310N TYH3INID
ONIONNOYD ¥ TYIWLIIT3
—_.u._._._- 1T
ALNMO) YHHIIS
NN "SIININDASNOD HO Minuy|
1S GNZ "M 30 ON]

S RAOY LNt

WIS HOLLYJINNMAOD NOLYIOTHOO
WL O 0 ES OWLISIG

ITTAHIAVIE SHN Wi M O USTY 8 TS STIBYD ¥ DNaPen0)
— SAIISAS SHOUYIRNAADD ONYDBOYOME O03W3m0d = S¥Sm3ud| ‘24

{8) 40 (v) 620080

I HUA IONVONOIIY M CNEYN ONY OIS 38 TIYWS 5TGY)
Y DVIRCHNDT SHOUYDNIIRGT ONYBXIVOSE_03H3M0d - HuOMiTH| ‘91
[ HUOM SHI B3IAD NOUJIOSWNF DRV SHLEOHLY SALVEISINATY
HIHIO TIV GNY SIMM0u0 QN S3003 1TV 'SHIGED AL1S
TYHHEITT DNIN MIN S0 JLYIS “JO0D TNRHLOTII TwNOUwN JHL
HIW IVALGINGD 304 TESN0SIY 30 TIVHS BOJIVEINGD JHI
~ . 'S31 GAIVId

OMY SUMN3d TIY BOJ Avd ONY HSINGN) TIVHS HOLTVHINGD JHi

ggu&ﬂﬁ\ggu: L MO WMDHS SAIL) N13M138)

OMY_SISWD5IND HoHmM J003 B0 HOUYILEI WSS uoz u..: iy

¢ AN TOO) HIK SR u‘_.ﬁutgw;ﬁug.
TW UYNOBO0D OMY SiNINIWN0IE INANIS TYOwIDT13
wﬁﬁﬂxa S DNUSINY ARHIA TIVHS BOLDVAINGD 1) 21

zau_ag! c AHOE =S¥ _HEMENS TIVHS BOLIVHINGD] "6
MANVAELS M3THYY ONY BF ‘OR0s Oif one ‘Zid

"HL, 3dAt HiddOD 38 Thvg SWOLINON0D WTRAD Wowvud Tivl g
THBOM WOHEITI (W (CUYERH DNBCHY

Oy DHULND TV B0J TINSNOJSSIM 0 TIVHS BOLOWHINODL L
DITTIAGD HIHM IV DY TWORYHIIA IYON ¥ 1NIS3bd]
TIYHS ONY HINNYAL DNYIDIN0M ¥ W 0JUN3X3 38 Of »uos Tivl 9

N 1

IS INNYATYS IE TTVHS Suve dNNOND NowiLc) Tivlo

u
AN-XL-AN-WN-Ql -

F4NLONYLSVY

X _DNONNOND US T30 SSTTIM WOZINIA HiM ATJR0D OL HOISWVHINGD) L gumgu.ﬂmgzhi ANWNOD TIVHS HOLIWHLEOD] 1
3!




a3 Comww 132 30N LIRG=3UL JHL M OIIST) SoMe
ANINSND W O] SSTIIV INOMIK 1)
nd Y09 RDZ/efe HOUDAHISHDD WH0JEId B0 SOE LWBNS 10K
—..E!- g

AVHOYIO 3NN 319NIS

AYHIVIO INN-3INIS

§ ViU Sv 16N -8t
S N H3dd0D TS m30HvLS 2f
MRNDT YHHIIS
f 's3onanbaswoo wo wemes 00 _
45 OHZ "M 40 ON3 =¥y JWHIAHIS TINYdD
SEROJE 1IN TN W3 ASTL LY OV SOONMINGD &
SHWOIE = ADYE ¢ YACYORL 0L | o2etee ISvd N34 Ot Wb
US HOUVIHNARDD HOUYDOTIOD T lﬁmmw z
Y] XU -5 DUsa e~ P = R Rl
1 Fa)
— 3L
JTHAMIAYIE THN T e N v T
T LIFDw e [ [RE ST i
5 ol w g L Py
amw an] o [ — f .
waly ]
t# 2/ wus ool apiﬁgu O ) sz A _
¥ 9/% wuB ooeroL MH% I ¢ W ums _Iu..lsﬂn...um
o i o
. awss Ve wofow 15| o | DN Y0 || a3 Jmas va s/ow 50 @./ \.@
- — IWIENS TTRENNOA — CEIM YOOE TSHYN _l-. 8 ADYESOZE TEININBA BOLIONL 3DuNS r—a_J |- HOLIHCHS FTUNS
b Totvd 1o TS FRATESY Therg ¥, TINO3HOS QUYOEIANYJ ’ £708 i \
i S N/A NG (N "
YTV SV X /
GE L) m
& o
a

d

@l =
‘NAISAS ONNOHD SSTUEW MOZIHIA JO
INJGHISI0K (SIO0H GNNOBT IMANIS DWLITI
. E.m m zf
N9 rEn ¥ @En
(e 2/002 *

1
[
| ~p—
=
9
o>11
A
o HV 1
7 @
-
= s
! a OYIH ¥IHIYIM —][]
=
M c 1mv3s
T _W_ 33 ORRA
|| Sl f n_ IR N30 BOSSIBNS 308N5 YOU ‘9z N <D
Wﬂ mu §EQ§.W.~.IE~§Q§D®
AJ - N /e o 38 DI £0-A-000ZAY T3A0M SNILSAS YIVD ¥ 3XA30 IAUDLONY 306N
HLISHYHL TWTwn D, INHODSID AN, SUNGHGY  HIdd0D FIONLS
_.u HR T . 2 fewd . - £ "INTHANG] B0 SEvi00Zuvl 13008
HIIA O INIVIDY AT3vaInm OUNAON LYINNOISO Twaids| | NI FWATS 0L HIUMS MLISHI HONONHL 03NS Aaros 38 o1 B
SHPUNG RIS & 10 INENT "9 _ S1IVHININ DMid BOIWINIS ‘Od NOIVHINID NOLTVddY DVADOD YDOZ MIN
ML B AROHIM (HEMOM S SI0T00 O MINBOJISHYHL NOBJ 1735 DL 4O HIONTY MOIONONDD AVM~INO mirnn| © i oL o0 v £ - TwoSENa CTege] LW 10 GHDENYOZi00 Yioon! o
B.Sﬂl.hhﬁ[!ﬂ:ﬂijvmadﬂﬁ!raﬂ. ML 0L HIMNOISNVIL IaAS SHOLINGNG Wlddd 0/ Toms| z uiuuﬁ.wnqﬁ. ;u.anu Eu..&mﬂuu:-«ﬁm 98 ._.Bam.uuquuusmcooﬂ._z.o B hu _D.u& .Bu..a.. _aauuﬁm.qz 0 A0S TINYG NOUNBIHLSIO KA M0 ‘ADVE/0Z) ‘60 ‘LNOHID=-0Z YOOI MIK
|3t s @30oia oW TN ) (NOUSHIS3I0 b 30N LNINOSNCD GATN 335) HOLVRINGD A8 INTAna o)
7 0 i o5 4 OW LIS ONYIMI XZ'L Witk HINBOISNYEL AN vavsz| o (BOLIVHINGTD 48) "SUOH ONNOND IMOT 9% {2) Ot "I ZJ @ YO BENYZEMLO O MOS MIIWMS NIJSHYNL TVIINYR MF :Hu: éu...u:wu
e o) l.ég ISSY_OMWMOTIOS 3HI HO O3SV Juv SNOILYIITYD LWIVY A8 0HOKD ¥3de0n 2] (1)} "SHOLONONGD Wlde0d ki 0/td (5} .:::!_..m_mmﬂu m.m ©] lounrzza 0 3avnos “uC vaan ‘ME ‘B AOYZ/DEL IINNGISK O3SNI YOOZ MIN) A—V
180D HYLN "NvOBOS 1S3m *.
QvOH ARIIJSONG HENOS 9596 HOLIVEINDD AB 'SHOLNONGD 34400 MMy 0/cd {5) ‘nanmin 2.2 AN OL TIEVIAII0Y BT YN 'HAIR vooz Man| B
‘SHOOGM TVIGTXIY I3 “3A0EY DNI 30V . g .
0179 JAd Qb GHIS 30 TIVHS FSUIHID TIUKZJS 10N INGHOD TW HIONOHG HINOG AR 'SHOLINGNDD TvaHine i (D) MIRBOSSHYEL TUNMOR T10¢ ADv2/021 vavsz twusid| <O
. : TSI INaNDD_a33y] TSII0N ININOJA0T 03A3y]




Nd VOB BIOESLIL
|ECE

NY1d 3LS TWDIHLO3

N t ¥
AINNDD VIS
[ 's30N3nb3sNOD ¥O Hinul|

1S dNZ "M 30 ON3

NN L3¥ O

WS HOUYIRIAROD NOUYIOTIOD
WL I -5 NISIG

JTHAY3AVIE EWN

v

1

N-XL-AN-WN-Q1-00-
JANLONYLSYHAN

H

HLYON LI ) -

Z
———————————— —rrer =
@ NY1d 3lIS Y1331 .o-» o O
— - - - -
- -
ﬂ\
1 . sl
\ \/. —
! ST
\ -
e N

S0 LIRS -TUU JHL ML 0J1SN SDRNYEd 30 L3S T dnDD!

-:uzznﬂuz.—n._wmg El»uﬂdtaﬁ._._.zcleﬂk
NOWNWISHCD MB0JH3d B0 SOE Lmans i

"MWHO MO8 OAd OF “OHIS 30 TIWVHG JSUWIHIO ONMIIJS 10M LINGHCI TV

Jn0av ani

BOLOYHINGD AB "LINGYD ANINGNO3 NOZRA 01 X0
u!gigggﬁs.gutaviﬁm‘n-n-az

NORMEIHISH) OL HOLIMS HI1sSHYHL WM AOH] SHOLINGN0D § LNGNCD MIK|

{BHEXB)S1 01T 23N ¥Xd OUYHIO 30 TIVHS
SHOLINONOD NIHL 1NGN0D THOMS ¥ K EITIVISH 3oy SLAOWD Tduwnn|
A HOLVHINGT AB SINOH0 HONYHE TSN H0J SHOLINONOD ONY LINOHOODH

@®
©
YE M- TINS_ N0 TA3S S S| @)
Kl
®

BOLYNINTD Of HOMMS HIJSNYHL DTN NOHJ SHOLINONDD ¥ LWNKGHCD N
RIVEING 3NN-T0MS WO 335 SV “TINYS)

THOHLMS HISSHYHL TYNAWA 01 L3RS
B0l vuond JNN-TIOMS MO U34S SEOLONONGD ¥ INONOD MK

TVTI0 M= JI0MS | @
MO (AAYIJS “LIINNODSI) DL 3130 WOHS SHOLONANOD ¥ LNGHCD MIN|

.gﬁmSlugs
QIS SHOLWIKINGD TNAHIS DHY CVIHEMUYIM MM HISIY IWANIS 2 MIN @

‘FvEna IN-TI0NE N0 OU34S SEOIJNONOD OYIHEIAD .luzm 6
L

“THNSS0d 5 HILMS HISSHYHL TTIHYA
01 IS0 SY QINNON “AvHING JNN-TIONS MO 0303dS HISSTdDNS I9uNS

THOLVMINGD 4B ‘XDA LNODYISE HIO BT YHIN ZXZ MIN

"HOLIVHINGD AB “mvuomg
INN-TIONIS HD ONAT34S SY “ONYd NOUNSHISIO INQND-DZ YOOI MIH

PYEIN0 3NN TN NO ARSI SOIVIINGD YOOI AN

|
]

- TTONS HO 01LD3dS SY 'HOLME HISSNYHL TWINYA NT YWIN YDOZ MIN

HIIN MO AT
OHKNON "AYENg INN=-TIOMS NO HHDIdS L1DIWN0DSK) OIS/ YOOZ MIN

:

QOOM MIN Ol UHNMOA AMEN DL FWEYVIJIINY BT YAIM ‘IR VDOZ MIK|

WINNOISNVUL TANNON T10d ADYZ/0T1 WARGT DMIISD

Holololeloele

%




T orsoun e [

2 N

:: BNONuLsvaani S,

[Eoom]

9658 SOUTH PROSPERITY ROAD

WEST JORDAN, UTAH BAQAT
D

N THE [
PARTHERS
OUR CLEMT. ANY
ORI

g
]
EESEEEEE o duz | & 3
!E Sl o =5 - | 2|
E §i¢ =L = e B gEE G
gg L spzg| £ (2
BegfBZ | LN-XL-AN-WN-QI-0D-¥D-2V Z% 88| 0| ¢
'gn‘ R sB8| £ | &
g 2 | ¢
(L]

COLLOCATION COMMUMICATION SITE

[TRUTH QR CONSEQUENCES, NM|

Dm'\'ﬂ-lxl
mnm.’
“U“E'

n
a io.nmn COMNECTION

INOTES:

1 |
g 5|58 \
i ggg \
e \\
%gﬁz?-g !
1
-@:
o i
LT :
4 W
: vk
.
&bt il s o :
el e A
il et el L i
TRt I'm
S g e [ ) s
% [if u§§_§§§§§i — A ;| B
R | T | P (i
g i 153 §§‘ ég RN i 2
Ez?ﬁ AR §§ 3 O ¥ g
e e e |
it _ :
ggz‘éﬁg ] gEa§§i ?gs§ E




nd Y09 BI0/L/t SUVL3d NOILOINNOD
SYL3I0 NOILDINNOD

fao e NOISS34dN0D ¥

a13Mavd TvIIdAL

S1VLIa ONIONNOUD

FREL W.O_.:. [27] ﬁuﬂﬂm “n”.-w“..uig
[ o | 10308d HIM LVISHOD — S
ALNNOY Yud3is 2 .
AN ‘SIONINDISNOD MO HANYL :
1S ONZ "M 30 ON3

[0 o |
5 NOUYISNARDD HOLLYDOTICO
) o $-45 s
ITIAYIAVIE ENN %
SA Jau ¥ 30
3dul d 3eid

1w wos
1Ivi3a ¥vB Snd 01 907 ONNOHD

- 19 3L S5 JdAL
. fl T
= 3300R ¥ 3715 6O vl &)

335 'O QuNaud ANERG

108-2 5 oM 9L-% HZ-BIVA amy ofvf
108~ § 0 01-% | stauz-stwa o 0/zf
1908-2 £ 91-% | es:Z-Jova | 030MIs Dy 2

JANLONYLSVYYAN

E1
1n-X1L-AN-WN-Ql-0D-
N

108=Z 5 D4 9i=% | BCHMZ-DIVA onos owy 2f

[T—— 108-2 § o4 94-% | erduz-oena o GNN0GD_ BORIILHT
..U.h:.ﬂml M 0 s 1o DM AOHENG IS Fuuk M3dd0D 'OHYINSM CNLS 2T T
A IO W0 0 3N = T
WU BRIV “IDIWNOD SWLIR HYUNISSIA TIY 363k O30%1d| HldOd VA “TINAL 0N0S 20— — —
o O MLLL0ed 16 01 51 INTVANDT HO 'XO-0N M2 XDV ‘TI3HS. HION| € 0%,
O STeEND XM 1NN ‘HIHSYM MDO01 ‘O "HIHSYM HIODL NOSVHO *TIILS 'HIHSYAL oNNoEY TIAS ovi /o eels| @
%30 “1I08 38 TIWHS SHOILIINNGD 11315 40 HIGHO IHI
™ "NYGBOr 153N TGS ® ‘DM JHL NIIWLIE BIHSYR NOLISHYHE HIDOL WSV WOUDINNGY aviain) W
AR3S0Hd HEWOS 9598 M S)MI0 ® SYRQHL ¥ JAvH TIVWS THIIS 0 SHOUJINWGS I T —— R
wouINeD Tiaav| v

EIQUO LYHL H THIHSYM XI0T ¥ 900 “uve SE
“MIHTYR X200 "108 30 TIVMS SHOUJINNGD  TIRS SSTIHYLS|
38 TIWHS SHIHCYM 307 ¥ SINM “S1108 Juymiavd v 1
[}
[rmes] 3

[ TaN3oT SMignnodd)




————( TS
|.~...0|+Lllal-||...ah o NOILYATTI ONIONNCUD TYDIdAL

ns Y08 NI0Z/L/L
[ |

¥v8 ONNOHD YNN3LN

O¥D 005D HIW01 01 NAUSAS DHIGHNOHD 01 SON0A
T8V XYOD DHOTY JHM {2) 3ami D1 1INEYD HOVD
-

S1I¥130 ONIONNOYD QHADHD NDIE ONaS 24

—J.E»Ex

ANNO3 VeS|
[ “s3o0Man035HOD ¥0 Hanwy
1S ONZ "M 40 ON3

E ]

AUIS NOUYIINNRROD NOILYIOTICD
1 00 055 DS

ITIAYIAVIB £HN

)

30D JHvE ONeS veat ZF |

/ <" W130 735 "4 ONNOUD z
At UL LA D WI30 23S SHOWISH 110/ M

TG31S WIMOL O} QAINNOR TIIS
AZNYATYD “WvB ONNOHD 35VE HIMOL -

O350 38 TIHS wOISIAIY IN3DIM 150A M NOHI NOUYANOINM DNIQNOJS MO0 3HI 0INSST Juv
SNOISAI 6NN MIHE “»'T "Dl "FT MOUJIS EL=|=F AW BRIISN D1 DWKOHODDY OTI3EYD 38 4SHA B3 01 SOV Tiv

k]
——————— e T D HIdCD LW 0ZX,r SHYE SNé HOwDuM| ¢
S1vi30 JILVNIHOS ONIONNONWD NS CIIAT L 0L00%FITEND S0 wounbal v
SSNOUIINNGD 1706-Z 30 TS SOM Tiv| §
I
]

JOMILYA 80438 TIGHS -N4ON MU SIVINNS TIV 1vDD
“Li-t-Z Y0 HOSIASY OrOISN ¥3d 1311IS SSTINVIS JCONd HIJrvl 38 OF JUYMIEYH TV

TR T A E£
SNE ONNO¥O Quvod 0273l 4v8 GNNOY¥Z Y3alsY

st &

d

Y

1 4

Quv0DE 0O 01
BQJINNGD QISR

N

HOLSIHNY Jouns
Tl 41 OV N3 03NN
¥ B

AN-XL-AN-AN-0I - 00 -vD -2V

FaRHI_ 83903
O3YWNISHI TEONVEES 84— ]

SE3an ¥ X

FANLONYLSVUANI

BTSN & 0 s
Mol ] - THNCYS BOWIIN U390
TN NI B I i [ g “ANVINSM gIenis 20— —
NOUNDHARY ¥ "D W) : I : i B iz £f
O SO IELTILITAL : EHoA=fA+ReReH S 5 _H Hoocfoooffocn B 3ddOT UV ‘OINAL ONOS fj= — =
3005 3L O GlTlioms ogg

o
hnoud 13315 WD R0 axess] @
1ROYE HYIN 'NYOHOP 1SIM = 0 HOLJINNGD TN

L]
A4 QRNOED KOO *
v

v w | TONIDII ONIGNROBD|




14y [ e |
Ay 0Lt wozfoz/e
[ |

W0=,57 @ NO{1J3IS YNNILNY

NOLLYNYNOJNI YNNILNY

Tui M
ALNNOD VHY3IS
MK "SIININDISHOD HO HLINHL
1S OQNZ "M JO ON3
_.u!tg

JUS HOILYJINAARGD HOILYIOT0D
[AHYL H3LYM 0-.29 DMILSIX]

ITNAYIAVIB NN

[M0138) SIWN oAD JISST MIN {C)
SYNNAIMY TINVS J3SS) AN (9)

{m739) SUNN el 3ISSTY MIN (9)

*awL HUYR (7Ov 0-69)
0=.23 DHILSIN]

O¥GHaaY |
Yo -2V
d
NS
[us owanix

-@l-00-¥0-
Y

L

AN-XL-AN-WN-Q
JANLONYLSVAS

(T XY 1) "NX530 3¢ AD OJMN03H S¥ U3MOL HO ONY HILTIMS Wi SHIXTI) TIVISH (i MOLWHINGD ©

SSINANGD TUE3A M3H e OJTIvSH 3d TS xv0d MIN TV T
NS S JHL DL 20 NOHYRUOIN YRWINY L) Bod L

§ i)
. m WINOL = 3 4D HOSSIRID YO
m A o WMDY = - [] [ NOSST yHIO
H v emzn : ...En.:n o 0’0’0 [ z YNHLINY 1INV 9 [ WD
_x - = noua - 3 & o' 00Z [ VNNILKY 13NVd 9 [T Y138
WMOHE | Tiddfid HO MOTDA 40 LM 4O C3¥ z e v v'co [ z VRNIINY 13NV 9 061 VHd Y
1]
_w_m ko 5 wﬂw w..w..u () Vo | suinmon z%ﬁ? Alitheeng Toom wasuovseam | poLoas
RN LM i 50 VG ) T s ]
WL M INGHR THENOS 5 SNRT00 J0NH0 | Tiduid MO MOTDU B0 M vi TIINGIHIS VNNIINV_ 338531 MIN
75 tmile Concs Walacisd B 0 - a0 @ z B8
MOLINOOMER JHY “INFD W0 20 150 -
B bl TDNG0H] DY SRUING TACTISRL . HOUYNNIHY TYOINVHIIN AVESIDIN BOJ v JIONVAIYIG 3MN038 1INSNOD "HION 30kl TRONLI3H SHINRZY Tiv | 9
nunsl.a!qﬂﬂoaaﬁﬁz NI 3 "STMEYD VIV ¥0J SISSTT NUMYTY ONY SHIONT T10vD TvWl JOWONJ O NOUTVIINOD | 6
Mol v Somem M0 HIED | Jcufd BO MOTUIA HO UMM bO (ON A "NOUYTIVISH 40 HOILTIINDD NOJN SITEVD JO HIONT JHL 404 1WA SY JOWOHJ OL HOLTVHINGD | v
L4128 020G MIN_ “IERONDNETY - "SIEVI 0
IN NHYEND 129% I SI25 IO WOUYIMHIA BOJ WIINONS TR L ANLON ONY NOUVTIVISH OL gOud 0T K SHEOHT) TWILLY TIv Aimidn 03 bOigvitn0d | ¢ |
34015 (ove-8) 0 SNOUVI0T | oo WRNINY d3d V0D S0 S GM) JaN03Y SYNRGINY 3I0d TV | 2
a)s | (owvB-v) 50 (310} 50 (534) JduitS )Seas] YNNLINY "HIINONT Ju/T15 VNI HIM 1IINMOD Asd3s 0L 3|

]

TI00. 830100 YNNIINY| | 300 TEIION VNNTINY vHINID




Verizon Wireless NM3 Beaverville

PROJECT OVERVIEW
PROPOSED WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

Petitioner

Verizon Wireless (VAW) LLC, d/b/a Verizon Wireless provides wireless telecommunication
services to the public in regional markets across the United States, as well as in more than 200
destinations around the world. Verizon Wireless has the largest nationwide voice and data network
with over 107 million subscribers, operating the nation’s fastest and most advanced 4G network
and the largest and most reliable 3G network. Verizon Wireless is licensed by the Federal
Communication Commission (FCC) and regulated by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA).

Verizon Wireless is a major provider of wireless telephone service in the State of New Mexico.
Benefits of wireless telecommunications include:

¢ Public Safety: More than 70% of all 911 calls nationwide are from wireless phones
per FCC on September 2017.

¢ Alternative to Landline System: 49% of all US households are served by wireless
carriers only according to CTIA on March 2018. Where there is a landline phone in
use, wireless serves as a back-up to the landline system. The demand for wireless data
services grew 3x between 2013 and 2018 (CTIA, March 2018).

» Lifestyle and Convenience: Wireless telecommunications support the productive and
busy lifestyles of people in the City of El Paso by increasing productivity and
reducing stress. More than 75% of prospective home buyers prefer strong wireless
communications (RootMetrics, June 2015).

Statement of Necessity

As part of its continued deployment in the State of New Mexico, Verizon Wireless engineers have
identified the need for a wireless telecommunications facility to serve the City of Truth and
Consequences. A preliminary network design is prepared based on many factors, including the
characteristics of the community, available radio frequencies, and wireless equipment capabilities.
The selected “search area™ and other requirements for the site are provided to property consultants
who visit the area to identify and rank potential sites. This search area represents the area in which a
facility must be located to allow it to function as an integral unit in the wireless telecommunications
system. Wireless telecommunication facilities are laid out in a grid pattern and the spacing, height
and location of this component site are critical for the successful operation of the system. The
property at End of West 2™ Ave meets the engineering criteria for the necessary site in this area.



Verizon Wireless NM3 Beaverville

Property Search

Once the need for a wireless telecommunications facility is identified, Verizon Wireless studies the
local zoning regulations to determine the most appropriate zoning districts within the search area to
locate their facility. Verizon Wireless is dedicated to working with local officials to site its facilities
in locations appropriate to the community. Whenever feasible, Verizon Wireless strives to acquire
sites that utilize existing structures, blend with the local character, and are unobtrusive to the
community. When construction of a new facility is required, sites are chosen by their proximity to
compatible land uses whenever feasible. It is important to remember that wireless telecommunication
facilities must be considered as part of a network, not as individual locations. Wireless
Telecommunication facilities can be likened to links in a chain, one link adds to the next, making the
network design larger. Once these links, or wireless telecommunication facilities, are constructed, it
is difficult to adjust the network design or move individual sites.

Description of Property

The subject parcel is located at the End of West 2™ Ave in the City of Truth or Consequences and
is owned by the City of Truth or Consequences. The parcel is zoned High Density Residential (R-3)
and is currently the site of a landmark water tank. The parcel is surrounded by property zoned
Residential (R-2) to the north, Residential (R-3) to the south, east and west of the proposed facility.
Verizon Wireless will collocate on a City owned water tank with antennas integrated into the
decorative mural. Verizon Wireless would also be leasing a 15° x 15’ ground space Southeast of the
Water tank. Vehicular access will be via an existing access drive and parking area. There are no other
existing tall structures which meet Verizon Wireless requirements for the necessary site in this search
area.

Nature of Request/Zoning Analysis
Verizon Wireless is requesting a Special Use permit for Collocating on the water tank.

Pursuant to Code of Ordinances City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico § 11-9-4.D Verizon
Wireless’ proposed use requires a Special Use Permit.

The proposed ground equipment facility will have a gate entrance sign, information sign and legal
notices but will be smaller than guidelines § 11-13-2.4.A.7,§ 11-13-2.4.A.8and § 11-13-2.4.A.9. The
ground equipment compound will also have a 6’ fence with 1° of barbed wire which is compatible
with § 11-13-4.A-D.

Further, all setbacks will be complied with and no streets, rights-of-way or easements will be
encroached upon. After construction, this site will provide 911 and emergency communication as
well as improved wireless coverage and capacity in this section of the City of Truth or
Consequences.

Statement of Operations

Once the construction of the wireless telecommunications facility is complete and the telephone
switching equipment is fine-tuned, visitation to the site by service personnel for routine maintenance
will occur approximately once a month. The site is entirely self-monitored and connects directly to a

2



Verizon Wireless NM3 Beaverville
central office where sophisticated computers alert personnel to any equipment malfunction or breach
of security. The wireless telecommunications facility will be unstaffed, with no regular hours of
operation and no impact to existing trafficpatterns.

Compliance with Federal Regulations

Verizon Wireless will comply with all applicable FCC rules governing construction requirements,
technical standards, interference protection, power and height limitations, and radio frequency
standards. In addition, the company will comply with all applicable FAA rules on site location and
operation.

Response to Special Use Permit Provisions

Code of Ordinances City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico, Article V- Administrative
Procedures- Permits and Fees Certificates, Sec. 11-5-6. Special Use Permit.

A special use permit may be authorized by the City Commission after hearing the
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission. A special use permit is required for a
special land use, which is not permitted by right within the District wherein it is requested.
A. Provisions for special use permit,
I. In making a decision on a Special Use Permit, the Planning and Zoning
Commission and the City Commission shall review the following factors
and accord each factor the necessary weight on a case-by-case basis.
a. The increase in congestion of streets and other rights-of-way;
A wireless facility is unstaffed, and accordingly, there will be no impact to the
existing traffic patterns nor will there be any traffic hazards or nuisances
generated. This site will be visited on the average of once or twice a month by
maintenance personnel in a station wagon or van-type vehicle, and thus, the safety
and efficiency of public streets will be maintained. Access will be provided via an
existing access road. Existing parking at the subject property is more than
adequate for the expected infrequent maintenance visits to this site.

b. Diminishment of safety from fire, panic and other dangers;
Wireless technology provides many benefits to the communities it serves. These
services include, but are not limited to, the following:
e 911 program allowing motorists to summon aid and report dangerous
situations.
* Support for emergency services by providing wireless communications to
paramedics, firefighters, and law enforcement agencies.
¢ The ability to transmit data allowing for immediate access to vital
information
¢ A backup system to the land-line system in the event of a natural or man-
made disaster.
¢ Immediate access to national hazard material data bases from the site of a
hazardous material spill.
¢ Communication capabilities in remote areas, enhancing the safety of
travelers by allowing immediate access to emergency assistance.
e Support for the busy lives of people in the city reducing stress and
3



Verizon Wireless NM3 Beaverville
increasing productivity.

c. Diminishment to the health and general welfare of the public;

The proposed facility will not injure the public health, safety, morals or general
welfare. Wireless technology does not interfere with any other form of
communication whether public or private because they transmit on different
frequencies. To the contrary, wireless technology provides vital communications in
emergency situations and will be commonly used by local residents and emergency
personnel to protect the general public’s health, safety and welfare.

d. Degradation of light and air for all properties in the immediate area of the proposed
Permit; increases of overcrowding of land and undue concentrations of populations;
The proposed facility will have no impact on light, air or population overcrowding.

e. Adverse affects on provisions for transportation, water, sewer, schools, parks and other
public facilities or increases in the effects of natural hazards;

The only utilities necessary for this facility are telephone and electricity which will be
provided by CenturyLink and City of Truth or Consequences. Therefore, the
proposed facility will not create any additional requirements at public cost for public
facilities and services. The antennas will be attached to the existing water tank in a
way that is structurally sound and able to withstand natural hazards. The proposed
facility will not increase the effects of natural hazards.

f. Increases or facilitation of the unlawful use of structures, buildings or land; and

The proposed facility will not facilitate the unlawful use of structures. The compound
will be enclosed with a chain link fence. The proposed Verizon Wireless equipment
compound will be locked with a key-access locking device. There are numerous
alarms inside the equipment which range from security/access breach alarms to heat
and equipment performance alarms. All alarms are monitored remotely 24/7 from
the Verizon Wireless network operations center, which serves as the emergency point
of contact for the site.

g. Promote the use or waste of energy in the use of structures, buildings, and land.
The proposed facility will not promote the waste of energy.

2. Special Use Permits shall not be granted in such cases where the use will result in negative
impacts, which substantially outweigh the positive impacts of the purposed use.

Verizon Wireless is requesting a Special Use Permit to install camouflaged antennas on
an existing water tank and a 15°x15’ fenced equipment compound next to the tank. The
antennas will be painted to match the existing mural, protecting the integrity of the local
landmark. The ground equipment compound will not be visible to properties down the
hill. If necessary we can build up the natural berm on the hill to create topographic
screening. We collaborated with the City of Truth or Consequences and took input from
the neighborhood to find a location with the least visual impact; minimizing the negative
impacts.

The positive impacts to the City include improved wireless coverage and capacity;
especially in the downtown business district. This includes E911 service for all emergency
calls.



. \\\\\./ A |[enuapyuon pue Aejadold ssajRips UOZUaa

ST0T ‘v 19qUIdAON
SULIBIY J[qNnJ PUB UOISSTWIWO)) A1) 0] UONIBIUISIL]

SSO[AIIA UOZLISA --AJ[I0B,] SSO[QIIA S[[IAIOARYT SIAN

INUIAY PU0IIS ISIAN JO puy
Jue], 13)BAA Sdduanbasuo) 1o ynay,

sso[elIMUCZIAON



[enuapiuon) pue Aieaudold SSaBlIAN UOZUBA

L11egidiboog

rl

. ...p
et il

? mmocmzcmm:oo

=Ry

wft_:iu

i

23N ,:Eom
.EM. Jrh,,m I

L P ham -
4

fsbuncchof

B3y 9yl JO MIIA |elidy 9]|IA1aAedYg NN




\-\u\\/ £ [enuapiuoy pue Atejandold SSSRIIAN UOZLSA

"SPOOUIOQUSIdU MaU Ul A[[eroadss “Juasaid a1ow oq 0} spasu
95BI0A00 SWOY-UI pue SUIP[INg-UI SSO[RIIM ‘9OIAIOS SUI| PUR| SN 0] AUI[OIP SJUIPISSI SIOW SY

"IQUAD AN AU} WOIJ So[IW ¢ Jsounfe
SI 9)IS 1S31B3U 3 saouanbasuo)) 10 yiniy uf "Bare 2y 10 Aq 950[0 21IS [[20 J[UIS © JOU SI 2151}
‘Q)Is J[[1AIABaY CIAIN U] JO BAIR Oy} U] °SSI[ JO SIW B J[BY SI AJISUSP 2JIS [[90 ‘SanId ASnq u]

"$911S
mau 3uippe Aq uey) 1910 ‘Bale siy) 03 Ayoedeo [euonippe Suipiaoad ur poyiunl] AI9A ST UOZLISA e

*1mny Jeau ayj ul
paisneyxa aq [[1m BaIe SIY) SULISA0D 31IS SUIISIXD 9y} JO 10399 o) ‘uonjorpaid Ajoeded uo paseg

"9)IS [[90 PajedIPap B InoyNm Ymois pjing mau Surousriadxa
SI Bale OU ], "BaIe U} Ul SOYDINYD PUB ‘SISSIUISN] ‘S[OOYDS ‘SPROI ‘SEaIR [RIJUapIsSaI 931e] o) 0}
QOIAISS SSI[AIIA UOZIIDA paAolduur apraoid 0y ST alis 9[[1alaABag CJAIN OY3 J0] UOSESI AIRWLI]

"JuawaInbal paads ejep pasealoul 9yj 0} anp SIS 2I0W UIAD PUBLISP

[[1M ASojouyd9) HG aIMN,{ "SIOINOSII 2IOW PUBWIAP SIDIAIP IIAY) 9OUIS SIISN dY) 0] J9S0[0

2q IsnuI SIS D AZ0[0UY3) HE YIM INSSI UL JoU SI SIYT, "9)S [Fuis © £q payroddns Sulaq

ST AJ1D) ay3 18y} 108 9} 0} anp osfe s1 deg Ayoedeos ay ], “sywi] A1 Sy} UIYIM paledso] a11s 9[Suls

e Suiaey jou Ajduwrs woiy sawod de§ aFeraaoo oy, K1oeded pue 95eI0A00 7T O UOZLIOA
ut ded juesijiugis e sey seousnbasuo)) 10 YIniL, 159M UI 9)IS 9[[IAISARIY CJAIN OU} JO BOIR ST

frewwng |




: \\u\\/ ¥ [enuapyuo) pue Lejelidold SSaBNAA UOZUBA

(CT0Z ‘aunp ‘sorgautjooy])
"SUOIIBIIUNWIOD SS9[aIIM Fuoy)s JoJald s1oAnq swoy sanoadsold Jo 94,6/ uey) aI0A]

(12quiaoa(J-AInf ‘A204ng Ma1412]U] Y1V [DUOHIDN Y]
WO,y sa1pwllss Jo asvajay AJavr [UONIISGNS SSaja.4144 9107 S D)
"Suisealoul AJuo s1 Jaquinu
Jey) pue 99IAISS 9DI0A I0J A[UO SSI[2IIM MOU I8 SP[OYISNOY UBDLISWY JO 04,7< PUNOIY

(9107 ‘Awvnaqa,g ‘voypystutupy orffod] AomySiEy puonvn)
-auoyd [[20 & woJ 91euISLIO S[[Bd 116 JO %9/.

(L10Z ‘2unf ‘VIID)
'810T PUB €107 US3MI9q 2,059 MOIT 0] Pa1oadxa SI SIOIAISS BJBD SS9[21IM JOJ pUBLIOD L,

‘TeaA A19A2 A[[eorieweIp SUISBSIOUI ST aSn BIB(]

"S90IASP
9[IqOW II9Y) [[B WIOIJ SANIfIqedes 9210A PUR B1EP 2IOW PUB SIOW PUBUIDP SUIZII))

Aepo| abesn ejeq ® @210A



SSOAUMUIOLLIGA
\\\\\./ g [enuapyton pue Aejaudold SSSjaNAA UOZLBA

‘suondo 1eak AT} INOJ YNM SIBIA 9AIJ ST U] [BIU] ‘JeAoidde pue malAal
10J I9[[I(J euUeSNS 0) SWIA) SsauIstq pasodoid s, UOZLIoA panIwiqns - 8107 ARIA

*22UASI[IP 2anp Ino 939]dwiod pue
SUOLIBI)09U INO SNUIIUO0D 0] JYSI] USIT 9} USAIS SBM UOZLIOA “SUNQSUW UOISSIUIWO))
K310 241 Je Yue) 191em dy) uo Surjeoojod pasodoid Ajjeurio ] — QT07 ‘b Arenaqd g

"OAY puT 1SOA\ JO PUS U] JB PAJBOO] qUE) I9JBM 1) UO UOZLIDA S1BI0[[0D
01 I9[]1(] BUUBSNS PUR SIABL], 91qqO0Y YlIM SUOISSNOSIP UeSoq — /17 J2qUIAON

‘ojodouowr (g a3 03 sAaneUIS)[E Uk oansind 0] pa1do UOZIISA — LI0T 190320

"W SJOW dUO AB[SP 0) PIAOWI UOISSIUIWIOY) "UOIIRO0] JUSIQHIP ® Ul 9jodouow
.08 & 10J santadoid 19130 SuIyoIeasal Jo)je pauinial sIaMo], AeMANS — LT0Z dungp

"S9IS IAYMNJ [OIBISaI 0) SIABI, 91qqOY
MO[[e 0] 9Jep JYMNJ & 0} UOISSNOSIP S1Y) pauodisod UOISSIUIUIO)) "PajRI0[[0d dARY
pPInom uozridA yosrym uo sjodouow (g e pasodoid siomo], AeMANS - LT0Z Y218

Jlwisd asn [erdads 0} yied



ssaaimLIOZLIDA
\\\\\/ g |enuspyuon pue Aiejelidold SSa|alpn UOZUBA
T TE—S—————

‘uonedi[ddy asp) [e10adg S, U0Z1I3A 10] SuleaH o1qnd — §T0T ‘b I9QUIAON

'SuUOIIeo0] pue adeds punoi3 pue 1amo) yjoq
sapnyour SIyy, A1) 9Y1 YNm pP2jeno3au UOZLIOA JeY) SUORIPUOD pUE SULIS) 9SBI| SWes
9y} 0} Bur22I3e UOZIISA 01 IS)QT JUSUNIWWO)) B Panssl ped AJIARIOD — 80T ‘I€ 190120

‘Auedwiod JUdWIDFBURW 1oMO] B ‘ped ANARID YIim Sunjiom

Jo Ajqiqissod oy J9pISUOI 0} UOZLIGA PINSE SISUOISSIUWOD) AN "y [ JOQUISAON
0] PaLIDJOp Sem FULIBSH d1[qnd S, UOZLIIA ‘UOIIOIIP S A} AU} 1y "UOISSIWIUIO))
A11p ayy 03 uoneunioyut uonedlddy asn) [e1oadg pajussald — 8107 ‘pT 19403120

"BUI}93W UOISSIWIWIO))
A1) w17 1990190 e pIeay 2q 0} uonesrjddy as) [eroedg paniwuqgns — 8107 “Z 1940320

dNS a1 Jo [eaoxdde Suipuad aseq|

ay) sAo1dde pue yeap uay) ‘vonesijdde 1wy asn) [eoadg oy yuesaid 03 oq prnoys dajs
XU 3Y} JeY) PSSIAPE UOISSIUIIO)) A1) "9[qBUOSBAI WY} PUnoj Aay) pue UuoISSIWIWO))
A1 213 01 swd) ayy pajuasald pey oys By} UOZLISA PISIAPR I9[[I(] BUULBSNS — 810 AN

N @ @ EE———— |

suoneljobaN asea



\\.\\\\/ L |ejuapyuos pue Emum_._no._n_ SSINAA UOZHDA

- s — i
s gyhte. Ggs pescdaal my s jo EoEMlsp PR MEECIMM BB Y ME lag WpRgie Mg ge MRS WREpES Jape pa o B mp ipw segalley LSy CSAPY WP EEE ap B Spky UOMED feeodeed @i N TREEes papEvbw g P gy
apayes S3cep ooy MCEETER Ry AmErne o ANRD pustdaxd sest asm Sap 'Soars FIe LS K2 008 SOSPITUM SURE SRV, "PUETIILED J Svkin R0m Wy Loy Sy sumgy crioed B8 ) OURETINA L) P ©f Poppasd Lses s saogeyLIe SRR S8 ) SNy

RS INNVLNT LAY
[GNILEDC IR

R —————— . = . e e

1068 CONGIN M3N ‘SIININDISNOD HO HINYL
o awiE  qvorwsN NOLLYOOTI00 MNVLINIIYM

IN-XL-AN-WN- Q- 00-¥D-2v e el

sanLonaLsvaNI S, ATTANIAVIE €ENN NUOZLI9A




\\\.\\./ 8 jenuapyuon pue Aeyaudold ssejalipn UOZUSA
meddn pO0s. W3 pesodar) WE MDY O SUaIYiep BYEA SEEecE owituddl ) LR PEFITE WA U0 PUR EOUNED By QN UL M0N0 MkPsel Ry M 1 JRORY UASR) poeodad B I SABONS REDdm] S OB Wrpey
T 1pep ‘s ROy Fugt) QIS o) Sselig pamdan nanq aam] AR ‘S0UIRS FIND US JU M SO Sik] MU, ‘PSRRI ) Atk s sy (oo AE1ae) SOEREIILINGIND SRARNS sl 5 s Sagyaragt 1) (Y 8) papyed Lt sty sy cppiadapay] sex) ) Susene
{ Fd_d=  A{HaON ONDIOOD NOUVATE HINOS BT erein

.......

s e

o,

S R

Pt

[}
o L
N e R e e " - = ... _.. - 3 by
B SYNNILN 1N S h g :
EERCeRGES e, 0 ~ AR N
« Sant o] BN

—

WK QWIS  GvOUNCSHIN NOLLYJ0TTI00 MNVIMILYM

1N -XL-AN-WN- I - 0D -¥d -2V VLD P Y D) AP 120

santonaisvaIn S, dTTAN3AVE €AN AUOZLIDA



%&EE\-\/E! 6 |eluapyuon pue AJejaldold SSIJRNIAA UOZUSA

kin pyos ap pEoind e sy p SEgopy EE RIS RS e Aoy ‘woptydde Wy NS FREE SRR LD AU aeep DoSRLE B On S0) vse e orpes mAy oq wr amony ulpep pemxinel ey 1 mEaew pEpndey D A g
Doy ke s SO ey Amanccs ) igedyp puisdeed uteq ey Ay Woubes o e jou wm ST ) QRN PR § sedds FEGS LMY BACUS fp SUOIOR N ETA] Sty pasccud 5 s TR G Py Oy (gl mi) ek dutptpns tuplaioptegd miee) ZespEy

b YR TY T TR T TGS B NOLIVIO
G e SR S eiatal o s L R £ ]
L IR e : gt

WNVL 2T EVAME~

e e

CLIFEE]

femwW .

$06L8 OOIETN MIN Eﬂ. : EE. NG M.Rv_._._.-a_m_._.... B
O, NOLLVOOTIOD YNVLHILVM

st whaskegy NS L2
N+ XL-AN-KBN- -0 -¥YO -2V

sunLondLsvaNI S, dTIIAYTAVIE €ENN AUOZLIOA



SsolIMUIOZLIGA oL [enuapyuo) pue Aiejaudold SSIRIIAN UOZUSA

Svide poos G pesodoxl 4f M B SRS GPONE PO ) G kg Sl G L PREDTE FRUREE JRKD OUap o mpale] VBT EACM LIEDRG o S oLy Ueep [meedosd e Lmods] g urpm
Eiiilil&!l!!ili!'i!g ih!i]hﬁiillﬂ i 1

mfguﬁi.rﬁhigi%ilhwa§1§§§? ONLISIXT

| ISYNNILNY, TNV
.www”_u.w;_.cwmcmoz._ (9)

40629 DIDGEN MIN ‘SIONINDIGNCD HO HLMML

WO AWIS  OVOUMABN N NOLLYOOT1TI0D ANVY.LHILYM S rei T 2 1

AN-XL-AN-WN-Q-00-v2+2Zv

aunLonuLsvaNI S, dTIIANEAV3E €EAN AUOZLIBA



= LL [enuapiuon) pue Aejsiudold SSaBIIA UCZUBA

‘mdde pros gt mesded 84 sy 3 segprlp e aEEDWL P gy on E'ﬂl&l'iil]!illiil! iilll!illsiilﬁii
.I!i.lﬂ-iﬂ-‘ilf&ll.l!’a 4. 11!!!!-!-!'1!5" 4 l-li..z.s Jll i|i1l!..llﬂ

| SAAFIEO0D 129 ;ghnw- ’

L %
Mﬂnﬁ.mm;i\
[ONI LS D]

i mg ; - & P ——— o L S A S
1088 ODDEN MIN ‘SZONSNDISNOD HO HLNML
51“_.4”“: N - %.BMO.E“M.% ZO-.—-(OOAI_OO !Z(EW-F(g N pederharkogyy oM 178

ganLonaLsvaNIS, JTHANIAVIE ENN ANUOZII9A



. = Zl |eljuapyuon pue Alejaudold SSaj@ip) UOZUSA

ke (yos aE paoiod an sy p sopgn e gRESL AR 8 on g twpupkie B) YYS RIESYY WU S R Symafin mj qpn agpfs s oy srpms mfp ay aw aycey dipsp pomcbed mg U L EERdLy SR A AR
“Dupayos ‘yalsp WS ORI AL AT 0 ARRULD PREeet U sney A WOUSER DT BE 15 L aDLUpU S NN PR AU S WL A USRI SO PIRGKLS S A0R] CUFZJRI, U] P US POpYACod i) seng SLOpL g Srpde Cuynd s | Semypeg)

Y — ; X = Lt .. EIP = : -

S N

-
mﬁzmhzq.mzé\\
EEEFENfEETEERH(E)
10828 ODIXZW MIN 'SISNZNDIENOCD HO HLMHL
560 OIS OVOUMMIS NI NOLLVYOO TIOO MNVIHIIVM T

AN-XL-AN-WN- Q- 0D -vD- 2V

FunLonuLsvaIn S, JTTANIAVIE ENN AUOZLIDA



[enuapyuo pue Aiejoudold Ssejaia UoZUaA

ssefumMLIOZIISA o

ap paxiadl ag my j0 Emcpie RN GRS MO 8 AR Aup \rgpth ay (g RIS WePEEE S g wdaean Bucosfie sp g gl LR SR LNpeD YD M @1 agony Ufmep pesslor! M3 O GUALNR WEROGN SO0 LB ‘MApOY
el By epe Y S TEYELEED [ s Rens. (e neoym g m v rEy Enpage pEmedont g @) Gy U (R ) e S ey o ppdedomy sosy) mugEeRg

LOGLE OINXAN MIN ‘SIONINDISNOD O HLMNML

oRNCI 'HVIE  CVOM IR N IR NOILYOOTIOD MNYIHAIYM

IN-XL~AN~HN-0Ol - 0D -¥D - 2V LUy oberbngy 3N s 1200

FunLonuLsvaINI S, JTTIIAM3AV3E EAN AUOZLIOA



L [EUBPYUOD) pue Alejaudold SSS|RNIAL UOZUBA

_. 8 —

KR O WS VO UVAS N
IN-XL-AN-WN-01-00-V¥3- 2V

nLoNALsvaIN S,

10648 OO(EN M3N 'SIININOISNOD HO HLMIL
NOLLYOOTIOO YNVLMILYM PR ——

JTTAHIAVIE €NN AUOZLIOA



ssaaUOZLIOA

L)

IENUADNIUON bue AtR1sdolA SSalaliAA UoZUaA

W Bl G102/02 /U
o

NYld LIS

_d’i
ALNNOD YHU3IS
AN ‘SIONINDISNOD HO HLNAL
1S ONZ "M 40 QN3

_!!

1U5 ROWYOINNRNOD HOWYION0D|
PIHYL ¥3ivm _0~.I% OHUSIXI

INNAYIAVIE ERN

i e =

‘\I\
e

{13 '05 £'412) vEe i
BT - SLE -l THST v
' e p———t

//

N A N —— - = o
NS

‘08 X2078

— e —
——
e —

~

NI

™

FIIEEIIN N
—X0~
N >

ZLISNMOL SONINIS 20H
Ne¥d SHHOMHILYM

Y

~

// \
\ Y

ueld S)iS




ssaMUIOLLIBA

\\x..\\..._, 9l [ejusplyuos pue Aejandold SSajalIpg UOZUBA
| 20 rmewws e ___ ooy = ot 1t
WY BTHL BLDSA0LSD NOILYAZDT3 NNYL H3ALYM HLNOS M3N NOILYATII NNYL HILYM HINOS ORLISIXI
J[raees 3o |
SHOLLYATTI FE = T y oop L] Cae0
[=ma] Sin aﬂ.ﬂuﬁu{x 10 e Dm ST O = nﬂ U woT-o-
HOUNBESK) T3S5TT MM
ALNNOD YHY3IS Sy
nN .mwuzmzow.mzoo 40 Hingi 40 MY TISIT AN (2) W
1S ONZ "M 30 ON3 - Ifuumqguu.;w.‘

3LIS NOLLYJNRRRDD NOWYI0M0J|
DINYL Y3LYM ,0-.,29 ONILSIX3

ITMIAY3AVIE EAN

:

I
i
!
“ ————
{
1
I
I
|

— e
III\.III - = - Illlm_llll..lﬂ.&.b.h.

W30V DHLLSLO

i o i) il
THTO- 6-.29 DMS0 / LLES daed
£
sn0 teas)
MMYL M3ive
(rov .0-9)
DHLERD
Tiown) owutoy
=18 TTeI-48
3 W0 CONENd O SN 2RI
¥ D AN TXS M O O
BN 30 SIS O S0 T
URONY JO O = 003
11428 Couan A M0NonaY Y BT
0 &t - SO} i)
AOZUIOA =555 R T
3 TIION
—sg
i

SUOIBAS|T




: \\\.\\/ Ll lenuapyuos pue Aejaudold SSajaNAA UOZUBA

‘s1opuodsal 3511 AoudFiows s)1 pue ‘sI0}ISIA
S) ‘saouanbasuo)) 10 yinig, yo opdoad oy} 2A19s 3529 01 anuruod Aewr A1) ey} os uoneoijddy
nuLsg as() [eroadg s, uozioA saoidde uorssiwo)) A1) ay) 1ey sisanbar A[[np3oodsal UOZIIA

"S)SLINO) Pue ‘SIS[3ARI]) ‘SISPIAOIA 921AIDS AOUATIAWS ‘SUDZIIID

s A1) ayy 103 Arodedes pue 93e19A00 ssajaaim paaordur 03 spoedunr aanisod ay) Aq paydramino

A[renuelsqns aq [[Im Yue) 1oJem 1)) 03 spoedur aaneSou [ewuiy Auy “[eInw Sunsixa sy} yum

ur pusjq o031 pajured 2q [[Im SBUUIIUE S} Pue ‘IYSI1ay [BUOHIPPE OU YIm aIinjony)s Sunsixs ue

SOZIJIIN 11 9SNBI3q uoneso] [nyjoedurr AJ[ensIA jSes] oy sI yue) Jajem 2y} uo Junesojo) "A)
a1 03 souelIoduwl S)I pue Jjue) J2)BM JY) JO SNIB)S JIeWPUR] pUe OLI0)SIY Y] SOZIUF009] UOZLISA

"padeynowres s1 pue ‘y3iay

awies 2y} e ‘aImony)s SulISIXd UB SaSN J1 9SNBI3q UOIIBO0] S[qeIom 15aq o) st s1y], suondo

9say) uo ‘ssagoid asn pue| s, A1) Yl y3noay) pue ‘JJeis A1) YUM A[SAISUIXS PIIOM SBY
pue ‘A1) oy ur ded a3e10A00 pue Anoedes ay) [[1 01 suondo [[e paiojdxa A[YSnoIoy) UOZIIDA

‘[eaoadde spuswitiosal JJeis AiD) .

‘syjuawiaainbai [e33] pue apo)) [[B SION

panoiddy aq pjnoys uoneslddy mmm_m.__\.s UOZILIOA




"2

4 N

‘:Il. l‘llll' I-ll’ll:l.
A o
Neyt

L]

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Special Use Permit for mounting antennas on the painted water tank at the end of
West 2" Street. Applicant is AT&T Mobility with Sean Milks of Gravity Pad being the
agent.

BACKGROUND:

Sean Milks recently reached out to the City with a proposition regarding the painted water tank at
the end of West 2™ street. Gravity Pad would pay the City an up-front amount for a long-term
lease that would allow them to manage the water tank, acting as a middle-man to oversee any
antenna location on the tank. The City would receive a fixed amount monthly for any carriers
located on the tank. Currently, Gravity Pad is working with AT&T, who are interested in locating on
the tank.

The Special Use Permit is to approve the antennas and the project as presented. Granting the

Special Use Permit would not commit the City to any lease or contract terms at this time, the
terms would still need to be reviewed by legal.

SUPPORT INFORMATION:

Site Design Plans

Submitied by: Traci Bumnette Department: Community Development Mesting date: 1/9/2019




W o

._.mm:._m Ll

F50U8 WH CSINIANCIASHOD HO HLNGL JAY OHZ M

STYII0 LHINGINDGT R YHHILHY § r-

SHOUYAJIT | §=

1)
HY1d LIS guNOdnDD 0398YIH3

JJIHS ¥iva LJ3roHd %

&
ol | o) |t
@

NOILdIS3a

NY1d J1I5 TIVH3AO =

XITH_133HS

X3AaNI DNIMYHa

OB EIT uvg | AN

95002 MY “SIONINDIASHOD EQ HENEL
SIININDISNOD HO HINML JAY ONI M

a'g'L :aisn
Q8’1 ‘3000 v4
ANVL H3LvYm D ¥0 L

S91907TWN

AI v

AYVARNNS vivd mn_..E

A9
LPLA LR {1
HLPS L0 T

Arared

SSSFHOOY ALS | | 0w D000 TvIusr Tiv &1 Autaer The LIk 34 0 TSN O IKFITTNT 8
ALNAOD YHHNS soteqini UM FMEMIG SIH SNUSITE Jov SRS SRy MO HAOWS SR TW ©
THOUDIagRINT aais UM MOUYINTIGD DISIY o R LALLM LW TR Thacue B T
DIT05IRLOTZON NHYL HALYA SIONINOISHOD HO HINAEL §9i90TH HALIRISHOD S W I 0 ALLNE 3 1T100ed O Zeceily
Hd¥ YN AL WO/ CI0TIMd el TUTIG Ml TRSAICT S EOUMUN-nS |
NOILVWYHOINI 3118 SRR Wivist e 04 Lom o et & LIS TGS 7w
Tvid "DNNOZ S310N ¥ 3ONVITdWOD vav
{G3UT NS -HON) B-A 3l NOUIANISHOD
NN SN0
5 LT ¥3uy 35T
ANV ‘AADY SSTEHM JIKNYIRD 5N 0350d0Hd
et 350 DHSHT
J HO 1 0 A0 B
SOTEST'L01—  “IOAWDNCT T3

SIANK] LY INNNGD WD
40 HOUYHISO Hils 34054004 10H That AMNEprd SB4) Nt HOUrKhng
“IRRLROY T34

SIOHITY

Avis B0 DL M8 G303 SY N0 QXMO04d 39 Tha S5

YO DN IO SHMOZ ALY INSHBOHANOD B K SHOWRISR
LS IHDIH JHL L1306 TIHS ALY ROGYORIGnaaT Tl SETTHhAs LAl
¥/ DRI

o] T3] B0 viS L A3enddy

S HHM vl S OGS S I TS A0 B IeGH M
HAMOAIOITT O TYOSUD RT3y 201 JH] 0 SHOLLYIIY
gﬁgghgigéﬁ

Aoy UwiS B0 TOAL HIHLO Any ONY "IGIEIHL HOSSINS
Any §0 HOGSIANGD SHOUYIHNNGY TWHXIL 34 A8 dHsNeYISH

WHvh dUYM L SF
DI#06I RLDZZOL

S3LON DNINOZ

L06L0 MM "SINONGISHOT HO HLANL

13415 SRS S05

J HO 1 30 MDD -HONMD ALDd0Hd
9S0%E AN CS3HINOISNOD uO HINWL
MY ONZ M

ALNNDD YRS SS3400v WIS

NOLLYWHOJINI LO3rodd

ltllq”u{l.l—-"l'.
SFINAIBTG
an|g e3>

6U1r5--102SE Zv ‘vSIn
AT ALISUIAINDG M SSTI

121V m_

SHaMOL
avd ALIAVHD

QS — W1h38d vOi  *

+id WY - wiwled vol +

S TWISa S04 =

Sd1IeE vOS (F) »

TOT BT AORET 33008 WomlaT
WOLINON] T3S NENS g (1) -
YV Hawod 20 (1)
WA wd o (1)
S Ha (£)
viedity (5)
LHNOM 344 HLYLU A

W01 Ord EEF!EE_!;uE

TR
BGhanm

FI 4 Jveli-H B N0 106 KYILJOH YN ¥ Ddd MO TISHL 4
!-.zﬁﬁgﬂﬁheqﬂu.as;ﬁ -

.

IHIANT HOOQEA0 1LY /B AT LW {1} TS«

SUVD 5530 WLIM HOM L § I LI 9 (1) TS .
(Ovd LiAvied 19 HONDS) Iy 35VTT L3 DS I6T

1LY G0NV DNNOJROD (DOHIS -HA) HOM LI 9 0W »

ANETE OIS

NOILIYDSIA L23royd L®1Y
-Alva Alva
HOUDNHISNDD IR
vl 31vg

“SHINLMYL Qvd ALAVHD

QYONONYT

STVAOHddY

ireL-v26 (58] IHOMJ

3AV AONZ M
01¥061820220¢ "ON T22HVd GHOIIW JNANd

JMNVL H3LVM

S3ON3INDISNOD HO HINYL

S91L907TWN
SH3INLHVd AVd ALIAVHD

SSLT X0d Od
OTI SUBNLEVA OVd AUAYED
: || I ondaviDviNGD Al HINAD AJHAAOU
NOLLYWHOANI 103rodd dVIN ALINIDIA
MNVL H2UYM 0S¥ a'g’lL *Nid
ONLLSI 3LS NOWYIOT-0D ag’L :arsn
ALNNOD VHHIIS grg’L 3900 vd

S5088 WN "STON3INDISNOD HO HLNHL HNVL H3LvM SIONINDISNOD

40 HLIN¥L IWVN 3LIS
S9190TWN

._..m._.<

W

3. IHOZ DINSOS

i “HEIADD TIWHS  LNGFOMNGIS

IIAS IHL INZRIGNCIH HAIIAS v ONY ANINGHIND3H
VYRID ¥ HIIME LNUNOD 51 JE3HE 343HmM  RUIADD

TIHS BOA3AN03Y 3ALNHISTY 1S0M Jid "SUER3SN0IY H§IHI0
HO “HOUIMNUISHOD 30 SOOMLIA “TMHIIYW DIB0LvTId SOHVOHYLS
QNv 53000 TAUSH 40 SHOWDIS HIIMDE SINHOD AMY B0J

NOUDILCHd TANIRHOLIANG
'ADMATUL — SACUSAS M3MOJ 20 — MOJTIN HO#  LIC LL ISHY

SNOLIINNDD YD TMXvOD T0S1-49  YIGHOITL
SUGRIYN0TY KOUYTIVISKI TVHINTD 'S{Z1-49 G0

L34NS04XT MAISAS HOBIL ONv
.2, AH023IVD HOUYI0T ¥0J) SLATAD HIW0 Ov 3ovI0A AN
H SITVLI0A 306NS HO SIIWH4 @ONINN03Y Ly 792 373

ANENAN0T 20i0HLDTD 40 DH0HNDED

CHY SMIINDG HOJ INLVHY TIOHINMOGY (6661} 0011 333
WSS

ONNOHD ¥ 40 STUNIEOJ 32VJHNS HIEYY OHY “30NYO3dm
OHNOHD ALWISISIH HIHYI OMBNSYIn 804 3000 LR

{33) SHIIAHMI) SHHOHEITTD AMY THAIOINY HOJ AUUSHI

SHOUYXHNRACITTL 804 SINIAGHN03Y

THIGHOE ONY DMIGHROED SHITHENE ‘™MJEIM0D 'L09 il
SIHMIMNEIS DHUBOCANS YHHILKHY

OKY MIMO! YHNILHY TIUS BO4 SOYYONYIS Tvaldnuis

*9=222 {vil) HOUVIZOSSY AHISAOM SHNOLYIHNARODTTIL
HOWA HINTALSKL "E3IS

J0 T (OS] HOWDNMISKOD TIUS 40 JUSLLISH HYXR{INY
ITUHOD TENLLS B0d SINIMIENO3

3000 oMIOWNE  BLE (13%) UNLNSHT JU3NINGD M3
SOUVONYLS DHAMGTION JHL 40

HOWIGD 1STIV) FHL WM ANGR03 TIVHS Nu0M S OLWAIHODENRS

13000 HOWIIL0Hd OMILHON ‘0007 — OSL Ydin]
“3003 HOUDIIOND DMLHOM

Of (¥d4H) HOUWIDOSSY NOWIIOH] 8 Tenolav]
3002 ORIITT 0NN MIN FhOT

3003 TOWET

TI0Z 23 3007 3u THouvNEILM
3000 394

J00T TYOHYHIIN QXGH M3N TIDT
3002 WRNYHIIN

3000 OmdRMA WIHINA0D ONX3IN MIH SI0T
3000 HANg

HO530 3HI NHIADD TIYHS Owymy LIVHIMOD 30 JUv0 3HL KD
493443 M SOMVONYLS ONY 53065 (ElHO0Y fHY JHL 30 NOLK3
3HL  HOUYDOD JHL 804 (PHY) HOUDMISIIN® DHWYH ALIMDHITY
0T 3HL A8 EALOMY S¥Y 53000 OO Ony TIYLS Theniouwni

TAYNIddY TIV HIM ATIAGY TIHS HHOM S HOLVHINGOBNS

SAHVANVYLS NV S3002 DNIdIING




Clear Blue
Services
EADSE

usiD: T.B.D
W IHD AVE TAUTH OR COWSEOUENCES

1355 W. UNIVERSITY DRIVE
MESA, AZ AS5201-5419

GRAVITY PAD
TOWERS
NMLO6165
T OR C WATER TANK
FA CODE: T.B.D
OR CONSEQUIHCES, Wud

OVERALL SITE PLAN

TRUTH

BLUE STAKE
| aay
1-800-321-ALEAT
(TR wied

505-260- 1080

PARCEL NO.
3022078190410

1 SURDEL weasschustins TowN DRaemecy oM
eSTauLATER.
1 AL COADW. CARLMG 1D S PUM NSO POLL

LDCARRG ${TACT PO 1T CORFIRUCTION

1 COMTRACTOR 30 COUMIMATL & Pt wmIT

:

stJg e =———1=1=

TPELM, SYIMLCTION RPORT FOURTMENT
SPECAL SIIPICTORS Dwii STIP ACTORGS OF WIPTCTIONT THE SPECI,
SeHTIONS THALL FURRCH WOPICTON FIPORTS TO THL BURDING OFFICIAL.
o TO MTQTTEMD DI HOMTISOMaL Pt SCSPOMSILE Comini. SPORTS
PHAL SOCATE DT BCAK BLMECTED Sk DOBE B (DMFTiRabicf 50
2PPROAD COMSTRUCTION DOCUMUNTL DISCELMMOES SHALL DE BSOUCHT 10
THE maaCiaalE AlTDeT oFf T Cothacioe fok Tl coemichon o bt
s
Kﬂrﬂ‘
D COPRECTION [
SLnaTTID A L]
a taLel FACURT o NOT SINFLD AND MGT MORMALLY OCOUPED
1 T-CONTRACTOR 0§ ALSPORLELE FDA [RECToR TRy Beiatabis
AMO/TR FDNCIMG T PROTICT THE SAETF OF FHE PUBLE PUAB
toeeptmacton
1 Tl seTDowd Sl aGT SFENDRL o ey [XISTG COMMUMCATION
& AL WS S G Tl Oheows; Al Dt walTs o
s

é%ﬁﬁég ¥ gggéfé !




HYd IS ONN04NG)

311S ONNOdWO2 — @.
Q39YVINI
Iy

. o s
_m = -I|ﬁw

i @ =

— 10w iirey 1 .
—] =it —
Unie i) — k3D 570 4 J— .
LIV WA 45T () N
+ |- (L1 -
Yiw BT
I

MY SIS LITC A =L = i .
YR 7 b
STORR AH 'STININGISHOT WO MLdmL : ume a0 .|
S3IHINDISHDD HO HIBAL 3AY QHZ M N ) e )~y
Q'd’l :Qisn <t ALY M«/ -
Q0’9’1 3002 ¥4 E Y = —
MNVL H31VM 2 ¥0 L 1 i
S9L90TWN S s
ar .y : | £
ELXT] o 3 —

i PP o

z T T ] : — -
muU_>hmm ¥ ’
T 1) LPav) WiaOd (W)
- =
I T

anyg Jea[)

B1PS-10268  2¥ '¥Sin
A0 ALISH3AINA M SGTY

191Y m

SHIMOL
avd ALIAVHD




1§00 s 071 SIS 2] .0-0 = B/ TS

L0 = ) Sl

s R P T
4 SNOILYAZT3 7
ﬁ (o0 29) wiady (3}

Ol Al
S LIT DN Tva 0L (0 e
PUITE W 2-

— 40108 (61 ad SHew 1Ry
9S0RT MN ‘SIININDISKOD HO Himdt td waLTI g (1)
L IR s K] el RIS i A1)

SIIHIN0ISNOD BO HINBL JAY OQHZ M Swaclivee Tiard L3 B 4T (N
a'g’l :qisn : i e
a'g’l 3603 v4
MNVE H3ALYM D HO0 L

S9I1907TAN

X
X)

XX)
XX

.

(X
XX

X
X

UMD Ove THNLY
o i

KHKXK
X0

X0
X)

O

TR W W Mlire 01
-5

N

X

(Sabyo 1) NuTRG Q)
150 agb wdecy ()

XX

Pal

XX
X

¥,

X

—

wil U B=%r ()

EEE
22

SallAlDS

an|g Jeap)

6IrC—I0ZGE Z¥ '¥SIn
IMH0 ALISH3AINN M SSE)

181V m

SH3IMOL
avd ALIAVHD




@asn 10H

f]SIN

WYIIA DHLHAON Hul/ YHIGEINY

— ¢I< — 1 W
SvLaa ¥ 1NOAVT
VNNILNY

_ -

s i0/01

MUY L2 0 uva AN

95088 NN “$IIHINGISHOD WO HANML
SIIHINOISHOD HO HENNL JAY ONT M

ag’l :aisn z[.0-4 » 9/ TS

INOAYT YHNIINY MIH

v[ sim

SMEID ITvHNS

[ B

Q'g’L ‘3000 v4
MNVL d3IVM D 80 L
SO 1907TAN

®

61¥5—10258 ZV 'v53n
IAHO0 ALISHEIARN M 5500

181V m

trva e 1w

R

W rwe-Inpomyh v nadimg
e 4

SallAlas

an|g Jea|d

SHIMOL
avd ALIAYHD

.....

- .M|_a|-_.!-l<n—©

m d.m-n!-n.al!@

(T TS Ta S IR Zva 4]

SHRGLLTT XVIE/m

ARNOEIIVE ALmm —

3dM HOZVY

51 AUS SHL

SHEIALLTT UMMM

DNINHYM |

HOHOMY NOSHY A3
Tl B/




Steven L. Green
Mayeor

Sandra K. Whitehead
Mayor Pro-Tem

Kathleen Clark
Commissioner

505 Sims St
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
P: 575-894-6673 ¢ F: 575-894-7767
wmr.lorcnm.urg

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Rolf Hechiler
Commissioner

Paul Baca
Commissioner

Renee Cantin
Interim City Manager

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Truth or Consequences City Commission will hold
a Public Hearing during their regular scheduled meeting on Wednesday, January 9th,
2019 in the Commission Chambers, 405 W. Third, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico to
receive input regarding the following:

1. Discussion/Action: Request for a Plat Amendment at 1700 E Riverside Drive, Truth or
Consequences, NM pursuant to Chapter 15, Sec. 15-17. - Amendment of plats.
Applicant wishes to amend the property line to separate the property. Applicant is

John and Gayle Jones

Discussion/Action: Request for a Variance at 1700 E Riverside Drive, Truth or

Consequences, NM pursuant to Chapter 15, section 15-15, A2 requiring subdivided
lots directly access City streets with curb, gutter, and sidewalk. Variance is to allow
subdivided lot to meet the road standard for the area. Applicant is John and Gayle

Jones.

All interested parties are welcome to attend.

The agenda for this meeting may be obtained on Friday, January 4, 2019 by contacting
the City Clerk’s Office at 575-894-6673 or by email to: aatorres@torcnm.org.

/s/ Angela A. Torres, CMC, Acting City Clerk

Published on the following date:

0

Sentinel — Friday, December 14, 2018



Market: New Mexico
Cell Site Name: Truth or Consequences Water Tank

TOWER STRUCTURE LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS TOWER STRUCTURE AGREEMENT (“Agreement™), dated as of the latter of the signature dates
below (the “Effective Date”), is entered into by City of Truth or Consequences, having a mailing address of 505
Sims, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 (“Landlord™) and Gravity Pad Towers, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, having a mailing address of 237 West La Entrada, Corrales, New Mexico 87048
(“Tenant™).

BACKGROUND

Landlord owns or controls that certain plot, parcel or tract of land, as described on Exhibit 1, improved
with a water tower structure (the “Water Tower”), together with all rights and privileges arising in connection
therewith, located at End of West 2™ Ave, Truth or Consequences, in the County of Sierra, State of New Mexico
(collectively, the “Property”). Landlord desires to grant to Tenant the right to use and manage a portion of the
Property in accordance with this Agreement.

The parties agree as follows:
1. LEASE OF PREMISES. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant a portion of the Property consisting of;

(a) Approximately 1,500 square feet of ground space, as described on attached Exhibit 1, for the
placement of Tenant’s sublease equipment for the wireless carriers (the “Ground Space”);

(b) The portion of the Water Tower selected by Tenant and dedicated for Tenant’s exclusive use, and
consisting of an envelope of contiguous horizontal and vertical feet of space within which any portion of Tenant’s
sub-leased communication equipment and improvements might be located, operated or maintained (the “Primary
RAD Space™).

{(c) Those certain areas where Tenant’s conduits, wires, cables, cable trays and other necessary
connections (and the cables, wires, and other necessary connections and improvements of such third parties related
to Tenant, such as Tenant’s utility providers) are located between the Ground Space or any Incremental Ground
Space and the Primary RAD Space or any Additional RAD Space and between the electric power, telephone,
fiber, and fuel sources for the Property (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Connection Space”), Landlord
agrees that Tenant shall have the right to install connections between Tenant's equipment in the Ground Space
and Primary RAD Space; and between Tenant's equipment in the Ground Space and the electric power, telephone,
and fuel sources for the Property, and any other improvements. Landlord further agrees that Tenant shall have
the right to install, replace and maintain utility lines, wires, poles, cables, conduits, pipes and other necessary
connections over or along any right-of-way extending from the aforementioned public right-of-way to the
Premises. The Ground Space, Primary RAD Space, and Connection Space are hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Premises.”

2. PERMITTED USE.

(a) Tenant may use the Premises for the transmission and reception of communications signals and
the installation, construction, maintenance, operation, repair, replacement and upgrade of communications fixtures
and related equipment, cables, accessories and improvements, which may include a suitable support structure,
associated antennas, equipment shelters or cabinets and fencing and any other items necessary to the successful
and secure use of the Premises (the ““‘Communiecation Facility” or “Communication Facilities™), as well as the
right to test, survey and review title on the Property; Tenant further has the right but not the obligation to add,
modify and/or replace equipment in order to be in compliance with any current or future federal, state or local
mandated application, including, but not limited to, emergency 911 communication services, at no additional cost
to Tenant or Landlord (collectively, the “Permitted Use”). Landlord and Tenant agree that any portion of the

2017 Tower Stucture Lease
12.1.47



Communication Facility that may be conceptually described on Exhibit 1 will not be deemed to limit Tenant’s
Permitted Use. If Exhibit 1 includes drawings of the initial installation of the Communication Facility, Landlord’s
execution of this Agreement will signify Landlord’s approval of Exhibit 1. For a period of ninety (90) days
following the start of construction, Landlord grants Tenant, its subtenants, licensees and sublicensees, the right to
use such portions of the Surrounding Property as may reasonably be required during construction and installation
of the Communication Facility, Tenant has the right to install and operate transmission cables from the equipment
shelter or cabinet to the antennas, electric lines from the main feed to the equipment shelter or cabinet and
communication lines from the Property’s main entry point to the equipment shelter or cabinet, install a generator
and to make other improvements, alterations, upgrades or additions appropriate for Tenant’s Permitted Use,
including the right to construct a fence around the Premises or equipment, install warning signs to make
individuals aware of risks, install protective barriers, install any other control measures reasonably required by
Tenant’s safety procedures or applicable law, and undertake any other appropriate means to secure the Premises
or equipment at Tenant’s expense. Tenant has the right to install, modify, supplement, replace, upgrade, expand
the Communication Facility (including, for example, increasing the number of antennas or adding microwave
dishes) or relocate the Communication Facility within the Premises at any time during the Term and at no
additional cost to Tenant, other than the rent owed under Section 4 of this Agreement. Tenant will be allowed to
make such alterations to the Property in order to ensure that the Communication Facility complies with all
applicable federal, state or local laws, rules or regulations.

(b) Landlord agrees that Tenant may use and occupy additional space on the Tower at any additional
RAD center(s) (each, an “Additional RAD,” and the additional space that future wireless carriers uses or
occupies, the “Additional RAD Space™) upon the same terms and conditions set forth herein, provided that such
space is available or becomes available and subject to Tenant’s confirmation that sufficient structural loading
capacity is available or can be made available through structural modification of the Water Tower. Additional
RAD Space includes any area on a horizontal plane, extending in all directions from the Water Tower, that is
perpendicular to any portion of vertical space on the Site Structure on which the Incremental Equipment is located,
operated, or maintained. Tenant may also use additional ground space at the Property in increments of one square
foot outside of the Ground Space, provided that such space is available or might be made available (the
“Incremental Ground Space”). Upon Tenant’s use of any Additional RAD, Additional RAD Space, or
Incremental Ground Space, such RAD or space shall be deemed part of the Premises.

3. TERM.

(a) The initial lease term will be five (5) years (the “Initial Term”), commencing on the Effective
Date. The Initial Term will terminate on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Effective Date.

(b) This Agreement will automatically renew for Ten (10) additional five (5) year term(s) (each
additional five (5) year term shall be defined as an “Extension Term™), upon the same terms and conditions set
forth herein unless Tenant notifies Landlord in writing of Tenant’s intention not to renew this Agreement at least
sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the then-existing Extension Term.

(c) The Initial Term, any Extension Terms, any Annual Terms and any Holdover Term are
collectively referred to as the “Term.”

4. RENT.

(a) Commencing on the first day of the month following the date that Tenant commences construction
(the “One time payment”), Tenant will pay Landlord, a one time payment Thirty Thousand and No/100 Dollars
($30,000.00) (the “Rent"), at the address set forth above. The initial Rent payment will be forwarded by Tenant
to Landlord within forty-five (45) days after the Rent Commencement Date.

(b) Commencing on the first day of the month following the date that Tenant commences construction
with new carrier (the “Rent Commencement Date™), Tenant will pay Landlord, a monthly rental payment of
Five Hundred Dollars and No/100 Cents ($500.00) (the “Rent”), upon the commencement of the first carrier at
the address set forth above. The initial Rent payment will be forwarded by Tenant to Landlord within forty-five
(45) days after the Rent Commencement Date.

(c) Rent shall be increased by Five Hundred Dollars and 00/100 no Cents ($500.00) per month upon
commencement of the 2™ carrier (the “Incremental Ground Water Tank Space Rent").

2

2017 Tower Structure Lease
12.0.37



{d) Rent shall be increased by Five Hundred Dollars and 00/100 no Cents ($500.00) per month upon
commencement of the 3™ carrier (the “Incremental Ground Water Tank Space Rent”).

(e) Rent shall be increased by Five Hundred Dollars and 00/100 no Cents ($500.00) per month upon
commencement of the 4" carrier (the “Incremental Ground Water Tank Space Rent").

(e) Upon each anniversary of the commencement date, the monthly Rent will increase by Seven and
half percent (7.5%) over the applicable Rent in effect during the previous term.

(3] All charges payable under this Agreement such as utilities and taxes shall be billed by Landlord
within one (1) year from the end of the calendar year in which the charges were incurred; any charges beyond
such period shall not be billed by Landlord, and shall not be payable by Tenant. The foregoing shall not apply to
monthly Rent which is due and payable without a requirement that it be billed by Landlord. The provisions of
this subsection shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

5. APPROVALS.,

(a) Landlord agrees that Tenant’s ability to use the Premises is contingent upon the suitability of the
Premises and Property for the Permitted Use and Tenant’s ability to obtain and maintain all Government
Approvals. Landlord authorizes Tenant to prepare, execute and file all required applications to obtain Government
Approvals for the Permitted Use and agrees to reasonably assist Tenant with such applications and with obtaining
and maintaining the Government Approvals.

t)] Tenant has the right to obtain a title report or commitment for a leasehold title policy from a title
insurance company of its choice and to have the Property surveyed by a surveyor of its choice.
(c) Tenant may also perform and obtain, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, soil borings, percolation

tests, engineering procedures, environmental investigation or other tests or reports on, over, and under the
Property, necessary to determine if Tenant's use of the Premises will be compatible with Tenant’s engineering
specifications, system, design, operations or Government Approvals.

6. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated, without penalty or further liability, as follows:

(a) by either party on thirty (30) days prior written notice, if the other party remains in default under
Section 15 of this Agreement after the applicable cure periods;

(b) by Tenant upon written notice to Landlord, if Tenant is unable to obtain, or maintain, any required
approval(s) or the issuance of a license or permit by any agency, board, court or other governmental authority
necessary for the construction or operation of the Communication Facility as now or hereafter intended by Tenant;
or if Tenant determines, in its sole discretion that the cost of or delay in obtaining or retaining the same is
commercially unreasonable;

(c) by Tenant, upon written notice to Landlord, if Tenant determines, in its sole discretion, due to the
title report results or survey results, that the condition of the Premises is unsatisfactory for its intended uses;

(d) by Tenant upon written notice to Landlord for any reason or no reason, at any time prior to
commencement of construction by Tenant; or

(e) by Tenant upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Landlord for any reason or no reason, so
long as Tenant pays Landlord a termination fee equal to three (3) months’ Rent, at the then-current rate, provided,
however, that no such termination fee will be payable on account of the termination of this Agreement by Tenant
under any termination provision contained in any other Section of this Agreement, including the following:
Section 5 Approvals, Section 6(a) Termination, Section 6(b) Termination, Section 6(c) Termination, Section 6(d)
Termination, Section 11(d) Environmental, Section 18 Condemnation or Section 19 Casualty.

7. INSURANCE. During the Term, Tenant will purchase and maintain in full force and effect such general
liability policy as Tenant may deem necessary. Said policy of general liability insurance will at a minimum
provide a combined single limit of One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Tenant shall have the right to self-insure such general liability coverage.

8. INTERFERENCE.

017 Tower Structure Lease
12017



(a) Prior to or concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, Landlord has provided or will provide
Tenant with a list of radio frequency user(s) and frequencies used on the Property as of the Effective Date. Tenant
warrants that its use of the Premises will not interfere with those existing radio frequency uses on the Property, as
long as the existing radio frequency user(s) operate and continue to operate within their respective frequencies
and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

(b) Landlord will not grant, after the Effective Date, a lease, license or any other right to any third
party, if the exercise of such grant may in any way adversely affect or interfere with the Communication Facility,
the operations of Tenant or the rights of Tenant under this Agreement. Landlord will notify Tenant in writing
prior to granting any third party the right to install and operate communications equipment on the Property.

(©) Landlord will not, nor will Landlord permit its employees, tenants, licensees, invitees, agents or
independent contractors to interfere in any way with the Communication Facility, the operations of Tenant or the
rights of Tenant under this Agreement. Landlord will cause such interference to cease within twenty-four (24)
hours after receipt of notice of interference from Tenant. In the event any such interference does not cease within
the aforementioned cure period, Landlord shall cease all operations which are suspected of causing interference
{(except for intermittent testing to determine the cause of such interference) until the interference has been
corrected.

(d) For the purposes of this Agreement, “interference” may include, but is not limited to, any use on
the Property or Surrounding Property that causes electronic or physical obstruction with, or degradation of, the
communications signals from the Communication Facility.

9. INDEMNIFICATION.

(a) Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all
injury, loss, damage or liability, costs or expenses in connection with a third party claim (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and court costs) arising directly from the installation, use, maintenance, repair or removal of the
Communication Facility or Tenant’s breach of any provision of this Agreement, except to the extent attributable
to the negligent or intentional act or omission of Landlord, its employees, invitees, agents or independent
contractors.

(b) Landlord agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Tenant harmless from and against any and all
injury, loss, damage or liability, costs or expenses in connection with a third party claim (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and court costs) arising directly from the actions or failure to act of Landlord, its employees,
invitees, agents or independent contractors, or Landlord’s breach of any provision of this Agreement, except to
the extent attributable to the negligent or intentional act or omission of Tenant, its employees, agents or
independent contractors.

(c) The indemnified party: (i) shall promptly provide the indemnifying party with written notice of
any claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like for which it seeks indemnification pursuant to this Section 9 and provide
the indemnifying party with copies of any demands, notices, summonses, or legal papers received in connection
with such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like; (ii) shall not settle any such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like
without the prior written consent of the indemnifying party; and (iii) shall fully cooperate with the indemnifying
party in the defense of the claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like. A delay in notice shall not relieve the indemnifying
party of its indemnity obligation, except (1) to the extent the indemnifying party can show it was prejudiced by
the delay; and (2) the indemnifying party shall not be liable for any settlement or litigation expenses incurred
before the time when notice is given.

10. WARRANTIES.

(a) Each of Tenant and Landlord (to the extent not a natural person) each acknowledge and represent
that it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing and has the right, power, and authority or capacity,
as applicable, to enter into this Agreement and bind itself hereto through the party or individual set forth as
signatory for the party below.

(b) Landlord represents, warrants and agrees that: (i) Landlord solely owns the Property as a legal lot
in fee simple, or controls the Property by lease or license and solely owns the Tower; (ii) the Property is not and
will not be encumbered by any liens, restrictions, mortgages, covenants, conditions, easements, leases, or any
other agreements of record or not of record, which would adversely affect Tenant’s Permitted Use and enjoyment

4

2017 Tower Structur: Lease
12117



of the Premises under this Agreement; (iii) Landlord grants to Tenant sole, actual, quiet and peaceful use,
enjoyment and possession of the Premises in accordance with the terms of this Agreement without hindrance or
ejection by any persons lawfully claiming under Landlord ; (iv) Landlord’s execution and performance of this
Agreement will not violate any laws, ordinances, covenants or the provisions of any mortgage, lease or other
agreement binding on Landlord; and (v) if the Property is or becomes encumbered by a deed to secure a debt,
mortgage or other security interest, then Landlord will provide promptly to Tenant a mutually agreeable
subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreement executed by Landlord and the holder of such security
interest in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 10(b).

11. ENVIRONMENTAL.

(a) Landlord represents and warrants, except as may be identified in Exhibit 11 attached to this
Agreement, (i) the Property, as of the Effective Date, is free of hazardous substances, including asbestos-
containing materials and lead paint, and (ii) the Property has never been subject to any contamination or hazardous
conditions resulting in any environmental investigation, inquiry or remediation. Landlord and Tenant agree that
each will be responsible for compliance with any and all applicable governmental laws, rules, statutes, regulations,
codes, ordinances, or principles of common law regulating or imposing standards of liability or standards of
conduct with regard to protection of the environment or worker health and safety, as may now or at any time
hereafier be in effect, to the extent such apply to that party’s activity conducted in or on the Property.

(b) Landlord and Tenant agree to hold harmless and indemnify the other from, and to assume all
duties, responsibilities and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of the indemnifying party for, payment of
penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs or damages, and for responding to any action, notice, claim, order,
summons, citation, directive, litigation, investigation or proceeding (*Claims”), to the extent arising from that
party’s breach of its obligations or representations under Section 11(a). Landlord agrees to hold harmless and
indemnify Tenant from, and to assume all duties, responsibilities and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of
Landlord for, payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs or damages, and for responding to any
Claims, to the extent arising from subsurface or other contamination of the Property with hazardous substances
prior to the Effective Date or from such contamination caused by the acts or omissions of Landlord during the
Term. Tenant agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Landlord from, and to assume all duties, responsibilities
and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of Tenant for, payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs
or damages, and for responding to any Claims, to the extent arising from hazardous substances brought onto the
Property by Tenant.

(c) The indemnification provisions contained in this Section 11 specifically include reasonable costs,
expenses and fees incurred in connection with any investigation of Property conditions or any clean-up,
remediation, removal or restoration work required by any governmental authority. The provisions of this Section
11 will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

(d) In the event Tenant becomes aware of any hazardous materials on the Property, or any
environmental, health or safety condition or matter relating to the Property, that, in Tenant’s sole determination,
renders the condition of the Premises or Property unsuitable for Tenant's use, or if Tenant believes that the leasing
or continued leasing of the Premises would expose Tenant to undue risks of liability to a government agency or other
third party, then Tenant will have the right, in addition to any other rights it may have at law or in equity, to
terminate this Agreement upen written notice to Landlord.

12, ACCESS. At all times throughout the Term of this Agreement, and at no additional charge to Tenant,
Tenant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors, will have twenty-four (24) hour per day, seven (7) day per
week pedestrian and vehicular access (“Access”) to and over the Property, from an open and improved public
road to the Premises, for the installation, maintenance and operation of the Communication Facility and any
utilities serving the Premises. As may be described more fully in Exhibit 1, Landlord grants to Tenant an
easement for such Access and Landlord agrees to provide to Tenant such codes, keys and other instruments
necessary for such Access at no additional cost to Tenant, Upon Tenant's request, Landlord will execute a separate
recordable easement evidencing this right. Landlord shall execute a letter granting Tenant Access to the Property
substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 12; upon Tenant’s request, Landlord shall execute additional letters
5

2(M7 Tower Structure Lease
12.1.17



during the Term. If Tenant elects to utilize an Unmanned Aircraft System (“UAS") in connection with its
installation, construction, monitoring, site audits, inspections, maintenance, repair, modification, or alteration
activities at the Property, Landlord hereby grants Tenant, or any UAS operator acting on Tenant’s behalf, express
permission to fly over the applicable Property and Premises, and consents to the use of audio and video navigation
and recording in connection with the use of the UAS. Landlord acknowledges that in the event Tenant cannot
obtain Access to the Premises, Tenant shall incur significant damage. If Landlord fails to provide the Access
granted by this Section 12, such failure shall be a default under this Agreement. In connection with such default,
in addition to any other rights or remedies available to Tenant under this Agreement or at law or equity, Landlord
shall pay Tenant, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, $500.00 per day in consideration of Tenant’s
damages until Landlord cures such default. Landlord and Tenant agree that Tenant’s damages in the event of a
denial of Access are difficult, if not impossible, to ascertain, and the liquidated damages set forth above are a
reasonable approximation of such damages.

13. REMOVAL/RESTORATION. All portions of the Communication Facility brought onto the Property
by Tenant will be and remain Tenant’s personal property and, at Tenant’s option, may be removed by Tenant at
any time during or after the Term. Landlord covenants and agrees that no part of the Communication Facility
constructed, erected or placed on the Premises by Tenant will become, or be considered as being affixed to or a
part of, the Property, it being the specific intention of Landlord that all improvements of every kind and nature
constructed, erected or placed by Tenant on the Premises will be and remain the property of Tenant and may be
removed by Tenant at any time during or after the Term. Tenant will repair any damage to the Property resulting
from Tenant’s removal activities. Any portions of the Communication Facility that Tenant does not remove within
one hundred twenty (120) days after the later of the end of the Term and cessation of Tenant’s operations at the
Premises shall be deemed abandoned and owned by Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant will not be
responsible for the replacement of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation.

14. MAINTENANCE/UTILITIES.

(a) Tenant will keep and maintain the Premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear and
damage from the elements excepted.
(b) Landlord will maintain and repair the Property and access thereto, the Tower, and all areas of the

Premises where Tenant does not have exclusive control, in good and tenantable condition, subject to reasonable
wear and tear and damage from the elements. Landlord will be responsible for maintenance of landscaping on
the Property, including any landscaping installed by Tenant as a condition of this Agreement or any required
permit. Landlord shall maintain the Tower's structural integrity at all times (which shall mean that at no time will
Landlord allow the Tower’s condition to become, or remain, overstressed under the applicable structural standards
set forth in the then-current version of the ANSI TIA-222). Landlord shali at all times during the Term of this
Agreement reserve and have ready for Tenant's immediate use sufficient structural loading capacity on the Tower
to support Tenant’s installation of up to thirty-five thousand square inches (35,000 sq. in.) of Wind Load Surface
Area, in the aggregate, of Communication Facilities anywhere on the Tower (the “Allowed Wind Load Surface
Area”). “Wind Load Surface Area” means the Flat Plate Equivalent Area, as defined in ANSI TIA standards,
of any appurtenance (excluding all mounts, platforms, cables and other non-operating equipment) at ninety
degrees (90°) perpendicular to wind direction, possessing the characteristics of flat material, with associated drag
factors. Landlord shall be responsible for the costs of all structural modifications to the Tower, including the costs
of related Government Approvals or other approvals, to support the Allowed Wind Load Surface Area. In the
event that Tenant has used the Allowed Wind Load Surface Area and an installation of Communication Facilities
within the Primary RAD Space will require structural modifications to comply with the Structural Standards,
Tenant will pay Landlord for the portion of the structural modifications that is necessary to support Tenant's
loading in excess of the Allowed Wind Load Surface Area. In the event that Tenant has used the Allowed Wind
Load Surface Area and an installation of Communication Facilities within the Additional RAD Space will require
structural modifications to comply with the Structural Standards, Tenant may, in its sole discretion, pay Landlord
either (i) the portion of the structural medifications that is necessary to support Tenant’s loading in excess of the
Allowed Wind Load Surface Area; or (ii) an incremental increase in Rent in accordance with Section 4(d) of this
Agreement. In no event shall Tenant be responsible for Tower modification costs to support the installations of
6

2007 Tower Structure Lease
12007



other tenants or for the Tower to comply with applicable law so long as Tenant’s installation is within the Allowed
Wind Load Surface Area.

(c) Tenant will be responsible for paying on a monthly or quarterly basis all utilities charges for
electricity, telephone service or any other utility used or consumed by Tenant on the Premises. In the event Tenant
cannot secure its own metered electrical supply, Tenant will have the right, at its own cost and expense, to sub-
meter from Landlord. When sub-metering is required under this Agreement, Landlord will read the meter and
provide Tenant with an invoice and usage data on a monthly basis. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for such
utility usage at the same rate charged to Landlord by the utility service provider. Landlord further agrees to
provide the usage data and invoice on forms provided by Tenant and to send such forms to such address and/or
agent designated by Tenant. Tenant will remit payment within sixty (60) days of receipt of the usage data and
required forms. Landlord shall maintain accurate and detailed records of all utility expenses, invoices and
payments applicable to Tenant’s reimbursement obligations hereunder. Within fifteen (15) days after a request
from Tenant, Landlord shall provide copies of such utility billing records to the Tenant in the form of copies of
invoices, contracts and cancelled checks. If the utility billing records reflect an overpayment by Tenant, Tenant
shall have the right to deduct the amount of such overpayment from any monies due to Landlord from Tenant.

(d) As noted in Section 4(c) above, any utility fee recovery by Landlord is limited to a twelve (12)
month period. If Tenant submeters electricity from Landlord, Landlord agrees to give Tenant at least twenty-four
(24) hours advance notice of any planned interruptions of said electricity. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant
provides a communication service which requires electrical power to operate and must operate twenty-four (24)
hours per day, seven (7) days per week. If the interruption is for an extended period of time, in Tenant’s reasonable
determination, Landlord agrees to allow Tenant the right to bring in a temporary source of power for the duration
of the interruption. Landlord will not be responsible for interference with, interruption of or failure, beyond the
reasonable control of Landlord, of such services to be furnished or supplied by Landlord.

(e) Tenant will have the right to install utilities, at Tenant's expense, and to improve present utilities
on the Property and the Premises. Landlord hereby grants to any service company providing utility or similar
services, including electric power and telecommunications, to Tenant an easement over the Property, from an open
and improved public road to the Premises, and upon the Premises, for the purpose of constructing, operating and
maintaining such lines, wires, circuits, and conduits, associated equipment cabinets and such appurtenances
thereto, as such service companies may from time to time require in order to provide such services to the Premises.
Upon Tenant’s or service company’s request, Landlord will execute a separate recordable easement evidencing
this grant, at no cost to Tenant or the service company.

15. DEFAULT AND RIGHT TO CURE.

{a) The following will be deemed a default by Tenant and a breach of this Agreement: (i) non-
payment of Rent if such Rent remains unpaid for more than thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord of
such failure to pay; or (ii) Tenant’s failure to perform any other term or condition under this Agreement within
forty-five (45) days after written notice from Landlord specifying the failure. No such failure, however, will be
deemed to exist if Tenant has commenced to cure such default within such period and provided that such efforts
are prosecuted to completion with reasonable diligence. Delay in curing a default will be excused if due to causes
beyond the reasonable control of Tenant. If Tenant remains in default beyond any applicable cure period, then
Landlord will have the right to exercise any and all rights and remedies available to it under law and equity.

(b) The following will be deemed a default by Landlord and a breach of this Agreement: (i)
Landlord’s failure to provide Access to the Premises as required by Section 12 within twenty-four (24) hours after
written notice of such failure; (ii) Landlord’s failure to cure an interference problem as required by Section 8 of
this Agreement within twenty-four (24) hours after written notice of such failure; or (iii) Landlord’s failure to
perform any term, condition or breach of any warranty or covenant under this Agreement within forty-five (45)
days after written notice from Tenant specifying the failure. No such failure, however, will be deemed to exist if
Landlord has commenced to cure the default within such period and provided such efforts are prosecuted to
completion with reasonable diligence. Delay in curing a default will be excused if due to causes beyond the
reasonable control of Landlord. If Landlord remains in default beyond any applicable cure period, Tenant will
have: (i) the right to cure Landlord’s default and to deduct the costs of such cure from any monies due to Landlord
from Tenant, and (ii) any and all other rights available to it under law and equity.

7

2017 Tower Structute Lease
12,017



16. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLEASE. Tenant will have the right to assign this Agreement or sublease the
Premises and its rights herein, in whole or in part, without Landlord’s consent. [Upon notification to Landlord of
such assignment, Tenant will be relieved of all future performance, liabilities and obligations under this
Agreement to the extent of such assignment.]

17. NOTICES. All notices, requests and demands hereunder will be given by first class certified or registered
mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be effective
when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered. Notices will be addressed to the parties hereto
as follows:

If to Tenant: Gravity Pad Towers, LLC
Attn: Real Estate Department
Re: Cell Site #: NML06165; Cell Site Name: T or C Water Tank (NM)
237 West La Entrada
Corrales, New Mexico §7048

If to Landlord: City of Truth or Consequences
505 Sims, Truth or Consequences
New Mexico 87901

Either party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to
the other party hereto as provided herein.

18. CONDEMNATION. In the event Landlord receives notification of any condemnation proceedings
affecting the Property, Landlord will provide notice of the proceeding to Tenant within twenty-four (24) hours. If
a condemning authority takes all of the Property, or a portion sufficient, in Tenant’s sole determination, to render
the Premises unsuitable for Tenant, this Agreement will terminate as of the date the title vests in the condemning
authority. The parties will each be entitled to pursue their own separate awards in the condemnation proceeds,
which for Tenant will include, where applicable, the value of its Communication Facility, moving expenses,
prepaid Rent, and business dislocation expenses. Tenant will be entitled to reimbursement for any prepaid Rent
on a pro rata basis.

19. CASUALTY. Landlord will provide notice to Tenant of any casualty or other harm affecting the Property
within twenty-four (24) hours of the casualty or other harm. If any part of the Communication Facility or the
Property is damaged by casualty or other harm as to render the Premises unsuitable, in Tenant’s sole
determination, then Tenant may terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Landlord, which
termination will be effective as of the date of such casualty or other harm. Upon such termination, Tenant will be
entitled to collect all insurance proceeds payable to Tenant on account thereof and to be reimbursed for any prepaid
Rent on a pro rata basis. Landlord agrees to permit Tenant to place temporary transmission and reception facilities
on the Property, but only until such time as Tenant is able to activate a replacement transmission facility at another
location; notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, such temporary facilities will be governed by all of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including Rent. If Landlord or Tenant undertakes to rebuild or restore
the Premises and/or the Communication Facility, as applicable, Landlord agrees to permit Tenant to place
temporary transmission and reception facilities on the Property at no additional Rent until the reconstruction of
the Premises and/or the Communication Facility is completed. If Landlord determines not to rebuild or restore
the Property, Landlord will notify Tenant of such determination within thirty (30) days after the casualty or other
harm. If Landlord does not so notify Tenant and Tenant decides not to terminate under this Section 19, then
Landlord will promptly rebuild or restore any portion of the Property interfering with or required for Tenant’s
8

2017 Tower Structure Lease
12,007



Permitted Use of the Premises to substantially the same condition as existed before the casualty or other harm.
Landlord agrees that the Rent shall be abated unti! the Property and/or the Premises are rebuilt or restored, unless
Tenant places temporary transmission and reception facilities on the Property.

20. WAIVER OF LANDLORD’S LIENS. Landlord waives any and all lien rights it may have, statutory or
otherwise, concerning the Communication Facility or any portion thereof. The Communication Facility shall be
deemed personal property for purposes of this Agreement, regardless of whether any portion is deemed real or
personal property under applicable law; Landlord consents to Tenant’s right to remove all or any portion of the
Communication Facility from time to time in Tenant’s sole discretion and without Landlord’s consent.

21. TAXES.

{a) Landlord shall be responsible for (i) all taxes and assessments levied upon the lands, improvements
and other property of Landlord including any such taxes that may be calculated by a taxing authority using any
method, including the income method, (ii) all sales, use, license, value added, documentary, stamp, gross receipts,
registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and other similar taxes and fees imposed in
connection with this Agreement, and (iii) all sales, use, license, value added, documentary, stamp, gross receipts,
registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and other similar taxes and fees imposed in
connection with a sale of the Property or assignment of Rent payments by Landlord. Tenant shall be responsible
for (y) any taxes and assessments attributable to and levied upon Tenant's leasehold improvements on the Premises
if and as set forth in this Section 21 and (z) all sales, use, license, value added, documentary, stamp, gross receipts,
registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and other similar taxes and fees imposed in
connection with an assignment of this Agreement or sublease by Tenant. Nothing herein shall require Tenant to
pay any inheritance, franchise, income, payroll, excise, privilege, rent, capital stock, stamp, documentary, estate
or profit tax, or any tax of similar nature, that is or may be imposed upon Landlord.

(b) In the event Landlord receives a notice of assessment with respect to which taxes or assessments are
imposed on Tenant’s leasehold improvements on the Premises, Landlord shall provide Tenant with copies of each
such notice immediately upon receipt, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after the date of such notice of
assessment. If Landlord does not provide such notice or notices to Tenant in a timely manner and Tenant’s rights
with respect to such taxes are prejudiced by the delay, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for any increased costs
directly resulting from the delay and Landlord shall be responsible for payment of the tax or assessment set forth
in the notice, and Landlord shall not have the right to reimbursement of such amount from Tenant. If Landlord
provides a notice of assessment to Tenant within such time period and requests reimbursement from Tenant as set
forth below, then Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the tax or assessments identified on the notice of assessment
on Tenant’s leasehold improvements, which has been paid by Landlord. If Landlord seeks reimbursement from
Tenant, Landlord shall, no later than thirty (30) days afier Landlord’s payment of the taxes or assessments for the
assessed tax year, provide Tenant with written notice including evidence that Landlord has timely paid same, and
Landlord shall provide to Tenant any other documentation reasonably requested by Tenant to allow Tenant to
evaluate the payment and to reimburse Landlord.

(c) For any tax amount for which Tenant is responsible under this Agreement, Tenant shall have the right
to contest, in good faith, the validity or the amount thereof using such administrative, appellate or other
proceedings as may be appropriate in the jurisdiction, and may defer payment of such obligations, pay same under
protest, or take such other steps as permitted by law. This right shall include the ability to institute any legal,
regulatory or informal action in the name of Landlord, Tenant, or both, with respect to the valuation of the
Premises. Landlord shall cooperate with respect to the commencement and prosecution of any such proceedings
and will execute any documents required therefor. The expense of any such proceedings shall be borne by Tenant
and any refunds or rebates secured as a result of Tenant's action shall belong to Tenant, to the extent the amounts
were originally paid by Tenant. In the event Tenant notifies Landlord by the due date for assessment of Tenant’s
intent to contest the assessment, Landlord shall not pay the assessment pending conclusion of the contest, unless
required by applicable law.

(d) Landlord shall not split or cause the tax parcel on which the Premises are located to be split, bifurcated,
separated or divided without the prior written consent of Tenant.

2017 Tower Structure Leass
12147



(e) Tenant shall have the right but not the obligation to pay any taxes due by Landlord hereunder if
Landlord fails to timely do so, in addition to any other rights or remedies of Tenant. In the event that Tenant
exercises its rights under this Section 21(e) due to such Landlord default, Tenant shall have the right to deduct
such tax amounts paid from any monies due to Landlord from Tenant as provided in Section 15(b), provided that
Tenant may exercise such right without having provided to Landlord notice and the opportunity to cure per Section
15(b) of this Agreement.

(f) Any tax-related notices shall be sent to Tenant in the manner set forth in Section 17 of this Agreement.

(g) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 21, Tenant shall have no obligation
to reimburse any tax or assessment for which the Landlord is reimbursed or rebated by a third party.

22, SALE OF PROPERTY.

(a) Landlord may sell the Property or a portion thereof to a third party, provided: (i) the sale is made
subject to the terms of this Agreement; and (ii) if the sale does not include the assignment of Landlord’s full
interest in this Agreement, the purchaser must agree to perform, without requiring compensation from Tenant or
any subtenant, any obligation of Landlord under this Agreement, including Landlord’s obligation to cooperate
with Tenant as provided hereunder.

(b) If Landlord, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, decides to rezone or sell, subdivide
or otherwise transfer all or any part of the Premises, or all or any part of the Property or the Surrounding Property,
to a purchaser other than Tenant, Landiord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing, and such rezoning, sale,
subdivision or transfer shall be subject to this Agreement and Tenant’s rights hereunder. In the event of a change
in ownership, transfer or sale of the Property, within ten (10) days of such transfer, Landlord or its successor shall
send the documents listed below in this Section 22(b) to Tenant. Until Tenant receives all such documents,
Tenant’s failure to make payments under this Agreement shall not be an event of default and Tenant reserves the
right to hold payments due under this Agreement.

i. Old deed to Property
ii. New deed to Property
iii. Bill of Sale or Transfer

iv. Copy of current Tax Bill

v. New IRS Form W-9

vi. Completed and Signed Tenant Payment Direction Form

vii, Full contact information for new Landlord including phone number(s)

(c) Landlord agrees not to sell, lease or use any areas of the Property or the Surrounding Property for
the installation, operation or maintenance of other wireless communication facilities if such installation, operation
or maintenance would interfere with Tenant's Permitted Use or communications equipment as determined by
radio propagation tests performed by Tenant in its sole discretion. Landlord or Landlord’s prospective purchaser
shall reimburse Tenant for any costs and expenses of such testing. If the radio frequency propagation tests
demonstrate levels of interference unacceptable to Tenant, Landlord shall be prohibited from selling, leasing or
using any areas of the Property or the Surrounding Property for purposes of any installation, operation or
maintenance of any other wireless communication facility or equipment.

(d) The provisions of this Section 22 shall in no way limit or impair the obligations of Landlord under
this Agreement, including interference and access obligations.

23. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Amendment/Waiver. This Agreement cannot be amended, modified or revised unless done in
writing and signed by Landlord and Tenant, No provision may be waived except in a writing signed by both
parties. The failure by a party to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to require performance by the other
party will not be construed to be a waiver, or in any way affect the right of either party to enforce such provision
thereafter.

10

2007 Tower Structam Leass
12.1.17



(b) Memorandum/Short Form Lease. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement,
the parties will execute a recordable Memorandum of Lease substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 24(b).
Either party may record this Memorandum of Lease at any time during the Term, in its absolute discretion.
Thereafter during the Term, either party will, at any time upon fifteen (15) business days’ prior written notice
from the other, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other a recordable Memorandum of Lease.

(c) Limitation of Liability, Except for the indemnity obligations set forth in this Agreement, and
otherwise notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Tenant and Landlord each waives any
claims that each may have against the other with respect to consequential, incidental or special damages, however
caused, based on any theory of liability.

(d) Compliance with Law. Tenant agrees to comply with all federal, state and Jocal laws, orders,
rules and regulations (“Laws") applicable to Tenant’s use of the Communication Facility on the Property.
Landlord agrees to comply with all Laws relating to Landlord’s ownership and use of the Property and any
improvements on the Property.

{e) Bind and Benefit. The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement will run with the
Property and bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns.

D Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto, all being a part hereof,
constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto and will supersede all prior offers, negotiations and agreements
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. Exhibits are numbered to correspond to the Section wherein
they are first referenced. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, each party shall bear its own fees and
expenses (including the fees and expenses of its agents, brokers, representatives, attorneys, and accountants)
incurred in connection with the negotiation, drafting, execution and performance of this Agreement and the
transactions it contemplates.

(g) Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the state in which the Premises
are located, without regard to conflicts of law.

(h) Interpretation. Unless otherwise specified, the following rules of construction and interpretation
apply: (i) captions are for convenience and reference only and in no way define or limit the construction of the
terms and conditions hereof; (ii) use of the term “including” will be interpreted to mean “including but not limited
to”; (iii) whenever a party’s consent is required under this Agreement, except as otherwise stated in the Agreement
or as same may be duplicative, such consent will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; (iv)
exhibits are an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated by reference into this Agreement; (v) use of
the terms “termination” or “expiration” are interchangeable; (vi) reference to a default will take into consideration
any applicable notice, grace and cure periods; (vii) to the extent there is any issue with respect to any alleged,
perceived or actual ambiguity in this Agreement, the ambiguity shall not be resolved on the basis of who drafted
the Agreement; (viii) the singular use of words includes the plural where appropriate; and (ix) if any provision of
this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain
in full force if the overall purpose of the Agreement is not rendered impossible and the original purpose, inient or
consideration is not materially impaired.

(1) Affiliates, All references to “Tenant” shall be deemed to include any Affiliate of Gravity Pad
Towers, LLC using the Premises for any Permitted Use or otherwise exercising the rights of Tenant pursuant to
this Agreement. “Affiliate” means with respect to a party to this Agreement, any person or entity that (directly or
indirectly) controls, is controlled by, or under common control with, that party. “Control” of a person or entity
means the power (directly or indirectly) to direct the management or policies of that person or entity, whether
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, by agency or otherwise.

)] Survival. Any provisions of this Agreement relating to indemnification shall survive the
termination or expiration hereof. In addition, any terms and conditions contained in this Agreement that by their
sense and context are intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall so survive.

(k) W-9. As acondition precedent to payment, Landlord agrees to provide Tenant with a completed
IRS Form W-9, or its equivalent, upon execution of this Agreement and at such other times as may be reasonably
requested by Tenant, including any change in Landlord’s name or address.

n Execution/No Option. The submission of this Agreement to any party for examination or
consideration does not constitute an offer, reservation of or option for the Premises based on the terms set forth

11

2047 Tower Structun: Lease
12,017



herein. This Agreement will become effective as a binding Agreement only upon the handwritten legal execution,
acknowledgment and delivery hereof by Landlord and Tenant. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or
more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when
one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties. All parties need not sign the same counterpart.

(m)  Attorneys’ Fees. In the event that any dispute between the parties related to this Agreement
should result in litigation, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover from the other party
all reasonable fees and expenses of enforcing any right of the prevailing party, including reasonable atiorneys’
fees and expenses. Prevailing party means the party determined by the court to have most nearly prevailed even
if such party did not prevail in all matters. This provision will not be construed to entitle any party other than
Landlord, Tenant and their respective Affiliates to recover their fees and expenses.

{(n) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW,
KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN
ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY
WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS IT CONTEMPLATES.

(0) Incidental Fees. Unless specified in this Agreement, no unilateral fees or additional costs or
expenses are to be applied by either party to the other party, including review of plans, structural analyses,
consents, provision of documents or other communications between the parties.

) Further Acts. Upon request, Landlord will cause to be promptly and duly taken, executed,
acknowledged and delivered all such further acts, documents, and assurances as Tenant may request from time to
time in order to effectuate, carry out and perform ali of the terms, provisions and conditions of this Agreement
and all transactions and Permitted Use contemplated by this Agreement.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]

20t 7 Tuwer Structore Lease
12,117



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date.
“LANDLORD”

City of Truth or Consequences

By:
Print Name: [ ]
Its: [Insert Title]

Date: _____ [Insert Date]

LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF )

) s5:

COUNTY OF )
On  the day of , 20_ Dbefore me, personally appeared

, who acknowledged under oath, that he/she is the person/officer named in the
within instrument, and that he/she executed the same in his/her stated capacity as the voluntary act and deed of
the Landlord for the purposes therein contained.

Notary Public:
My Commission Expires:

2017 Tower Structure Lease
J NN



“TENANT"

Gravity Pad Towers, LLC,
a New Mexico limited liability company

By:
Print Name: [ ]
Its: [Insert Title]

Date: [Insert Date]

TENANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF )
) ss:
COUNTY OF )
On the day of , 20___, before me personally appeared
, and acknowledged under oath that he/she is the of Gravity

Pad Towers, LLC the Tenant named in the attached instrument, and as such was authorized to execute this
instrument on behalf of the Tenant.

Notary Public:
My Commission Expires:

14

217 Tower Structure Lease
12017



EXHIBIT 1
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES
Page | of 2

to the Water Tower Structure Lease Agreement dated  [Insert Date] |, 20 , by and between
City of Truth or Consequences, as Landlord, and Gravity Pad Towers, LLC, a New Mexico limited liability
company, as Tenant.

The Property is legally described as follows:

A parcel of land for the purposes of a lelecommunication equipment lease area situate within waterworks park, block 80,
townsite plat of hot springs, as the same is shown and designated on the plat, thereof filed in the office of the county clerk
of Sierra County, New Mexico on February 2, 1920, in cabinet A, Folio A-1, said lease parcel of the land being more
particular described as follows:

Containing an area of 1,500 square feet of land

PUBLIC RECORD PARCEL NO. 3022078190410 END OF W. 2ND ST

TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NM SIERRA COUNTY EXISTING 62-0" WATER TANK

COLGOCATION COMMUNICATION SITE

Legal description — 5 ft utility easement “A”

A strip of land for the purpose of a utility easement 1o serve a telecommunication equipment lease area, sitvate within and
crossing a portion of block 80, waterworks park, townsite plat of hot springs, as the same is shown and designated on the
plat thereof filed in the office of the County clerk of sierra county, New Mexico on February 2, 1920, in cabinet a, folio A-
1, said easement being five (5.00) feet in width and lying two and one half (2.50) feet on each side of the following
centerline:

Commencing at a 3 inch rebar found for the South East corner of the waterworks park, block 80, thence in 37°14°59” W a
distance of 123.32 feet to the South East corner of said lease area thence S 13° 54’42” W, A distance of 2.50 feet to the
point of beginning of this utility easement centerline:

Thence, § 76’05’ 18" W A distance of 19.91 feet, Thence, S 88'23'41” W A distance of 81.34 fect 1o an existing utility
pole and the terminus of this utility casement centerline

Legal description — 5 ft utility easement “B”

A sirip of land for the purpose of a utility easement to serve a telecommunication equipment lease area, situate within and
crossing a portion of block 80, waterworks park, townsite plat of hot springs, as the same is shown and designated on the
plat thereof filed in the office of the County clerk of sierra county, New Mexico on February 2, 1920, in cabinet a, folio A-
1, said easement being five (5.00) feet in width and lying two and one half (2.50) feet on each side of the following
centerline:

Commencing at a % inch rebar found for the South East corner of waterworks park, block 80, thence in
37°14°59” W a distance of 123.32 feet to the South East corner of said lease area thence S 13 54°42” W, A distance of
10.50 feet to the point of beginning of this utility easement centerline:

Thence N 76’05’ 18" E A distance of 41.26 feet to the terminus of this utility easement centerline

The Premises are described and/or depicted as follows:

Lease area of 1,500 square [eet situate within waterworks park, Block 80, townsite plat of Hot Springs, Sierra County, New
Mexico

Point# 50

Description — Center of Tank

Northing — 776.967.26

Easting — 1,333,304.21"

Latitude — N33’ 07°54.632"

Longitude - W107°15711.632"

Elevation - 4,383.5

15

Struciure Lease
Version 2.23.2007



EXHIBIT 1

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES

Page 2 of 2

to the Water Tower Structure Lease Agreement dated
City of Truth or Consequences, as Landlord, and Gravity Pad Towers, LLC, a New Mexico limited liability

company, as Tenant.

[Insert Date]

, 20

, by and between

1

g

ONNQ LON NO4 (TREDVIS 43
(135 100 10} a0 YTV )X

(TN SY) N0 VD Hise WS 135 O

CUOT3Y 30 SDERRI0A MoK Y
SSHUGHW N SIS0 aw onavad ()

Y G
N
Y]
[

2y ]
353-5
gﬁég §

Ed
¥

é

1334IS ONOJ3S

OSSO0 ALY NEMLEM YRS 40 NOIYOR 03

n
v
n

NOSSIEIN0 A MINLCE) RIS 0 HNOS,

A

wcw N1

A

38

COIX3N M3N 'ALNNOD VIRENS
NIHIW 31vniis

3AaN

(T34 000 (T4 1434 HWE O30 %)

*SONIIES LOH 30 1V1d JLISHMOL
‘08 X008 ‘NYd SNUOMUILYAM

Structure Lease
Version 2.23.2017




ey

7 -~ == '\\
t‘l{li A1k ll'l: ]
A .’
My gt

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
COMMISSION ACTION FORM

ITEM:

Discussion— Review the Impact Fee Study and approve staif to proceed forward
with final adoption procedures.

BACKGROUND:

Impact Fee Advisory Board recommended the Impact Fee Study to Commission for
review and final adoption procedures.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Final Adoption procedures: Public Hearing and Ordinance Adoption to adopt both

the amended LUA (Land Use Assumption) and the amended CIP (Capital
Improvements Plan)

SUPPORT INFORMATION :

« Impact Fee Study

Submitted by: Traci Burnette Department: Community Davelopment Mesting date: 1/9/2019




CESI8I-11

MOI-LEI\(.ORBII\

ENGINEERS

ARCHITECTS

PLANNERS

CITY OF TRUTH
OR
CONSEQUENCES
NEW MEXICO

WATER AND
WASTEWATER
IMPACT FEE
LAND USE
ASSUMPTIONS
AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT
PLAN

REPORT
FINAL

December 2018



ENGINEER OF RECORD

Molzen Corbin
1155 Commerce Drive, Suite F
Las Cruces, New Mexico 88011
(575) 522-0049

The technical material and data contained in this report were prepared under the supervision and
direction of the undersigned, whose seal as a Professional Engineer, licensed to practice in the
State of New Mexico, is affixed below.

N.M.P.E. No. 12423




MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
L0 INrOdUCHION. ...cvvoviiiiiniininriiiritiieisiestesieeeeaeesaeeestsastssessestssasssstssasse e e sasasasssasstassssansensnessasansenea 1
L1 SHUAY ATEA ..ottt ettt sttt e s ae e s s e b ba s bbb b s s e b bbb e s b mennens 1
2.0 Development IMPact FEe ...ttt easnssssnnanes 4
2.1 DefiNItION cuoviviirivisit it et st e st s sas st ss s s e ne e e s ss s s e 4
2.2 SEIVICE AT@A....ciuiiririiiiensecirisest st racacnteaasaseressssostrsssasassassststsassessnnssssrereseasssssesesessesansssssns 5
2.3 Land Use ASSUIMPLIONS c.coiiieiimieiirininiininsnimeemesesessessesssssssssssssessessersessessessessssessessasees 6
2.4 Capital Improvements Plan.............co it enrenssa s assenene 6
3.0 ServiCe AT€aS ..ot e sr s sasass e s s s e e ae e sens RN 7
4.0 Land Use ASSUMPTIONS ...ttt s sss s sesss e st ssssessssassssasassanesesnesess 9
4.1 Project Area Growth Rate........c.coeiiiiiiececceccireceietccee s s ssesssresressssssssessereesesssnsnnsns 10
4.1.1 Growth Projection CONSENSUS ..iuiiiieienimieereriersireseseessssssssesessessssnssassessessessenes I1
4.2 GrOWEh ATBAS ....vvicviiicrerc et ste e e s st es st e et st s setesaasansnebssan 13
5.0 Development Needs ANalYSis.....c.c.vccorreceeericniiicscsernsrsisseassesssssesessssssessssossssnsermssnessssessssses 14
6.0 Capital Improvements Plan.........cviiiincerceeeeccnieeereentrceere st sesessessestesssesessssssssnes 15
6.1 EXISHNE FaCHIIES..ceeieeeeeiirircereetee ettt s e e e s et et be bbb o b anes 15
6.1.1 Water Supply & Storage SYSIEM .......vvveiviisreninsssnssoniniiiesemeseeesesssesssssessessens 15
0.1.2 WasteWater SYSIEIM 1uuivieuirreeriiiiiceiiteceiesteserestessesssasersssesssssssesssssssssssessesssssssensessasneas 17
6.2 Facility Expansions Needed.........coooiivioermiiimiiimnosimmimossiessass 19
6.2.1 Proposed Facilities Upgrade Under Consideration for Development Impact Fees...... 19
6.2.2 Water & Wastewater Improvements needed and made a part of the CIP.................... 20
6.2.3 Offsets for Alternative REVENUE .....oevevivieiiiiniierennniniiriersseseseesenessssssss e esssssennes 22
6.2.4 Summary of Impact Fee Estimation for Average Homes............ccoconerernnnnniernercenes 24

7.0 Methodologies for Setting IMPact FEes ........coeervevenreinrinnirenserensnoreammresseseesssssssssssees 20

City of Truth or Consequences i
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

T1 L FAXUEE UNES tovovviniiiieecteencceteeenineeenssensseesssssnssesssssesesnesessesssasessasssssssansessnssssaosens 26
8.0 Conclusion and recomendation...........oeeuieeeeeiercrinnesene s sssre s ssesaesasss e saseasanens 28
APPENDICIES
Appendix A — Cost Estimates for Utility Extension to Future Growth Areas
Appendix B — Development Fees Act (5-8-1 through 5-8-42 NMSA 1978)
TABLE OF FIGURES
Figure 1. 10Cation MAap .......cooceiirieircceccrnnenrnsrenessressesesssnenesas e rans eeeresensessnsrastsessaina 2
Figure 2. Future Growth Areas (FROM PER) ................................................................................ 8
Figure 3. Existing Zone Districts... OO UUOP U ORUOROPUUPIUUPTPPOOPIPPOPPIOt 9
Figure 4. Truth or Consequences Populatlon N s sbsbe s seesssnsesessassesasnessassassasssasse | 0
Figure 5. Williamsburg POPUIAtion...........cccoi vt ce st eseraeese s resssressssossssesens 11
Figure 6. EXiSting Water SYSYIEM......cc.couiiriiecenrieneeeicc e sesssesnssessssassssessessesmssesesessesssssssessssens 16
Figure 7: EXiStING SEWET SYSLEM ...ciiviiviiriiiiiirereiestrestnnesesesacssssesessessssessrssessnsssssessenssssessensns 18
TABLE OF TABLES
Table 1: Growth Projection SCENArios .........ccccoveereeieserecesseseeestsreseseesseserassessessssssssssssesensssens 12
Table 2: Wastewater Cost Factor for additional treatment capacity .........ceevevvvereemrnneseereesnsnnne 19
Table 3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Funding breakdown for Impact Fee ........ccoceoeveevecccnnnan, 22
Table 4: Water System Improvements as defined in Capital Improvement Plan........................ 22
Table 5: Water System Improvements for the Future Growth Areas........ccccoovvvvnvenienenennnnnens 23
Table 6: Wastewater Treatment Cost as defined in Capital Improvement Plan...........cccoceenu.e. 23
Table 7: Wastewater System Improvements for the Future Growth Areas..........ccocevveeerverenenee. 24
Table 8: Analysis of equivalent Fixture Unit for the expected population increase.................... 24
Table 9: Water and Wastewater Capital Needs for the Study Period.........oceeeeeeeeceevcennrereennen. 25
Table 10: IPC Fixture Unit Values per FiXtUre.........ccoevvvenivenennecrrecsenereseceeseresenereseeessoseens 27

City of Truth or Consequences ii
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS [ ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

A Development Impact Fee Study Report was done for the City of Truth or
Consequences in August of 2006. The City has charged water and wastewater impact
fees based on this report since the report was completed and accepted by the City. This
study updates the Impact Fee Study completed in 2006 and utilizing the information
within the City’s recently completed reports, for water, wastewater and land use. The
material considered within these reports include water production, wastewater treatment
and land use. Water and Wastewater items from the City’s existing Infrastructure Capital
Improvement Plan will be used as a part of the Capital Improvements Plan for this
update.

Study Area

Truth or Consequences is the county seat of Sierra County. The built core of the
community is bounded by Interstate 25 to the west, the Rio Grande to the east, Elephant
Butte to the north and Williamsburg to the south. Truth of Consequences is only two
hours south of Albuguerque, one hour north of Las Cruces and five miles from Elephant
Butte Lake. Truth or Consequences was previously known as Hot Springs, New Mexico,
was incorporated in 1914, In 1951 the name was changed to Truth or Consequences. The
City of Truth or Consequences is predominantly a retirement community with a limited
college-age and middle-age population. However, the City maintains a high level of
tourism, provides many service related jobs, and continues to attract new residents. The
City of Truth or Consequences is attracting people to its mid-range neighborhoods.
Molzen Corbin has been retained by the city to update the City’s Water and Wastewater
Impact Fee study, which will provide the City funds for proposed wastewater and water
facilities upgrade including projects spurred by new infill development and the
development of new subdivisions in Truth or Consequences and the Village of

Williamsburg.

City of Truth or Consequences 1
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

FIGURE 1. LOCATION MAP
The Following documents have been reviewed to complete this study and are a part of

this report by reference:

o Development Impact Fee Study Report, August 2006, authored by Engineers Inc.

¢ Truth or Consequences Water System Asset Management Plan, March 2017 (rev
2), authored by Smith Engineering.

¢ Truth or Consequences Water System Improvements PER, August 2015, authored
by Smith Engineering.

¢ Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan Project Summaries, August 2017,
authored by the City of Truth or Consequences.

¢ Truth or Consequences Comprehensive Plan, October 2014, authored by
Consensus Planning, Inc.

¢ Truth or Consequences Downtown Master Plan, October 2014, authored by
Consensus Planning, Inc.

e Water Conservation Plan, Spring 2016, authored by the City of Truth or
Consequences.

® Truth or Consequences Affordable Housing Plan, October 2014, authored by

Consensus Planning.

City of Truth or Consequences 2
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

e Truth or Consequences Wastewater System Improvements, July 2016, authored

by Smith Engineering.

City of Truth or Consequences 3
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

20 DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE
2.1 Definition

Development Impact Fees are a means for municipalities, or local governments, to require new
development to pay a proportionate share of the infrastructure costs that the development
imposes on to a community. This charge or assessment imposed by the city on a new
development generates revenue for funding or recouping the costs of capital improvements or
facility expansions necessitated by and attribute to the new development. This is in contract to
negotiating with developer exactions for the required improvements to provide the services that
are needed for the new development. Development Impact Fees are charged on new
developments using a standard formula based on the objectives. In this case, water and
wastewater. The fees are a one-time charge, with payment usually made at the time the building
permit is issued. Impact fees require that new development pay for its pro-rata share of the cost

for new capital facilities required to serve that development.

Development impact fees in the State of New Mexico are governed by the New Mexico

Development Fees Act (Sec. 5-8-1, et. Seq., New Mexico Revised Statues).

The term Development Fee includes:

a. Amortized charges

b. Lump sum charges

c. Capital recovery fees

d. Contributions in aid of construction

Development Fees

f. Any other fee that functions as described by this definition
The term Development Fee does not include:

a. Construction, acquisition or expansion of public facilities or assets that are not capital
improvements or facility expansions identified in the capital improvements plan.
b. Repair, updating or maintenance, of existing or new capital improvements or facility

expansions.

City of Truth or Consequences 4
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

c. Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to serve
existing development in order to meet stricter safety, efficiency, environmental or
regulatory standards.

d. Administrative and operating costs of the city, except as provided in the Development
Fees Act.

e. Dedication of right- of-way or easements.

f.  Construction or dedication of on-site water distribution.

g. Wastewater collection or drainage facilities or streets, sidewalks or curbs if the dedication
or construction is required by previously adopted valid ordinance, or regulation and is

necessitated by and attributable to the development.

The development impact fees collected cannot be used for operation, maintenance, repair,
alteration, or replacement of existing capital facilities and cannot just be added to general
revenue. Development Impact Fees are essentially user fees levied in anticipation of use,

expanding the capacity of existing services or facilities to handle additional demand.

Development Impact Fees are also being considered expenditures that developers are required to

make as a precondition for approval of their project.

Development Impact Fees are one-time charges applied to offset the additional public service
costs of new development. The fees are frequently passed on by developers to purchasers in the
price of a new property and, therefore, increase the cost of housing and may decrease the

profitability of a particular project.

2.2 Service Area

The New Mexico Development Fees Act requires that Land Use Assumptions and Capital
Improvement Plans must be prepared for an area. This area may also be referred to as the
“service area”. The service area is a geographic area within certain capital facilities that provides
benefit to all development located within the service area. In general, development impact fees
collected within a service area will be spent within the same service area. There may be

instances where the facility that serves the development in the service area is physically located

City of Truth or Consequences 5
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

outside the service area, such as, water production wells and wastewater treatment facilities.
The areas of consideration for this study will include those areas known as future growth areas,
as defined within the Water and Wastewater Preliminary Engineering Reports. Additional areas
included are the infill development within the underutilized tracts/subdivisions, lot, or parcel of
real property within the existing service area. Many of these infill areas currently have utility

lines adjacent to the lot or tract and line extensions would not be needed.

2.3 Land Use Assumptions

A development impact fee update must include land use assumptions for each service area. The
Development Fees Act defines land use assumptions as “projections of changes in land uses,
densities, intensities and population in the service area over at least a five-year period.” The
Capital Improvement Plan must be prepared to identify improvement needs for a period not to
exceed ten years; a 5-to-10 year time-frame is appropriate for a development impact fee study
and for future updates. The City’s Comprehensive Plan which was approved and adopted in
October 2014 has defined land use throughout Truth or Consequences. This document will be
used as reference for this report, and Land Use Assumptions required by the Development Fees
Act will be presented in Section 4 of this report. The City’s land use plan has been maintained

and updated since 2014.

24 Capital Improvements Plan

According to the Development Fees Act, development impact fees can only be spent on
improvements identified in the Capital Improvements Plan. The Capital Improvements Plan
required by the Development Fees Act is somewhat different from the traditional Capital
Improvements Program. Similar to a traditional capital improvements program, the Capital
Improvements Plan required by the Development Fees Act must include a list of capital projects
and their costs. The development impact fee Capital Improvements Plan is limited to those
improvements that are needed for growth, and not replacement of old infrastructure due to decay.

The Capital Improvement Plan for water and wastewater projects is defined within this study.

City of Truth or Consequences 6
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

3.0 SERVICE AREAS

The services area for the City’s development impact fees will include land located within the
Truth or Consequences’ current water and wastewater service area, but not including the Village
of Williamsburg (see Figure 2). This service area encompasses the future growth areas defined
in the water and wastewater preliminary engineering reports (PER) prepared in 2015 & 2016.
The future growth areas include growth areas known as A, B, C, D, and E and are mostly within
the current city limits. These five areas where growth is expected to occur as stated within the

respective PER’s, as well as infill within the two city limit boundaries.

Future growth area B is a redevelopment area and as a redevelopment area it currently has the
water and wastewater infrastructure in place. Upgrades to the existing infrastructure will be
necessary as a result of the age of the infrastructure in the downtown area. Future growth area B
is within the service area and does tax the systems for water production and wastewater

treatment.

Impact fees should be imposed on any new development within the city limits which would

include the future growth areas and any infill.

City of Truth or Consequences 7
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

—— PLANING. ML EEANCAEY
R SOl A 5 } T e
CAERSEENT on ¢ Oty LiTs
ZZ7) e v w8 CONTINUE 1O THE
(277 o moww wms © M HORTH 10 MCLUDE
T OTY ANNEXES
3

™

x| PRIRE O AL O

E7777] rse trow s, £

FIGURE 2. FUTURE GROWTH AREAS (FROM PER).

City of Truth or Consequences 8
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

4.0 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS

The Village of Truth or Consequences currently has nine existing zoning districts. These

districts include:

R-1 Single Family, Low Density Residential District

R-2 Medium Density Residential District

R-3 High Density Residential District

R-4 Rural Residential District

RR-I Riverside Residential District

RCPUD Residential Commercial Planned Unit Development District
C-1 General Commercial District

M-1 Light Manufacturing District

T-1 Transition District

e e el

These areas are further defined within the City of Truth or Consequences Comprehensive Plan
dated 2014, and adopted in October 2014 (see Figure 3).

IE / NYId JNSNIHTIWOD SIONINDESNOD ¥O HINWL 40 AL

FIGURE 3. EXISTING ZONE DISTRICTS

City of Truth or Consequences 9
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS [ ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

4.1 Project Area Growth Rate

The population of the project area, City of Truth or Consequences and the Village of
Williamsburg, saw a population that is declining, according to data retrieved from the U.S.
Census Bureau. The population has declined from 2010 to 2016. Also, reviewing the population
trends section discussed in the Water and Wastewater PER, they found that the total population
declined from 2000 to 2009. According to the U.S. Census Bureau the population for the study
area is 6,444, which has changed very little, but overall has been on the decline. The PER’s &
the Comprehensive Plan trend the potential growth in the area and discuss the possibilities of
growth for the area. The PER’s defined growth scenarios, in Table 1, were created to provide a

basis for which T or C officials could discuss and give a recommendation.

Truth or Consequences / Population

6,023 (2016)

__f_m

FIGURE 4. TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES POPULATION

City of Truth or Consequences 10
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

Willtamsburg 7 Population

421 (2016)

M

FIGURE 5. WILLIAMSBURG POPULATION

4.1.1 Growth Projection Consensus

The U.S. Census information, shown in Figure 5, illustrates a decline in the population since
2010. However, as discussed in the Preliminary Engineering Reports (PER) for the water &
wastewater system improvements, the potential for growth should not be ignored as the area may
see growth precipitated from potential development as discussed in the Comprehensive Plan such
as; Spaceport America, R & D Park Resorts, Motorplex, etc. As a result, the previous mentioned
preliminary engineering reports describe several growth scenarios in an effort to illustrate the

potential of area, so that the City is properly prepared.

In this report, taking into account the available population data, we have also provided growth
scenarios to facilitate a decision from the staff, board and commission. The planning period for
the projections would be through the year 2038 and are provided as a comparison for growth of
the community. The previous reports {PER, Comprehensive plan and 2006 Impact Fee Study)
used a straight line average growth for projection of future population whereas this report will us

an average annual growth rate.

City of Truth or Consequences I
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

TABLE 1: GROWTH PROJECTION SCENARIOS
Population Projections
0.5% G.75%
Annual Annual 1% Annual | 1.5% Annual
Year Growth Growth Growth Growth
2016 6444 6444 6444 6444
2018 6509 63541 6574 6639
2023 6673 6790 6909 7152
2028 6841 7048 7261 7705
2033 7014 7317 7632 8300
2038 7191 7595 8021 8941
2043 7373 7884 8430 9632

According to the U.S Census, the population of Truth or Consequence grew from 6,221 people in
the year 1990 to 7,290 people in the year 2000. Over this 10-year period, Truth or

Consequences’ growth was approximately 1.7%

Although the population has slightly decreased since 2000, it was determined that a growth rate
be applied for any potential population growth. The rate applied for the analysis of the
Development Impact Fee is a 0.75 % increase. The increase in population at 0.75% average
growth per year, total increase from 2018 to the year 2043 is 1,343. The projected population
increase from 2018 to the year 2028 is 507.

Water and wastewater infrastructure typical design criteria would dictate that infrastructure be
sized for a minimum of a 25 year service life. Although this Development Impact Fees study
should consider a 5 to 10 year time-frame, or as based on the planning period of the City’s
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The planning period for an impact fee study should take into
account the projections for sizing water and wastewater infrastructure. Therefore, it is

responsible to take into consideration a 25 year population projection.

City of Truth or Consequences 12
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

4.2 Growth Areas

The future growth areas are planned areas for development as a result of future growth, and these

areas currently fall within currently zoning/land use:

¢ Future Growth Area A — Current Zoning C1 and T1

* Future Redevelopment Area B — Current Zoning Cl

¢ Future Growth Area C — Current Zoning C1 and T1

® Future Growth Area D — Current Zoning C1, R3, T1 and un-zoned.
* Future Growth Area E — Current Zoning Village of Williamsburg
¢ Infill throughout the City — Current Zoning varies

Future Growth Area B is within the current Downtown area and since existing water and
wastewater infrastructure currently exists through the area no line extension costs are anticipated.

Improvements proposed will be for improvements to the existing infrastructure,

Based on the various reports, cited herein, the city’s growth is not being encouraged in any
particular area. However, the Downtown area does have the most growth potential since it has
the most defined guidance through the Downtown Master Plan, The redevelopment of Area B
will depend largely on transportation improvements defined in the report (Downtown
Masterplan), which will be dependent on state funding and be in design and construction
throughout the next 10 years. Therefore, for the purpose of this report it is anticipated that all the

areas will experience growth at the same rate.

At the growth rates used in this report, these defined areas will accommodate the predicted

growth beyond the 25 years and no other growth areas will be defined for this study period.

City of Truth or Consequences 13
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

50 DEVELOPMENT NEEDS ANALYSIS

The most fundamental challenge Truth or Consequences faces in housing development is the

need for upgrades and extensions to the water and wastewater systems. Therefore in this study,
only impact fees from water and wastewater facilities will be considered, and only those costs
that are needed as a result of population increase. Currently, only water and wastewater impact

fees are provided for within the city code.

Both water and wastewater facility expansion is needed to serve new development, as well as

infill areas currently served by existing water and wastewater lines.

With the development of the Comprehensive Plan, Downtown Master Plan and the completion of
the water and wastewater Preliminary Engineering Reports, the City is in a better position to
define those areas that growth should be directed and where growth is anticipated. As such, the
planning of infrastructure extensions, water production and wastewater treatment can be defined

and quantified for implementation through the development of Impact Fees.

City of Truth or Consequences 14
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

6.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

For the purpose of this study Impact fees will be evaluated from:

a. Improvements to Water Supply & Storage Facilities
b. Improvement to Wastewater Treatment Facilities

c. Wastewater and water line extensions to proposed development area.

The water system has a series of wells, storage tanks, booster stations and conveyance pipelines
that provide production and delivery. The wastewater system provides collection, interceptor
pipelines, lift stations, forcemains and wastewater treatment. Water and wastewater facilities
consist of integrated, inter-connected systems that provide service to all properties connected to

those systems,

6.1 Existing Facilities
6.1.1 Water Supply & Storage System

The water system delivers potable water to all the City’s residents, commercial businesses, and

public use. The Truth or Consequences water system also serves the Village of Williamsburg.

The Truth or Consequences water system consists of six wells, four ground-level storage tanks, a
centralized chlorination facility, and miles of pipeline. The City has a recognized right to divert
up to about 2,743 acre feet of water per annum of ground water for municipal use. The City’s
annual water usage is approximately 288 million gallons or 884 acre feet. Truth or Consequences
has an additional appropriation of 50 acre feet of geothermal water for swimming pool, heating
and related purposes. The City also holds irrigation water rights of 498 acre feet for the irrigation

of 83 acres, including an existing golf course and cemetery.

Truth or Consequences currently has four ground-level water storage tanks: one 0.2 million
gallon, one 1.2-gallon, and two 3-million gallon storage tanks. The total capacity of existing
water storage is 7.4 million gallons. All of the storage tanks of the Water System have been
rehabilitated or installed as new within the last ten years and are in excellent condition. The
wells vary greatly in age and vary in estimated condition from excellent to poor, directly related

to age. The water distribution system is aging and older portions of the system have been

City of Truth or Consequences 15
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

identified to be replaced. This information is provided within the Water System Improvement

Preliminary Engineering Report.

An illustration of the City’s water system is shown in Figure 6. as shown on the “Water System

Improvement Preliminary Engineering Report (August 2015)”.

)

; b . - ._1.. ﬁ:}
Nl AN N sng pdﬂsm

‘E
=

3

F
=
]
]

ek - |

v‘ ....;‘?Eas

BEFH

)

FIGURE 6. EXISTING WATER SYSYTEM

According to the Water System Improvement Preliminary Engineering Report (WSPER) the
total production capacity of wells and the overall system are adequate to meet the anticipated
future City water demands and the wells are suitable for continued use. One of the City’s wells
is currently off-line and is to be rehabilitated to provide production for current and future
population. The water treatment, storage and the pumping stations are of sufficient capacity and
improvements to these facilities will take in to account the aging system components and the

proper sizing of the new component for future growth.

The objective of the Development Impact Fees are to require new development to pay a
proportionate share of the infrastructure costs that the development imposes on to a community.

The WSPER did not separate costs associated only with growth, so a factor will be utilized on

City of Truth or Consequences 16
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

capital improvement costs associated with water and wastewater system improvements. The
factor will be based on the difference in existing capacity versus what is needed for the future
population as defined by the Wastewater Preliminary Engineering Report (WWPER), see Table

3. below.

6.1.2 Wastewater System

The Truth or Consequences wastewater system moves liquid waste from the City to a wastewater
treatment plant. Like the water system, the Truth or Consequences wastewater system is shared
with the Village of Williamsburg. In Williamsburg, the system is owned by the Village, which

sends the liquid waste to the city of Truth or Consequences treatment facility.

The wastewater collection system began in the 1930’s and initially served the core community
now located in central Truth or Consequences, between Rio Grande and Broadway Ave, and the
County Courthouse. There are now approximately forty miles of collection lines, force mains,
and interceptor sewers, in the city. The system has been extended several times in the past

decade. There are five lift stations and one vacuum station within the city system.

City of Truth or Consequences 17
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

FIGURE 7 EXISTING SEWER SYSTEM

The original wastewater treatment plant for the City of Truth or Consequences and the Village of
Williamsburg was constructed in 1978. The plant is located in the far southwest corner of the
city, immediately east of the eastern boundary of Williamsburg. It has been found that most of
the components of the wastewater treatment system are either close to reaching their operational

capacity or have reached the end of their life cycle.

The plant was designed for a capacity of approximately 1.06 million gallons per day (MGD).
The facility is currently operating at 75% of its rated capacity with an annual usage of 800,000
gallons per day or 0.8 MGD. According to the Wastewater Preliminary Engineering Report
(WWPER), in previous years the treatment facility has operated at almost 95% of its design flow
and the WWPER for the purposes of providing capacity uses 95% as its base point. Therefore,

the WWPER’s engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost includes growth for a 1%

City of Truth or Consequences 18
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

population increase as well as for upgrades to an aging facility. Based on the WWPER’s
population forecasts for their study period, projected increases in population provided a

wastewater flow which was used to develop construction cost.

Also, included in the overall construction cost are repairs and upgrades to the aging wastewater
system. The objective of the Development Impact Fees are to require new development to pay a
proportionate share of the infrastructure costs that the development imposes on to a community.
The WWPER did not separate costs associated only with growth, so a factor will be utilized on
capital improvement costs associated with wastewater improvements. The factor will be based
on the difference in existing capacity versus what is needed for the future population as defined
by the WWPER, see Table 2.

TABLE 2: WASTEWATER COST FACTOR FOR ADDITIONAL TREATMENT
CAPACITY (INFORMATION FROM WWPER)
Flow Projection per WWPER for a 1% Growth by # years
Current Design for
Design 10 15 18 Future
Population
difference 818 1258 1520
Wastewater Flow
(MGD) 1.06 1.05 1.10 1.16 1.30
Factor based on
increased capacity -0.01 0.04 0.09 0.21

6.2 Facility Expansions Needed
6.2.1 Proposed Facilities Upgrade Under Consideration for Development Impact Fees

The concern is that Truth or Consequences cannot maintain or improve the level of water and
wastewater service it currently provides. As the population increases, it will place more load on a
system that is nearing its capacity. This load increasing on the water and wastewater
infrastructure will make it difficult for the city to meet the current demand or to accommodate

future needs and thus needs to be planned for early.

The city owns enough water rights to accommodate growth and the water system is adequately

sized as indicated by the Water PER. Water rights and replacing existing transmission lines for

City of Truth or Consequences 19
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

larger lines will not be analyzed. The needed expansion for the water system will only include
the line extensions to those areas defined as Future Growth Areas, and a proportion of the current
water system improvements identified in the City’s Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan

(ICIP) to provide water delivery to the increase in population.

The city has been upgrading the existing wastewater treatment facility to 1.3 MGD in response to
the increased wastewater flows as defined in the WWPER. The preliminary cost for Truth or
Consequences Wastewater System Upgrade Projects includes the upgrades to the wastewater
treatment facility, The WWPER has developed construction and project costs for the
rehabilitation of the wastewater treatment facility. The costs for this project were developed in
2016 and these estimates are recent enough to be utilized in this analysis. The City’s
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) has listed this cost as current. The total project
cost for the wastewater treatment plant improvements as described in the ICIP is $12,609,729. A
majority (as defined in Table 4) of the improvements for this facility have been completed and
the funding was provided through several grants and loans. The proportion amount of impact
fees assigned to the wastewater treatment will be for the loan amount, interest, remaining and

line extensions.

The costs defined in the Water and Wastewater Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) have
been reviewed and will be used in this analysis as presented in the PER’s. If construction is not
completed within the time period defined in the ICIP, these costs should be adjusted accordingly

until the project is funded,

6.2.2 Water & Wastewater Improvements needed and made a part of the CIP

The Growth area previously discussed will require improvements to provide water and
wastewater to these areas, up to a point in which the developer may connect to the subdivision

network for water distribution and wastewater collection.

In Future Growth Area A, water improvements will require a booster station to provide adequate
water pressure to the higher areas. The lower areas will be supplied water through an existing

line that can serve by gravity through the existing water tank. Wastewater improvements in

City of Truth or Consequences 20
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

Future Growth Area A, will not need wastewater line extensions since the existing wastewater

line currently extends to the area.

Future Growth Area C, will require a water line extension and a river crossing to a point where
development can extend lines within the subdivision. Wastewater improvements in Future
Growth Area C, will require a lift station, a forcemain to cross the Rio Grande, and gravity line

to a point where development can make a connection from the subdivision’s gravity system.

Future Growth Area E, will require a water line extension from the existing city’s infrastructure
to a point within the area where development can extend into the subdivision. Wastewater
improvements in Future Growth Area E, will require a lift station, forcemain extending to an
existing system, and gravity line to a point where development can make a connection from the

subdivision’s gravity system.

The overall water and wastewater system operate through a series of water booster stations and
wastewater lift stations. These systems are sized accordingly, as aforementioned in this report,
and would need to be upgraded as growth occurs. Therefore, the impact fee must also take into
account the upgrades of those facilities in the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP). Since the City

has already identified those improvements, they are made a part of this CIP.
In summary, the items included in the Capital Improvements Plan for this study are as follows:

Water Improvements
s Cook Street Water Treatment Facility Improvements
* Morgan Street Booster Station Improvements
e [mprovements to Future Growth Area A
e [mprovements to Future Growth Area C
* [mprovements to Future Growth Area E
Wastewater Improvements
*  Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements
¢ Improvements to Future Growth Area C

e Improvements to Future Growth Area E

City of Truth or Consequences 21
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

6.2.3

Offsets for Alternative Revenue

The City secured funding for the Wastewater treatment facility and only the cost associated with

the loan and interest are eligible for Development Impact Fee. A table with the eligible cost is

shown below in Table 3.

TABLE 3.
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT FUNDING BREAKDOWN FOR IMPACT FEE
Funding Grant Loan Interest Local Match Total Eligible
USDA, RUS
Loan 54,515,400 $715,000 538,500 $753,500
NMFA 3171 $675,000 $75,000 S0 575,000 $150,000
NMFA 3364 5675,000 575,000 50 575,000 $150,000
USDA, RUS
Loan 53,582,000 $910,000 $37,052 $947,052
Totals $9,447,400 $1,775,000 $75,552 $150,000 $2,000,552

Water improvement cost summary is shown on the tables below (Table 4 & Table 5). The

individual cost spreadsheets are provided in the Appendix.

TABLE 4: WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS AS DEFINED IN CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT PLAN
Costs with Growth Rates factors
0.5 % Annual | 0.75% Annual 1% Annual 1.5% Annual
CIP Cost Growth Growth Growth Growth
Cook St. Water
Treatment Facility
Improvement S 2,099,000
Factor 0.11 0.16 0.21 0.32
Cook St. Cost
attributed to Growth 5220,395 5330,593 $440,790 $661,185
Morgan St. Booster
Station
Improvements 5 250,000
Factor. 0.11 0.16 0.21 0.32
Morgan St. Cost
attributed to Growth 527,500 540,000 552,500 $80,000

City of Truth or Consequences

Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan

%)
(3%




MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

TABLE 5: WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE FUTURE GROWTH AREAS

Costs with Growth Rates factors

0.5 % Annual | 0.75% Annual 1% Annual 1.5% Annual
CIP Cost Growth Growth Growth Growth
Water Extension for
Growth Areas S 1,023,100
Phased cost for 10

year growth $33,762 552,634 571,321 $110,667
Total Water

Improvements $ 355,089

Wastewater improvement cost summary is shown on the tables below (Table 6 & Table 7). The

individual cost spreadsheets are provided in the Appendix.

TABLE 6: WASTEWATER TREATMENT COST AS DEFINED IN CAPITAL

Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan

IMPROVEMENT PLAN
Costs with Growth Rates factors
0.5 % Annual | 0.75% Annual 1% Annual 1.5% Annual
CIP Cost Growth Growth Growth Growth
Adjusted Wastewater
Treatment Plant $ 2,000,552 0.11 0.16 0.21 0.32
Cost attributed to
Growth $210,053 $315,087 $420,116 $630,174
City of Truth or Consequences 23




MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

TABLE 7: WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE FUTURE GROWTH

AREAS
Costs with Growth Rates factors
0.5 % Annual | 0.75% Annual 1% Annual 1.5% Annual
CIP Cost Growth Growth Growth Growth
Wastewater
Extension for Growth
Areas S 777,500
Phased cost for 10
year growth $26,193 539,999 554,200 584,101
Total Water
Improvements S 355,087
6.24 Summary of Impact Fee Estimation for Average Homes

As discussed in previous sections, water and sewer impact fees can be determined using different

kinds of information from the potential users. Some utilities based their fees on meter size, and

some have a fixed impact fee per new construction. In addition, some utilities use the same size

of the new home to calculate their impact fees. However, the current method used by the City is

to charge the development by fixture unit. This is done by using the total growth and from that

calculating the number of average homes needed to accommodate the increase in growth. By

using the average home, a cost per fixture unit can be obtained as shown in the table below.

TABLE 8:
ANALYSIS OF EQUIVALENT FIXTURE UNIT FOR THE EXPECTED POPULATION
INCREASE
Average # of Population ; Total Number of Fixture
Fixture Units per Increase in 10 hopulation per Lotol b e Unit for Population
Average Home Homes
Home years at 0.75% Increase
20 507 1.94 261 5230
City of Truth or Consequences 24

Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan




MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

The total cost of improvements for water and wastewater will be shared by the number of total
number of fixture units and that will determine the Development Impact Fee for new

development. The net cost for Development Impact fees is shown in Table 9.

TABLE 9:
WATER AND WASTEWATER CAPITAL NEEDS ¥FOR THE STUDY PERIOD
Cost per Fixture
Costs Fixture Units Units Cost per Average House Unit
Water
Improvement
Costs $ 423,227 5230 $80.92 $1,618.46
Wastewater
Improvement
Costs $ 355,087 5230 $67.89 $1,357.89
Water 8 Wastewater Capital need per Fixture Units $148.81 $2,976.35
City of Truth or Consequences 25

Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan




MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

7.0 METHODOLOGIES FOR SETTING IMPACT FEES
There are variety of approaches that can be used to set impact fees. In the previous impact fee

study report the author looked at a couple of methods of which are:

a. Average Cost Pricing Method- which sets a flat connection fee.

b. Marginal Cost Pricing System Method- in the form of a three part tariff. One part is
sewer services, such as a treatment plant; the second part is a charge for costs of
delivering the new service, such as costs of the connections or extensions; the third part

of the tariff is a charge for actual use, based on the costs of the producing the service.

Any methodology, however, must comply with the fundamental principle of impact fees, in
which new development should not be charged for a higher level of service than existing

development.

The City currently utilizes the Average Cost Pricing Method and has established a fee based a
cost per fixture unit. An Average Cost Pricing Methodology relies on a list of planned capital
improvements, and is basically calculated by dividing the cost of needed improvements over a
given time period by the anticipated new fixture units (or population increase) over the same
time period. We recommend continuing with this method as it provides the most flexibility for
the City as well as provides fairness to the developer and home buyer. Therefore, Average Cost
Pricing in the form of a cost per fixture unit, will be used to determine the potential development

impact fees for the City of Truth or Consequences.

7.1.1 Fixture Units

The City currently assesses impact fees based on the amount of fixture units that are proposed
per new residential or commercial unit. This approach provides a fairness in that less fixtures

units use less of the water and wastewater resources.

The previous impact fee study utilized 20 fixture units per residential unit. The current impact

fee per fixture unit is $150, at 20 units which equates to $3,000 for an average residential unit.

City of Truth or Consequences 26
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

Twenty (20) fixture units is determined by using the International Plumbing Code to establish the
number of units per a given fixture. The average two bath home uses approximately 20 fixture

units and is based as shown below in Table 10. The previous impact fee study utilized 20 fixture

units for the average home.

TABLE 10. IPC FIXTURE
Dot el

UNIT VALUES PER FIXTURE

i Dralnage Fixture Unit Values
Individual Apptiance, Minimum Size |
Appurtenance or Fixture i (DFU)
l (inch) | Private Installa_tlons f Public Installations
 Barsik | 12| 1 I
Bathroom (water closet,
lavatory, bidet and tub or 3 6 -
shower)
Bathtub 1172 2 2
Bidet 11/4 1
Bidet 11/2 2
Clothes Washer 2 3 3
Dishwasher, domestic 11/2 2 2
Brinking fountain 11/4 05 05
Floor drain 2 2 2
Shower 2 2 2
Laundry tub 11/2 2 2
Lavatory 11/4 1 1
Bar sink 112 1
Kitchen sink, domestic 1172 2 2
Laundry sink 1172 2 2
Service or mop basin 2 3
Urinal 2 2 2
Water closet with gravity tank 3 4
Water closet t\grl]tll: flushometer 3 3 4

City of Truth or Consequences
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan

27



MOLZENCORBIN

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | PLANNERS

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMENDATION

The city of Truth or Consequences has reached a stage where new residential and commercial

development will potentially outgrow the city’s infrastructure. It will be difficult for the city to
afford upgrades to handle the increased loads without financial assistance. Impact fees are one

method of accumulating some of the vital financial resources necessary to handle growth,

In this study, existing conditions have been analyzed and adjusted for potential population
growth. The potential future growth areas have also been taken into account. It is recommended

that the City keep its Development Impact Fee at the current rate of $150 per fixture unit.

This study calculates the maximum fees that could be adopted by the City. The City, at their
discretion, can choose to adopt the maximum fee or could reduce it and rely on other means for
providing the funding such as, actively seeking grant money from the Federal and/or State
agencies or phasing-in on a schedule. It is our recommendation that Development Impact fees be

adopted as shown at the amounts calculated/described in this study.

The Development Fees Act requires that the Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements
Plan be updated within five years from the date that the last capital improvements plan was

adopted and as such we recommend that this report be updated every five (5) years.

City of Truth or Consequences 28
Impact Fee, Land Use Assumptions & Capital Improvement Plan



APPENDIX A



Table A-1 Water System Improvement - extension to the Growth Areas

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Future Growth Area A
ESTIMATED
No Description UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST
|Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1 $15,000 515,000
6" Water line from supply to booster, complete in
place LF 300 535 $10,500
Booster Station with an approximate Capacity of
100 GPM yard piping and control valves,
complete in place LS 1 $165,000 $165,000
Booster Station Building, site grading, complete in
place s 1 $210,000 $210,000
Site Electrical to pump station, site lighting,
SCADA and miscellanous control wiring, complete
in place LS 1 $52,000 552,000
8" Water line, including valves complete in place LF 500 $40 $20,000
Construction Subtotal - 1 $472,500
Contingency % 10% 547,250
NMGRT % 8.50% 544,179
Construction Subtotal - 2 $563,929
Engineering Design, Survey & Geotechnical $84,600
NMGRT % 8.31% $7,032
Engllneerlng Subtotal 591,632
Project Total $655,600




Table A-4 Wastewater System Improvement - extension to the Growth Areas

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Future Growth Area C
ESTIMATED
No Description UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST
1 |Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1 $15,000 515,000
8" Gravity Sanitary Sewer line to the lift station,
2 complete in place. LF 420 535 $14,700
3 4' Diameter Manholes EA 2 54,200 $8,400
Duptex Lift Station with a Capacity of 150 GPM,
4 pump and controls, complete in place S 1 585,000 $85,000
&' Diameter Wet Well and concrete valve Pit
including yard piping from pumps to force main 5*
beyand site, include dewatering, complete in
5 place LS 1 $55,000 555,000
Site Electrical to pump station, site lighting and
6 miscellanous control wiring, complete in place LS 1 $15,000 $15,000
7 Site Grading and fencing, camplete in place LS 1 $8,000 $8,000
4" Sewer Forcemain including clean outs,
8 complete in place LF 500 530 $15,000
Forcemain River Crossing, within casing,
9 complete in place LF 300 5180 $54,000
Construction Subtotal - 1 $270,100
Contingency % 10% $27,010
NMGRT % 8.50% $25,254
Construction Subtotal - 2 $322,364
Engineering Design, Survey & Geotechnical 548,400
NMGRT % 8.31% 54,023
Englneering Subtotal $52,423
I
Project Total $374,800




Table A-5 Wastewater Systern Improvement - extension to the Growth Areas

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Future Growth Area E

ESTIMATED
No Description UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST
Mobilization / Demaebilization LS 1 515,000 $15,000
8" Gravity Sanitary Sewer line to the lift station,
complete in place. LF 420 $35 514,700
4' Diameter Manholes EA 2 55,000 $10,000
Duplex Lift Station with a Capacity of 150 GPM,
Jpump and controls, complete in place LS 1 565,000 $65,000
&' Diameter Wet Well and concrete valve Pit
including yard piping from pumps to force main &'
beyond site, include dewatering, complete in
place LS 1 $50,000 550,000
Site Electrical to pump station, site lighting and
miscellanous control wiring, complete in place LS 1 515,000 515,000
Site Grading and fencing, complete in place LS 1 58,000 58,000
4" Sewer Forcemain including clean outs,
complete in place LF 2250 530 $67,500
Pavement removal and replacement SY 1000 545 $45,000
Construction Subtotal - 1 $290,200
Contingency % 10% $29,020
NMGRT % 8.50% 527,134
Construction Subtotal - 2 $346,354
tngineering Design, Survey & Geotechnical $52,000
NMGRT % 8.31% $4,323
Engineering Subtotal $56,323
I
Project Total $402,700




Table A-2 Water Systerm Improvement - extension to the Growth Areas
Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Future Growth Area C
ESTIMATED
No Description UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST
Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1 $15,000 $15,000
8" Water line, including valves complete in place LF 600 $35 $21,000
Water line River Crossing, complete within place
in casing LF 500 $180 $90,000
Construction Subtotal - 1 $126,000
Contingency % 10% $12,600
NMGRT % 8.50% $11,781
Construction Subtotal - 2 $150,381
Engineering Design, Survey & Geotechnical $22,600
NMGRT % 8.31% $1,879
Engineering Subtotal $24,479
|

Project Total $174,900




Table A-3 Water System Improvement - extension to the Growth Areas
Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Future Growth Area E
ESTIMATED
No Description UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST
Mobilization / Demaobilization LS 1 $15,000 $15,000
8" Water line, including valves complete in place LF 2250 $35 $78,750
Pavement Removal and replacement 5Y 1000 $45 $45,000
Construction Subtotal - 1 $138,750
Contingency % 10% $13,875
NMGRT % 8.50% $12,973
Construction Subtotal - 2 $165,598
Engineering Design, Survey & Geotechnical $24,900
NMGRT % 8.31% $2,070
Engineering Subtotal 526,970
I

Project Total $192,600




APPENDIX B



5-8-1. Short title.
This act [5-8-1 through 5-8-42 NMSA 1978] may be cited as the "Development Fees Act".
History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 1.
5-8-2. Definitions.

As used in the Development Fees Act:

A. "affordable housing" means any housing development built to benefit those whose income
is at or below eighty percent of the area median income; and who will pay no more than thirty
percent of their gross monthly income towards such housing;

B. "approved land use assumptions" means land use assumptions adopted originally or as
amended under the Development Fees Act;

C. "assessment” means a determination of the amount of an impact fee;

D. "capital improvement" means any of the following facilities that have a life expectancy of
ten or more years and are owned and operated by or on behalf of a municipality or county:

(1) water supply, treatment and distribution facilities; wastewater collection and treatment
facilities; and storm water, drainage and flood control facilities;

(2) roadway facilities located within the service area, including roads, bridges, bike and
pedestrian trails, bus bays, rights of way, traffic signals, landscaping and any local components of
state and federal highways;

(3) buildings for fire, police and rescue and essential equipment costing ten thousand
dollars ($10,000) or more and having a life expectancy of ten years or more; and

(4) parks, recreational areas, open space trails and related areas and facilities;

E. "capital improvements plan" means a plan required by the Development Fees Act that
identifies capital improvements or facility expansion for which impact fees may be assessed;

F. "county" means a county of any classification;

G. "facility expansion" means the expansion of the capacity of an existing facility that serves
the same function as an otherwise necessary new capital improvement, in order that the existing
facility may serve new development. The term does not include the repair, maintenance,
modernization or expansion of an existing facility to better serve existing development, including
schools and related facilities;

H. "hook-up fee" means a reasonable fee for connection of a service line to an existing gas,
water, sewer or municipal or county utility;

L. "impact fee" means a charge or assessment imposed by a municipality or county on new
development in order to generate revenue for funding or recouping the costs of capital
improvements or facility expansions necessitated by and attributable to the new development. The
term includes amortized charges, lump-sum charges, capital recovery fees, contributions in aid of
construction, development fees and any other fee that functions as described by this
definition. The term does not include hook-up fees, dedication of rights of way or easements or
construction or dedication of on-site water distribution, wastewater collection or drainage
facilities, or streets, sidewalks or curbs if the dedication or construction is required by a previously
adopted valid ordinance or regulation and is necessitated by and attributable to the new
development;

J. "land use assumptions" includes a description of the service area and projections of changes
in land uses, densities, intensities and population in the service area over at least a five-year
period;

K. "municipality" means any incorporated city, town or village, whether incorporated under
general act, special act or special charter, and H class counties, including any home rule




municipality or H class county chartered under the provisions of Article 10, Section 6 of the
constitution of New Mexico;

L. "new development" means the subdivision of land; reconstruction, redevelopment,
conversion, structural alteration, relocation or enlargement of any structure; or any use or extension
of the use of land; any of which increases the number of service units;

M. "qualified professional" means a professional engineer, surveyor, financial analyst or
planner providing services within the scope of his license, education or experience;

N. "roadway facilities" means arterial or collector streets or roads that have been designated
on an officially adopted roadway plan of the municipality or county, including bridges, bike and
pedestrian trails, bus bays, rights of way, traffic signals, landscaping and any local components of
state or federal highways;

O. "service area" means the area within the corporate boundaries or extraterritorial
jurisdiction of a municipality or the boundaries of a county to be served by the capital
improvements or facility expansions specified in the capital improvements plan designated on the
basis of sound planning and engineering standards; and

P. "service unit" means a standardized measure of consumption, use, generation or discharge
attributable to an individual unit of development calculated in accordance with generally accepted
engineering or planning standards for a particular category of capital improvements or facility
expansions.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 2.
5-8-3. Authorization of fee.

A. Unless otherwise specifically authorized by the Development Fees Act, no municipality
or county may enact or impose an impact fee.

B. If it complies with the Development Fees Act, a municipality or county may enact or
impose impact fees on land within its respective corporate boundaries.

C. A municipality and county may enter into a joint powers agreement to provide capital
improvements within an area subject to both county and municipal platting and subdivision
jurisdiction or extraterritorial jurisdiction and may charge an impact fee under the agreement, but
if an impact fee is charged in that area, the municipality and county shall comply with the
Development Fees Act.

D. A municipality or county may waive impact fee requirements for affordable housing
projects.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 3; 2001, ch. 176, § 1.
5-8-4, Items payable by fee.

A. An impact fee may be imposed only to pay the following specified costs of constructing
capital improvements or facility expansions:

(1) estimated capital improvements plan cost;

(2) planning, surveying and engineering fees paid to an independent qualified
professional who is not an employee of the municipality or county for services provided for and
directly related to the construction of capital improvements or facility expansions;

(3) fees actually paid or contracted to be paid to an independent qualified professional,
who is not an employee of the municipality or county, for the preparation or updating of a capital
improvements plan; and

(4) up to three percent of total impact fees collected for administrative costs for municipal
or county employees who are qualified professionals.




B. Projected debt service charges may be included in determining the amount of impact fees
only if the impact fees are used for the payment of principal and interest on bonds, notes or other
obligations issued to finance construction of capital improvements or facility expansions identified
in the capital improvements plan.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 4.
5-8-5. Items not payable by fee.

Impact fees shall not be imposed or used to pay for:

A. construction, acquisition or expansion of public facilities or assets that are not capital
improvements or facility expansions identified in the capital improvements plan;

B. repair, operation or maintenance of existing or new capital improvements or facility
expansions;

C. upgrading, updating, expanding or replacing existing capital improvements to serve
existing development in order to meet stricter safety, efficiency, environmental or regulatory
standards;

D. upgrading, updating, expanding or replacing existing capital improvements to provide
better service to existing development,

E. administrative and operating costs of a municipality or county except as provided in
Paragraph (4) of Subsection A of Section 4 [5-8-4 NMSA 1978} of the Development Fees Act;

F. principal payments or debt service charges on bonds or other indebtedness, except as
allowed by Section 4 of the Development Fees Act; or

G. libraries, community centers, schools, projects for economic development and
employment growth, affordable housing or apparatus and equipment of any kind, except capital
improvements defined in Paragraph (3) of Subsection C [D] of Section 2 [5-8-2 NMSA 1978] of
the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 5.
5-8-6. Capital improvements plan.

A. A municipality or county shall use qualified professionals to prepare the capital
improvements plan and to calculate the impact fee. The capital improvements plan shall follow
the infrastructure capital improvement planning guidelines established by the department of
finance and administration and shall address the following:

(1) a description, as needed to reasonably support the proposed impact fee, which shall
be prepared by a qualified professional, of the existing capital improvements within the service
area and the costs to upgrade, update, improve, expand or replace the described capital
improvements to adequately meet existing needs and usage and stricter safety, efficiency,
environmental or regulatory standards;

(2) an analysis, which shall be prepared by a qualified professional, of the total capacity,
the level of cumrent usage and commitments for usage of capacity of the existing capital
improvements;

(3) adescription, which shall be prepared by a qualified professional, of all or the parts of
the capital improvements or facility expansions and their costs necessitated by and attributable to
new development in the service area based on the approved land use assumptions;

(4) a definitive table establishing the specific level or quantity of use, consumption,
generation or discharge of a service unit for each category of capital improvements or facility
expansions and an equivalency or conversion table establishing the ratio of a service unit to various
types of land uses, including residential, commercial and industrial;



(5) the total number of projected service units necessitated by and attributable to new
development within the service area based on the approved land use assumptions and calculated
in accordance with generally accepted engineering or planning criteria,

(6) the projected demand for capital improvements or facility expansions required by new
service units accepted over a reasonable period of time, not to exceed ten years; and

(7) anticipated sources of funding independent of impact fees.

B. The analysis required by Paragraph (2) of Subsection A of this section may be prepared
on a system-wide basis within the service area for each major category of capital improvement or
facility expansion for the designated service area.

C. The govemning body of a municipality or county is responsible for supervising the
implementation of the capital improvements plan in a timely manner.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 6.
5-8-7. Maximum fee per service unit.

The fee shall not exceed the cost to pay for a proportionate share of the cost of system

improvements, based upon service units, needed to serve new development.
History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 7.
5-8-8. Time for assessment and collection of fee,

A. Assessments of an impact fee shall be made at the earliest possible time. Collection of the
impact fee shall occur at the latest possible time.

B. For land that has been platted in accordance with the subdivision or platting procedures of
a municipality or county before the effective date of the Development Fees Act or for land on
which new development occurs or is proposed without platting, the municipality or county may
assess the impact fees at the time of development approval or issuance of a building permit,
whichever date is earlier. The assessment shall be valid for a period of not less than four years
from the date of development approval or issuance of a building permit, whichever date is earlier.

C. For land that is platted after the effective date of the Development Fees Act, the
municipality or county shall assess the fees at the time of recording of the subdivision plat and this
assessment shall be valid for a period of not less than four years from the date of recording of the
plat.

D. Collection of impact fees shall occur no earlier than the date of issuance of a building
permit.

E. For new development that is platted in accordance with the subdivision or platting
procedures of a municipality or county before the adoption of an impact fee, an impact fee shall
not be collected on any service unit for which a valid building permit has been issued.

F. After the expiration of the four-year period described in Subsections B and C of this
section, a municipality or county may adjust the assessed impact fee to the level of current impact
fees as provided in the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 8.
5-8-9. Additional fee prohibited; exception.

Except as provided in Subsection F of Section 8 [5-8-8 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees
Act, after assessment of the impact fees attributable to the new development or execution of an
agreement for payment of impact fees, additional impact fees or increases in fees may not be
assessed for any reason unless the number of service units to be developed increases. In the event
of an increase in the number of service units, the impact fees to be imposed are limited to the
amount attributable to the additional service units.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 9,



5-8-10. Agreement with owner regarding payment.

A municipality or county is authorized to enter into an agreement with the owner of a tract of
land for which a plat has been recorded providing for a method of payment of the impact fees over
an extended period of time otherwise in compliance with the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 10.
5-8-11. Collection of fees if services not available.

Impact fees may be assessed but shall not be collected unless the:

A. collection is made to pay for a capital improvement or facility expansion that has been
identified in the capital improvements plan and the municipality or county commits to complete
construction within seven years and to have the service available within a reasonable period of
time after completion of construction considering the type of capital improvement or facility
expansion to be constructed but in no event longer than seven years;

B. municipality or county agrees that the owner of a new development may construct to
adopted municipal or county standards or finance the capital improvements or facility expansions
and agrees that the costs incurred or funds advanced will be credited against the impact fees
otherwise due from the new development or agrees to reimburse the owner for such costs from
impact fees paid from other new developments that will use such capital improvements or facility
expansions, which fees shall be collected and reimbursed to the property owner of record at the
time the plat of the other new development is recorded; or

C. time period set forth in Subsection A of this section can be extended, provided the
municipality or county obtains a performance bond or similar surety securing performance of the
obligation to construct the capital improvements or facility expansions but in no event longer than
seven years from commencement of construction of the capital improvements or facility expansion
for which fees have been collected. The municipality or county shall establish written procedures
to ensure that the owner of a new development shall not lose the value of the credits. Any refund
for fees shall be made as provided in Section 17 [5-8-17 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees
Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 11.
5-8-12. Entitlement to services.

Any new development for which an impact fee has been paid is entitled to the permanent use
and benefit of the services for which the fee was exacted and is entitled to receive prompt service
from any existing facilities with actual capacity to serve the new service units.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 12.
5-8-13. Authority of municipality or county to spend funds or enter into
agreements to reduce fees.

Municipalities or counties may spend funds from any lawful source or pay for all or a part of
the capital improvements or facility expansions to reduce the amount of impact fees. A developer
and a municipality or county may agree to offset or reduce part or all of the impact fee assessed
on that new development, provided that the public policy which supports the reduction is contained
in the appropriate planning documents of the municipality or county and provided that the
development's new proportionate share of the system improvement is funded with revenues other
than impact fees from other new developments.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 13
5-8-14. Requirement for governmental entities to pay fees.
Governmental entities shall pay all impact fees imposed under the Development Fees Act.
History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 14.



5-8-15. Credits against facilities fees.

Any construction of, contributions to or dedications of on-site or off-site facilities,
improvements, or real or personal property with off-site benefits not required to serve the new
development, in excess of minimum municipal and county standards established by a previously
adopted and valid ordinance or regulation and required by a municipality or county as a condition
of development approval shall be credited against impact fees otherwise due from the
development. The credit shall include the value of:

A. dedication of land for parks, recreational areas, open space trails and related areas and
facilities or payments in lieu of that dedication; and

B. dedication of rights of way or easements or construction or dedication of on-site water
distribution, wastewater collection or drainage facilities, or streets, sidewalks or curbs.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 15,
5-8-16. Accounting for fees and interest.

A. The order, ordinance or resolution imposing an impact fee shall provide that all money
collected through the adoption of an impact fee shall be maintained in separate interest-bearing
accounts clearly identifying the payor and the category of capital improvements or facility
expansions within the service area for which the fee was adopted.

B. Interest earned on impact fees shall become part of the account on which it is earned and
shall be subject to all restrictions placed on the use of impact fees under the Development Fees
Act.

C. Money from impact fees may be spent only for the purposes for which the impact fee was
imposed as shown by the capital improvements plan and as authorized by the Development Fees
Act.

D. The records of the accounts into which impact fees are deposited shall be open for public
inspection and copying during ordinary business hours of the municipality or county.

E. As part of its annual audit process, a municipality or county shall prepare an annual report
describing the amount of any impact fees collected, encumbered and used during the preceding
year by category of capital improvement and service area identified as provided in Subsection A
of this section.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 16.
5-8-17. Refunds.

A. Upon the request of an owner of the property on which an impact fee has been paid, the
municipality or county shall refund the impact fee if existing facilities are available and service is
not provided or the municipality or county has, after collecting the fee when service was not
available, failed to complete construction within the time allowed under Section 11 [5-8-11 NMSA
1978] of the Development Fees Act or service is not available within a reasonable period of time
after completion of construction considering the type of capital improvement or facility expansion
to be constructed, but in no event later than seven years from the date of payment under Subsection
A of Section 11 of the Development Fees Act.

B. Upon completion of the capital improvements or facility expansions identified in the
capital improvements plan, the municipality or county shall recalculate the impact fee using the
actual costs of the capital improvements or facility expansion. If the impact fee calculated based
on actual costs is less than the impact fee paid, including any sources of funding not anticipated in
the capital improvements plan, the municipality or county shall refund the difference if the
difference exceeds the impact fee paid by more than ten percent, based upon actual costs.



C. The municipality or county shall refund any impact fee or part of it that is not spent as
authorized by the Development Fees Act within seven years after the date of payment.

D. A refund shall bear interest calculated from the date of collection to the date of refund at
the statutory rate as set forth in Section 56-8-3 NMSA 1978.

E. All refunds shall be made to the record owner of the property at the time the refund is paid.
However, if the impact fees were paid by a governmental entity, payment shall be made to the
governmental entity.

F. The owner of the property on which an impact fee has been paid or a governmental entity
that has paid the impact fee has standing to sue for a refund under this section.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 17.
5-8-18. Compliance with procedures required.

Except as otherwise provided by the Development Fees Act, a municipality or county shall
comply with that act to levy an impact fee.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 18.
5-8-19, Hearing on land use assumptions.

To impose an impact fee, a municipality or county shall schedule and publish notice of a public
hearing to consider land use assumptions within the designated service area that will be used to
develop the capital improvements plan.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 19.
5-8-20. Information about assumptions available to public.

On or before the date of the first publication of the notice of the hearing on land use
assumptions, the municipality or county shall make available to the public its land use
assumptions, the time period of the projections and a description of the general nature of the capital
improvement facilities that may be proposed.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 20.
5-8-21. Notice of hearing on land use assumptions.

A. The municipality or county shall publish notice of the hearing conforming to locally
adopted regulations governing change-of-zone requests, except as otherwise provided in this
section.

B. The notice shall contain:

(1) a headline to read as follows:
"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON LAND
USE ASSUMPTIONS RELATING
TO POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF
IMPACT FEES",

(2) the time, date and location of the hearing;
(3) astatement that the purpose of the hearing is to consider the land use assumptions that
will be used to develop a capital improvements plan under which an impact fee may be imposed,
(4) an easily understandable map of the service area to which the land use assumptions
apply; and
(5) a statement that any member of the public has the right to appear at the hearing and
present evidence for or against the land use assumptions,
C. The municipality or county, within thirty days after the date of the public hearing, shall
approve or disapprove the land use assumptions.
D. An ordinance, order or resolution approving land use assumptions shall not be adopted as
an emergency measure and its adoption must comply with the procedural requirements of the
Development Fees Act.



History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 21.
5-8-22. System-wide land use assumptions.

A. A municipality or county may adopt system-wide land use assumptions for water supply
and treatment facilities in lieu of adopting land use assumptions for each service area for such
facilities.

B. Prior to adopting system-wide land use assumptions, a municipality or county shall follow
the public notice, hearing and other requirements for adopting land use assumptions.

C. After adoption of system-wide land use assumptions, a municipality or county is not
required to adopt additional land use assumptions for a service area for water supply, treatment
and distribution facilities or wastewater collection and treatment facilities as a prerequisite to the
adoption of a capital improvements plan or impact fee, provided the capital improvements plan
and impact fee are consistent with the system-wide land use assumptions.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 22.
5-8-23. Capital improvements plan required after approval of land use

assumptions.

If the governing body adopts an ordinance, order or resolution approving the land use
assumptions, the municipality or county shall provide for a capital improvements plan to be
developed by qualified professionals using generally accepted engineering and planning practices
in accordance with Section 6 [5-8-6 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 23.
5-8-24. Hearing on capital improvements plan and impact fee.

Upon completion of the capital improvements plan, the governing body shall schedule and
publish notice of a public hearing to discuss the adoption of the capital improvements plan and
imposition of the impact fee. The public hearing must be held by the governing body of the
municipality or county to discuss the proposed ordinance, order or resolution adopting a capital
improvements plan and imposing an impact fee.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 24.
5-8-25. Information about plan available to public.

On or before the date of the first publication of the notice of the hearing on the capital
improvements plan and impact fee, the plan shall be made available to the public.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 25.
5-8-26. Notice of hearing on capital improvements plan and impact fee.

A. The municipality or county shall publish notice of the hearing conforming to locally
adopted regulations governing change-of-zone requests, except as otherwise provided in this
section.

B. The notice must contain the following:

(1) aheadline to read as follows:

"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND
ADOPTION OF IMPACT
FEES";

(2) the time, date and location of the hearing;

(3) a statement that the purpose of the hearing is to consider the proposed capital
improvements plan and the adoption of an impact fee;

(4) an easily understandable map of the service area in which the proposed fee will be
imposed;



(5) the amount of the proposed impact fee per service unit; and
(6) a statement that any member of the public has the right to appear at the hearing and
present evidence for or against the plan and proposed fee.
History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 26.
5-8-27. Advisory committee comments on capital improvements plan and impact
fees.

The advisory committee created under Section 37 [3-8-37 NMSA 1978] of the Development
Fees Act shall file its written comments on the proposed capital improvements plan and impact
fees before the fifth business day before the date of the public hearing on the plan and fees.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 27.
5-8-28. Approval of capital improvements plan and impact fee required.

A. The municipality or county, within thirty days after the date of the public hearing on the
capital improvements plan and impact fee, shall approve, disapprove or modify the adoption of the
capital improvements plan and imposition of an impact fee.

B. An ordinance, order or resolution approving the capital improvements plan and imposition
of an impact fee shall not be adopted as an emergency measure and its adoption must comply with
the procedural requirements of the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 28.

5-8-29. Consolidation of land use assumptions and capital improvements plan.

A. Inlieu of separately adopting the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan for
a service area containing not greater than three hundred units, a municipality or county may
consolidate the land use assumptions and the capital improvements plan, and adopt the
assumptions, the plan and the impact fee simultaneously.

B. If a municipality or county elects to consolidate the land use assumptions and capital
improvements plan as authorized by Subsection A of this section, the municipality or county shall
first comply with Section 20 [5-8-20 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees Act and follow the
public notice and hearing requirements for adopting a capital improvements plan and impact fee
as provided in Section 21 [5-8-21 NMSA 1978] of that act, except:

(1) the headline for the notice by publication shall read as follows:
"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
ADOPTION OF LAND USE
ASSUMPTIONS AND
IMPACT FEES";

(2) the notice shall state that the municipality or county intends to adopt land use
assumptions, a capital improvements plan and impact fees at the hearing and does not intend to
hold separate hearings to adopt the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact
fees;

(3) the notice shall specify a date, not earlier than sixty days after publication of the first
notice, and must state that if a person, by not later than the date specified, makes a written request
for separate hearings, the governing body shall hold separate hearings to adopt the land use
assumptions and capital improvements plan; and

(4) the notice shall provide the name and mailing address of the official of the
municipality or county to whom a request for separate hearings shall be sent.

C. In addition to the requirements of Subsection B of this section, the municipality or county
shall comply with all other requirements for adopting land use assumptions, a capital
improvements plan and an impact fee.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 29.



5-8-30. Periodic update of land use assumptions and capital improvements plan
required.

A. A municipality or county imposing an impact fee shall update the land use assumptions
and capital improvements plan at least every five years. The initial five-year period begins on the
day the capital improvements plan is adopted.

B. The municipality or county shall review and evaluate its current land use assumptions and
shall cause an update of the capital improvements plan to be prepared in accordance with the
Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 30.
5-8-31. Hearing on updated land use assumptions and capital improvements plan.

The governing body of the municipality or county shall, within sixty days after the date it
receives the update of the land use assumptions and the capital improvements plan, schedule and
publish notice of a public hearing to discuss and review the update and shall determine whether to
amend the plan.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 31.
5-8-32. Hearing on amendments to land use assumptions, capital improvements
plan or impact fee.

A public hearing shall be held by the governing body of the municipality or county to discuss
the proposed ordinance, order or resolution amending land use assumptions, the capital
improvements plan or the impact fee. On or before the date of the first publication of the notice
of the hearing on the amendments, the land use assumptions and the capital improvements plan,
including the amount of any proposed amended impact fee per service unit, shall be made available
to the public.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 32.
5-8-33. Notice of hearing on amendments to land use assumptions, capital
improvements plan or impact fee,

A. The municipality or county shall publish notice of the hearing conforming to locally
adopted regulations governing change-of-zone requests, except as otherwise provided in this
section.

B. The notice must contain the following:

(1) aheadline to read as follows:

"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON AMENDMENTS
TO LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN OR
IMPACT FEES";

(2) the time, date and location of the hearing;

(3) a statement that the purpose of the hearing is to consider amendments to land use
assumptions, capital improvements plan or impact fees;

(4) an easily understandable description and map of the service area on which the update
is being prepared; and

(5) a statement that any member of the public has the right to appear at the hearing and
present evidence for or against the update.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 33.

5-8-34. Advisory committee comments on amendments.



The advisory committee created under Section 37 [5-8-37 NMSA 1978] of the Development
Fees Act shall file its written comments with the applicable municipality or county on the proposed
amendments to the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan or impact fees before the fifth
business day before the date of the public hearing on the amendments.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 34.
5-8-35. Approval of amendments required.

A. The municipality or county, within thirty days after the date of the public hearing on the
amendments, shall approve, disapprove, revise or modify the amendments to the land use
assumptions, the capital improvements plan or impact fees.

B. An ordinance, order or resolution approving the amendments to the land use assumptions,
the capital improvements plan or impact fees shall not be adopted as an emergency measure and
such adoption must comply with the procedural requirements of the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 35.
5-8-36. Determination that no update of land wuse assumptions, capital

improvements plan or impact fee is needed.

A. If at the time an update under Section 30 [5-8-30 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees
Act is required, the governing body determines that no changes to the land use assumptions, capital
improvements plan or impact fees are needed, it may, as an alternative to the updating requirements
of Sections 30 through 35 [5-8-30 through 5-8-35 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees Act,
publish notice of its determination conforming to locally adopted regulations governing change-
of-zone requests, except as otherwise provided in this section.

B. The notice shall contain the following:

(1) a headline to read as follows:

"NOTICE OF DETERMINATION NOT TO
UPDATE LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS,
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN OR

IMPACT FEES";

(2) astatement that the governing body of the municipality or county has determined that
no change to the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan or impact fees are necessary;

(3) an easily understandable description and a map of the service area in which the
updating has been determined to be unnecessary;

(4) astatement that if, within a specified date, which date shall be at least sixty days after
publication of the notice, a person makes a written request to the designated official of the
municipality or county requesting that the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan or
impact fees be updated, the goveming body may accept or reject such request by following the
requirements of Sections 30 through 35 of the Development Fees Act; and

(5) astatement identifying the name and mailing address of the official of the municipality
or county to whom a request for an update should be sent.

C. The advisory committee shall file its written comments on the need for updating the land
use assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fees before the fifth business day before
the earliest notice of the governing body's decision that no update is necessary is mailed or
published.

D. Ifby the date specified in Paragraph (4) of Subsection B of this section, a person requests
in writing that the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan or impact fees be updated, the
governing body shall cause, accept or reject an update of the land use assumptions and capital



improvements plan to be prepared in accordance with Sections 30 through 35 of the Development
Fees Act.

E. An ordinance, order or resolution determining the need for updating land use assumptions,
capital improvements plan or impact fees shall not be adopted as an emergency measure and its
adoption must comply with the procedural requirements of the Development Fees Act.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 36.
5-8-37. Advisory committee.

A. On or before the date on which the order, ordinance or resolution is adopted under Section
19 [5-8-19 NMSA 1978] of the Development Fees Act, the governing body of a municipality or
county shall appoint a capital improvements advisory committee.

B. The advisory committee shall be composed of not less than five members who shall be
appointed by a majority vote of the governing body. Not less than forty percent of the membership
of the advisory committee must be representative of the real estate, development or building
industries. No members shall be employees or officials of a municipality or county or other
governmental entity.

C. The advisory committee serves in an advisory capacity and shall:

(1) advise and assist the municipality or county in adopting land use assumplions;

(2) review the capital improvements plan and file written comments;

(3) monitor and evaluate implementation of the capital improvements pian;

(4) file annual reports with respect to the progress of the capital improvements plan and
report to the municipality or county any perceived inequities in implementing the plan or imposing
the impact fee, and

(5) advise the muaicipality or county of the need to update or revise the land use
assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fee.

D. The municipality or county shall make available to the advisory committee any
professional reports with respect to developing and implementing the capital improvements plan.

E. The govemning body of the municipality or county shall adopt procedural rules for the
advisory committee to follow in carrying out its duties.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 37.
5-8-38. Duties to be performed within time limits.

If the govemning body of the municipality or county does not perform a duty imposed under
the Development Fees Act within the prescribed period, a person who has paid an impact fee or
an owner of land on which an impact fee has been paid has the right to present a written request to
the governing body of the municipality or county stating the nature of the unperformed duty and
requesting that it be performed within sixty days after the date of the request. If the governing
body of the municipality or county finds that the duty is required under the Development Fees Act
and is late in being performed, it shall cause the duty to commence within sixty days after the date
of the request and continue until completion.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 38.
5-8-39. Records of hearings.

A record shall be made of any public hearing provided for by the Development Fees Act. The
record shali be maintained and be made available for public inspection by the municipality or
county for at least ten years after the date of the public hearing.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 39.

5-8-40. Prior impact fees replaced by fees under Development Fees Act.



An impact fee that is in place on the effective date of the Development Fees Act shall be
replaced by an impact fee imposed under that act by July 1, 1995. Any municipality or county
having an impact fee that has not been replaced under that act by July 1, 1995 shall be liable to
any party who, after the effective date of that act, pays an impact fee that exceeds the maximum
permitted under that act by more than ten percent for an amount equal to two times the difference
between the maximum impact fee allowed and the actual impact fee imposed, plus reasonable
attorneys’ fees and court costs.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 40.
5-8-41. No effect on taxes or other charges.

The Development Fees Act does not prohibit, affect or regulate any tax, fee, charge or
assessment specifically authorized by state law.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 41.
5-8-42. Moratorium on development prohibited.

A moratorium shall not be placed on new development for the sole purpose of awaiting the
completion of all or any part of the process necessary to develop, adopt or update impact fees.

History: Laws 1993, ch. 122, § 42,
5-8-43. Purpose; transfer of development rights.
A. The purpose of this section is to:
(1) clarify an application of existing authority;
(2) provide guidelines for counties and municipalities to regulate transfers of
development rights consistent with comprehensive plans;
(3} encourage the conservation of ecological, agricultural and historical land; and
(4) require public notification of transfers of development rights.

B. A municipality or county may, by ordinance, provide for voluntary transfer of all or partial
development rights from one parcel of land to another parcel of land.

C. The ordinance shall identify on a zoning map areas from which development rights may
be transferred and areas to which development rights may be transferred.

D. The ordinance shall provide for:

(1) the voluntary transfer of a development right from one parcel of land to increase the
intensity of development of another parcel of land;

(2) joint powers agreements, if applicable, for administration of transfers of development
rights across jurisdictional boundaries;

(3) the method of transfer of development rights, including methods of determining the
accounting for the rights transferred;

(4) the reasonable rules to effect and control transfers and ensure compliance with the
provisions of the ordinance; and

(5) public notification to the areas to which development rights may be transferred.

E. Transference of a development right shall be in writing and executed by the owner of the
parcel from which the development right is being transferred and acknowledged by the transferor.
A development right shall not be subject to condemnation.

F. As used in this section, "development right" means the rights permitted to a lot, parcel or
area of land under a zoning ordinance or local law respecting permissible use, area, density or
height of improvements executed thereon, and development rights may be calculated and allocated
in accordance with density or height limitations or any criteria that will effectively quantify a
development right in a reasonable and uniform manner.



G. Nothing in this section shall be construed to authorize a municipality or a county to impair
existing property rights.
History: Laws 2003, ch. 229, § 1.



	01-09-2019 Agenda.pdf
	B5 - Reorganization.pdf
	E1-Consent - 10-22-2018 Minutes.pdf
	E2-Consent - 11-14-2018 Minutes.pdf
	E3-Consent - 12-12-2018 Minutes.pdf
	E4-Consent - Accts Payable - Dec. 2018.pdf
	F1-G1 - Plat Amendment - 1700 E. Riverside Dr.pdf
	F2-G2 - Variance 1700 E. Riverside Dr.pdf
	G3 - Res. 22-18-19 - NMFA Application.pdf
	H1 - SUP - Verizon.pdf
	H2 - SUP - Gravity Pad.pdf
	I1 - New Bus. - Review Impact Fee Study.pdf

